
 
GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
October 8, 2019 – 6:30 PM 

 
 
6:30 p.m. 
CALL TO ORDER  
ROLL CALL 
FLAG SALUTE  

 

PRESENTATION: Swearing in of Police Lieutenant – Timothy Gerkman and Police Sergeant – James Leake – 
Municipal Judge Linda Beloof 

 
PRESENTATION: Rinearson Creek Project – Columbia Restoration 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
1. Approval of September 10, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 
2. Approval of August Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 08-30-2019 
4. Approval of August Check Register  
5. Legal Costs on Projects 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for September 2019  
7. Approval to Extend Library Director Services  

 
CORRESPONDENCE – none 
 
REGULAR AGENDA: 
 
8. RESOLUTION 1165 – SUPPORT OF A CO-SPONSORED APPLICATON WITH CLACKAMAS 

COUNTY REDESIGNATING THE NORTH URBAN CLACKAMAS COUNTY ENTERPRISE ZONE 
Consider approving Resolution 1165 – a Resolution in support of a co-sponsored application with Clackamas 
County re-designating the North Urban Clackamas County Enterprise Zone 
 

9. ORDINANCE 1497 – ADDING CHAPTER 5.55 TO THE GMC, TITLED BUSINESS FOOD WASTE 
REQUIREMENTS 
Consider approving Ordinance 1497 – an Ordinance adding Chapter 5.55 to the GMC, titled Business Food 
Waste Requirements    
 

10. RESOLUTION 1166 – DELCARING FUNDS RECEIVED AS ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE – 
GLADSTONE PUBLIC LIBRARY WITHIN THE GENERAL FUND OF THE CITY  
Consider approving Resolution 1166 – a resolution declaring funds received as assigned fund balance – 
Gladstone Public Library within the General Fund of the City. 
 

11. ORDINANCE 1498 – AMENDING TITLE 17 OF THE GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE (GMC) 
PERTAINING TO TIME LIMIT EXTENSIONS OF LAND USE APPROVALS 
Consider approving Ordinance 1498 – an Ordinance amending Chapters 17.66, 17.70, 17.72, 17.73 and 17.80 
of the GMC pertaining to time limit extensions of land use approvals 
 
 
 
 



 
 

12. DIRECTION ON UTILITY RATES FOR JANUARY 2020 IMPLEMENTATION 
Consider utility rate options for January 2020 and January 2021 implementation 
 

13. DISCUSSION OF RIGHT OF WAY (ROW) INFORMATION (additional information attached separately)  
 

BUSINESS CARRIED FORWARD – Update on Library Intergovernmental Agreement with Clackamas County 
– City Administrator Jacque Betz (no attachments) 
 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE 
Visitors: This is an opportunity for members of the audience to bring to the Council’s attention any item not otherwise listed on the Agenda. Comments will 
be limited to three (3) minutes per person. Speakers may not yield their time to others and must fill out a speaker card available in the back of the room prior 
to making a comment. 

 
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL - Council Monthly Activity Reports 
          Preliminary City Council Agenda Planning Document 
 
ADJOURN 
 
Upcoming Meeting Dates: 

 October 16th – City Council/School Board Joint Meeting, 5:30 pm., Gladstone Senior Center 
 October 30th – Trolley Trail Bridge Concepts Presentation, 6:00 pm, Gladstone City Council Chambers 
 November 12th – Regular City Council Meeting, 6:30 pm, Gladstone City Council Chambers 

 







P:\New Files\COUNCIL\2019 Minutes\CouncilMinutes.09102019.docx 
 

GLADSTONE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES of September 10, 2019 
 
Meeting was called to order at 6:31 PM. 
 
ROLL CALL:                                                                                                                                                                    
Mayor Tammy Stempel, Councilor Ripley, Councilor Neace, Councilor Tracy, Councilor Reisner, 
Councilor Todd, Councilor Mersereau 
 
ABSENT:                                                                                                                                                                                    
None                                                                                                                                                                                            
 
STAFF:                                                                                                                                                                                
Jacque Betz, City Administrator; Tami Bannick, City Recorder; Jim Whynot, Public Works Director; Chad 
Jacobs, City Attorney 
 
AGENDA ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS:                                                                                                                
Ms. Betz said she would like to add the consideration of accepting grant funds on behalf of the Friends of 
the Gladstone Nature Park from the Metro Nature and Neighborhoods Restoration Program in the amount 
of $11,600.  It is City-owned property but the funds will be dispersed directly to F.O.G.N.P.  This is 
typically a consent agenda item – it was agreed to add it as item #9.                                                                 
 
Councilor Reisner asked about an executive session being put on the agenda to discuss attorney fees.  He 
is confused as to why we are discussing our current attorney when the question should be how we go about 
recruiting for a new one since the current attorney did not respond to the RFQ.  He is asking to take the 
executive session off the agenda.  There was discussion regarding what was said at the last meeting, the 
difference between an RFQ and an RFP, etc.                                                                                
 
Councilor Tracy made a motion to table this conversation and go through the meeting and have the 
conversation in an executive session.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Neace.   
 
Discussion:  There was discussion regarding a letter from Councilor Reisner/Mayor Stempel – he agreed 
that it should be a public document.   
 
Motion passed (6-1) (Councilor Reisner with a nay vote).                              
                                                                         
CONSENT AGENDA:                                

1. Approval of August 13, 2019 Regular Meeting Minutes 
2. Approval of July Bank Balances 
3. Budget Report for Period ending 7-31-19 
4. Approval of July Check Register 
5. Legal Costs on Projects 
6. Department Head Monthly Reports for August 2019 
7. Approval to Extend Library Director Services  
8. Consider accepting a grant from the Oregon Department of Forestry and Wildlife in the amount 

of $278,175 for dredging at Meldrum Bar Park  
9. Consider accepting a grant on behalf of the Friends of Gladstone Nature Park from Metro Nature 

and Neighborhoods Restoration Program in the amount of $11,600.                                                                          
 
Councilor Tracy made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda with the addition of #9.  Motion was 
seconded by Councilor Neace.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 

1 - 1



P:\New Files\COUNCIL\2019 Minutes\CouncilMinutes.09102019.docx 
 

CORRESPONDENCE:                                                                                                                                                            
None.                  
                                                                                
REGULAR AGENDA                  

 
10. GLADSTONE CIVIC CENTER PROJECT CHANGE ORDER REQUEST: 

Ms. Betz introduced the Project Manager, Kim Knox from SOJ, and Steve Anderson from P&C 
Construction.  Ms. Betz explained that this matter is coming before the Council because it exceeds 
her spending authority.  They are talking about the removal of approximately 8,000 cubic yards 
of soil on the Gladstone Civic Center site.  Ms. Knox explained that in 2016 the City did its due 
diligence and conducted an environmental site assessment.  The document was included in the 
selection process for all the contractors.  Once P&C Construction was selected as the contractor 
they used that as the basis of their preparation of a contaminated media management plan.  While 
they were on site they ran into an underground storage tank, it was removed, they did all the proper 
documentation, had the soil tested and found some soil that did not meet the DEQ clean fill 
standards, although it is not considered contaminated/hazardous.  The City and the contractor 
worked together to look at ways to address the soil and minimize the cost.  P&C has agreed to cap 
the City’s exposure for the cost of removing the soil to $250,000 so this will increase the total 
project budget by $250,000.  There was discussion regarding the soil, DEQ, what is being 
removed, etc.  Ms. Betz said that in the Urban Renewal District fund there is a reserve surplus of 
$2.184 million – this will come out of the reserve money remaining in Urban Renewal that is in 
the Capital Fund budget line item.  The cost of removing the storage tank was $47,000, which was 
taken from the Civic Center contingency fund ($159,000).  They are also exploring a grant for 
$60,000.                                      
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS: 
Mindy Garlington asked for clarification regarding the funds used to pay for the removal of the 
storage tank and the removal of the soil.   
 
Councilor Reisner asked if the remaining funds in the Urban Renewal District were earmarked 
for anything.  Ms. Betz said they are not at this time, but she may ask to use some of the money 
for the demolition of the current City Hall building.   
 
Councilor Tracy made a motion to follow the recommended staff action authorizing an increase 
in the Guaranteed Maximum Price in the Gladstone Civic Center contract to allow additional soil 
removal of approximately 8,000 cubic yards in cost-sharing responsibility that does not meet 
DEQ’s definition of clean fill.  Reimbursement to P&C Construction would occur on a time-and-
materials basis not to exceed $250,000.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Neace.  Motion 
passed unanimously.  
         

11. ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT: 
Mayor Stempel said this is to consider approving the City Engineering Services Contract with 
Murraysmith & Associates.  Ms. Betz said the City solicited for proposals for engineering services 
– they received four responses.  They evaluated and reviewed the proposals.  She went over the 
evaluation/scoring/reviewing process.  Murraysmith was the most qualified firm.  She and Mr. 
Whynot met with them to talk about negotiating a contract.  If the City goes with this firm it will 
approximately double the current budget – those additional funds would be available by 
reallocating out of the capital improvement and adding to professional services.  The next step is 
for the City Council to consider moving forward with Murraysmith.                                     
 

1 - 2



P:\New Files\COUNCIL\2019 Minutes\CouncilMinutes.09102019.docx 
 

Councilor Mersereau asked if Sisul Engineering is qualified to do the work.  Mr. Whynot said they 
are.  Councilor Ripley asked how often they are used.  Mr. Whynot said they use them regularly; 
approximately 325 hours/year.  There was discussion regarding location/travel time/etc.  
Councilor Ripley said he has two issues: doubling the amount and not supporting a local business.  
Councilor Neace asked about the qualification scores.  Mr. Whynot explained that Murraysmith 
has a much larger arsenal of engineers that specialize in certain areas.  He said that all the firms 
are qualified.  He has not had any issues with Sisul Engineering.  He went over the negotiations.  
Ms. Betz explained that we could go with Murraysmith and just reduce the number of projects we 
do to get the costs within the budget.  Mr. Whynot went over some of the duties of the engineer.  
He said he would like to use someone like Sisul – close, convenient, very cost effective, to do all 
our basic stuff (reviews, be the City Engineer of Record, small projects) and if we do get to a point 
where we’re going to do big projects we get an engineer firm on an on-call basis.                                                    
 
Mr. Jacobs went over the State law that governs this process and what options we have.  He said 
the question tonight is are these fees reasonable – and if not should staff go back and try to 
renegotiate with them or should staff move on to the second bidder?                                          
 
Mayor Stempel said that Murraysmith has a wonderful reputation and almost every jurisdiction 
around us uses them.  Her only concern with Sisul is on one project where they couldn’t make a 
determination where it took five minutes to actually find the information that they charged us 
$18,000 for and said they couldn’t find it.  She doesn’t feel it’s right to keep these firms on forever 
without some checks and balances.                                   
 
AUDIENCE COMMENTS: 
Les Poole said he has concerns with the cost of the contract.  He has concerns with this happening 
now, in the middle of so many projects.  He recommends revisiting this in the future because he 
doesn’t see the need.   
 
Councilor Reisner made a motion for the City of Gladstone to appoint Murraysmith Inc. as a City 
Engineer of Record.  Motion was not seconded.   
 
Councilor Mersereau made a motion that we take the next steps that we are required to take, 
which he prefers to get a bid/quote from Sisul Engineering or ask Murraysmith to lower their 
bid/quote.  Motion was seconded by Councilor Todd.  Motion passed unanimously.       
 

BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE:                                                                                                                                   
Les Poole said he is a petitioner on a State-wide measure that he hopes to put on the ballot in November of 
2020 to require a vote on the plan to toll drivers for using existing lanes.  It is not legal at this time.  The 
State is doing a pilot project and the money goes into a vague fund.  Tolling is certainly a viable option to 
finance a project.  Their measure would have no effect on that and tolling, like any other tool or instrument, 
certainly has a place.  The tolling scheme that is planned for the area is going to have some really dramatic 
impacts on Gladstone.  Should the issue come to the Planning Commission he would be happy to recuse 
himself from participation, but he doesn’t see it coming there.  It is coming to Gladstone and it’s coming to 
the Council.  Transportation is the number one concern in the last two surveys in Clackamas County.  If 
you look at the choke points and the constrained environment we have here with the rivers, bridges, and the 
fact that 99E and I205 come together at the edge of Gladstone, if he were on the Council he would be 
looking deeper at this.  He encourages people to sign the petition so that the public has the opportunity to 
vote on this in the future.                                                                                    
 
He said in the past they had Business from the Audience at the start of the meeting and at some point it was 
put at the end of the meeting.  He said what really happened was that we eliminated one of the opportunities 

1 - 3



P:\New Files\COUNCIL\2019 Minutes\CouncilMinutes.09102019.docx 
 

to speak but he believes that Business from the Audience should happen at the start of the meeting.  He 
believes the citizens that wish to speak should be allowed to do so.  Their time is precious and he believes 
having citizen input at the start of the meeting would be a real good move.  He thinks that having people 
wait until the end of the meeting and not knowing how long the meeting will take is a way of inadvertently 
disenfranchising them.                                                                                                                                            
                                                                                                                                                      
BUSINESS FROM THE COUNCIL: 
 
Councilor Reisner:                                                                                                                                                                    
On Saturday, September 21st, SOLVE is doing a State-wide rivers and ocean clean-up.  They will meet by 
the bridge at 10:00 A.M.  
 
Councilor Tracy:                                                                                                                                                                       
He is going tomorrow to a Patriot Remembrance event in Red Soils in Oregon City – he encouraged 
everyone to attend.  One of our officers is being honored. 
 
Councilor Neace:                                                                                                                                                                       
She wanted to remind everyone about the wedding anniversary luncheon that is being held at the Senior 
Center on September 12th from 11:30 to 12:30. Rotary will be serving.  Everyone is invited.  
 
Mayor Stempel:                                                                                                                                                             
She said she is on the Clackamas County Coordinating Committee (C4 Group) – their big push for this next 
couple of months is going to be the vehicle registration fee.  After that will be the affordable housing push 
because they just did a housing needs assessment and how that is going to filter down to the cities and what 
they can do collectively to push that forward.                                                                            
 
The Parks and Recreation Board is doing an amazing job as always – they are having the special interest 
groups that use the parks come to their meetings to discuss future partnering.  The Garden Association came 
last night and the RC car group came a couple months ago and will come again to talk more in depth.  They 
will be starting on their work plan next month.                                                                                                                          
 
ADJOURN:                                                                                                                                                                       
Meeting was adjourned to Executive Session at 7:34 P.M.        
 
Meeting was reconvened at 8:19 P.M. 
 
CITY ATTORNEY SERVICES:                                                                                                                                             
Councilor Tracy made a motion to retain City Attorney services for duration as we work on these projects 
and going forward working on rebuilding a relationship and discussing our future work with them.  Motion 
was seconded by Councilor Mersereau.   
 
Discussion:  Councilor Reisner said the name was not mentioned in the motion.  Councilor Tracy said he 
meant to say “current” and it is BEH.   
 
Motion passed unanimously.   
 
BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE:                                                                                                                                   
Pat McMahon said he watched the video last week and a couple of the comments from Chad Jacobs, BEH, 
were outstanding.  He said that the staff is amazing, great to work with, and they work really hard.  Mr. 
McMahon wanted to talk about some of the concerns that Mr. Jacobs talked about.  He said when he looked 
at it independently and he came to the same sort of conclusion pretty quickly that he thinks the rest of the 

1 - 4



P:\New Files\COUNCIL\2019 Minutes\CouncilMinutes.09102019.docx 
 

staff of BEH had and it was their concerns that the trust in their relationship, beating around the bush on 
significant issues, and Council is not clear on communication with them about what it is they want and the 
big gotcha moments.  Mr. McMahon said that Councilor Reisner is probably the biggest one for the big 
gotcha moments so he would ask that the Council try and refrain from the big gotcha moments.  He said 
the reason no other law firms applied for the City is because they paid attention and watched and did not 
want to have to deal with this.  He feels that Mayor Stempel has also caused a lot of consternation as well 
and he is disappointed in both of them, but he is happy that we are keeping the law firm that we have.   
 
Natalie Smith said she had concerns about keeping our current law firm after attending the last Library Task 
Force meeting because they are still working on the IGA that hasn’t been finalized yet.  It was her feeling 
that the IGA and the Clackamas County Board of Commissioners scope of work should kind of mirror each 
other and the timelines should be similar.  They put out some dates on the timeline in last week’s meeting 
so she is thankful they are retaining the current counsel so we can have their vast knowledge and the history 
so that we can make this a win-win situation and everything being settled with the County and moving 
forward with the Library.   
 
ADJOURN:                                                                                                                                                                                
Meeting was adjourned at 8:24 P.M.                
  
Approved by the Mayor this ________ day of ___________________________, 2019. 
 
 

                                                                  ATTEST: 
 
 

_____________________________________                  ______________________________________       
Tamara Stempel, Mayor                                                     Tami Bannick, City Recorder     

1 - 5



Bank
July

 2019

August

 2019

September

 2019

October

 2019

November

2019

December

 2019

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472 11,015,342.35$       9,857,248.31$       

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650 11,966,359.82          11,995,582.46       

Checking Accounts:

General Fund 212,487.17               68,755.50               

Urban Renewal 14,162.39                 14,162.43               

Municipal Court 28,545.29                 25,719.74               

Totals 23,236,897.02$       21,961,468.44$     -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

Bank
January

 2020

February

2020

March

 2020

April

 2020

May

2020

June

2020

LGIP -City Of Gladstone #4472

LGIP - Urban Renewal Agency #4650

Checking Accounts:

General Fund

Urban Renewal

Municipal Court 

Totals -$                           -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         

BANK BALANCES

Month Ending Balance

2 - 1



9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 1 of 21

Budget Report
City of Gladstone, OR Account Summary

For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 3,730,000.00 0.00 -3,730,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-309999 3,730,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.003,730,000.00 3,730,000.00 -3,730,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT YEAR TAXES 8,609,105.00 0.00 -8,609,105.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-310010 8,609,105.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 300,000.00 0.00 -300,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-310050 300,000.00

LIBRARY DISTRICT REVENUE 743,142.00 0.00 -743,142.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-311030 743,142.00

TRANSIENT LODGING TAX 305,000.00 35,975.48 -269,024.52 11.80 %20,234.75100-000-314045 305,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 35,975.4820,234.759,957,247.00 9,957,247.00 -9,921,271.52 0.36 %

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES

STATE REVENUE SHARING 305,000.00 0.00 -305,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-310170 305,000.00

ALCOHOL TAX REVENUE 450,846.00 0.00 -450,846.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-311010 450,846.00

MARIJUANA TAX 99,457.00 0.00 -99,457.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-311015 99,457.00

CIGARETTE TAX REVENUE 28,155.00 0.00 -28,155.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-311020 28,155.00

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES Total: 0.000.00883,458.00 883,458.00 -883,458.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES

GLADSTONE DISPOSAL FRANCHISE FEE 250,000.00 0.00 -250,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312010 250,000.00

PGE FRANCHISE FEES 800,000.00 0.00 -800,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312025 800,000.00

NW NATURAL GAS FRANCHISE FEE 340,000.00 0.00 -340,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312030 340,000.00

COMCAST CABLE TV FRANCHISE FE 360,000.00 0.00 -360,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312040 360,000.00

RIGHT OF WAY FEES-TELECOM 0.00 1,857.78 1,857.78 0.00 %0.00100-000-312050 0.00

ROW LICENSE & APP. FEES 0.00 250.00 250.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-312060 0.00

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES Total: 2,107.780.001,750,000.00 1,750,000.00 -1,747,892.22 0.12 %

RptType: 3130 - LICENSES AND PERMITS

BUSINESS LICENSE FEES 184,000.00 1,495.00 -182,505.00 0.81 %690.00100-000-313010 184,000.00

LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS 2,000.00 35.00 -1,965.00 1.75 %0.00100-000-313015 2,000.00

ALARM PERMITS 8,000.00 1,425.00 -6,575.00 17.81 %825.00100-000-313020 8,000.00

RptType: 3130 - LICENSES AND PERMITS Total: 2,955.001,515.00194,000.00 194,000.00 -191,045.00 1.52 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

RECREATION FEES 6,000.00 921.16 -5,078.84 15.35 %520.85100-000-314010 6,000.00

SENIOR CENTER BUILDING RENTAL FE… 8,500.00 505.00 -7,995.00 5.94 %210.00100-000-314015 8,500.00

PLANNING APPLICATION FEES 70,000.00 0.00 -70,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-314020 70,000.00

SOCIAL SERVICES CONTRACT 75,000.00 608.00 -74,392.00 0.81 %0.00100-000-314025 75,000.00

LIEN SEARCH FEES 12,000.00 960.00 -11,040.00 8.00 %540.00100-000-314030 12,000.00

ALL OTHER LIBRARY RECEIPTS 16,000.00 2,743.46 -13,256.54 17.15 %1,533.87100-000-314040 16,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 5,737.622,804.72187,500.00 187,500.00 -181,762.38 3.06 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

PARK SDC FEES 0.00 94,111.00 94,111.00 0.00 %94,111.00100-000-314110 0.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 2,033.00 2,033.00 0.00 %2,033.00100-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 96,144.0096,144.000.00 0.00 96,144.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS

FIRE GRANTS 331,620.00 44,200.96 -287,419.04 13.33 %44,200.96100-000-315040 140,000.00

READY TO READ/STATE AID LIBRARY 2,950.00 0.00 -2,950.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-315050 2,950.00

MARINE BOARD MAINTENANCE GRA… 0.00 5,400.00 5,400.00 0.00 %5,400.00100-000-315055 0.00

WES/GOOD NEIGHBOR GRANT 0.00 50,000.00 50,000.00 0.00 %50,000.00100-000-315065 0.00

RptType: 3150 - GRANTS Total: 99,600.9699,600.96142,950.00 334,570.00 -234,969.04 29.77 %

3 - 1



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 2 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES

COURT FINES & FORFEITURES 775,000.00 51,039.48 -723,960.52 6.59 %22,723.36100-000-326010 775,000.00

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES Total: 51,039.4822,723.36775,000.00 775,000.00 -723,960.52 6.59 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 250,000.00 21,754.17 -228,245.83 8.70 %21,754.17100-000-330100 250,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 21,754.1721,754.17250,000.00 250,000.00 -228,245.83 8.70 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER GF RECEIPTS 70,000.00 3,464.28 -66,535.72 4.95 %3,036.79100-000-360000 70,000.00

FIRST RESPONDER SUPPLIES REIMB 10,000.00 0.00 -10,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-361016 10,000.00

LIBRARY FOUNDATION - FUNDED PR… 5,000.00 0.00 -5,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-361041 5,000.00

SENIOR CENTER BEQUESTS 0.00 45,000.00 45,000.00 0.00 %45,000.00100-000-362210 0.00

TRAM TRIPS 17,000.00 1,413.22 -15,586.78 8.31 %664.22100-000-362212 17,000.00

MEAL CHARGES 33,000.00 2,282.88 -30,717.12 6.92 %934.90100-000-362213 33,000.00

MEDICAID FUNDS 10,000.00 0.00 -10,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-000-362214 10,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 52,160.3849,635.91145,000.00 145,000.00 -92,839.62 35.97 %

RptType: 3700 - OTHER

SALE OF SURPLUS EQUIP/PROPERTY 30,000.00 334.82 -29,665.18 1.12 %117.58100-000-371000 30,000.00

RptType: 3700 - OTHER Total: 334.82117.5830,000.00 30,000.00 -29,665.18 1.12 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 367,809.69314,530.4518,045,155.00 18,236,775.00 -17,868,965.31 2.02 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM STREET FUND 81,935.00 0.00 -81,935.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399205 81,935.00

TRANSFER IN FROM POLICE LEVY 24,316.00 0.00 -24,316.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399228 24,316.00

TRANSFER IN FROM FIRE LEVY 4,863.00 0.00 -4,863.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399229 4,863.00

TRANSFER IN FROM URBAN RENEWAL 490,862.00 202,709.00 -288,153.00 41.30 %0.00100-910-399390 490,862.00

TRANSFER IN FROM SEWER FUND 60,748.00 0.00 -60,748.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399730 60,748.00

TRANSFER IN FROM WATER FUND 65,903.00 0.00 -65,903.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399740 65,903.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STORM WATER 60,748.00 0.00 -60,748.00 0.00 %0.00100-910-399750 60,748.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 202,709.000.00789,375.00 789,375.00 -586,666.00 25.68 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 202,709.000.00789,375.00 789,375.00 -586,666.00 25.68 %

Revenue Total: 570,518.69314,530.4518,834,530.00 19,026,150.00 -18,455,631.31 3.00 %

Expense

Department: 121 - ADMIN

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

CITY ADMINISTRATOR 284,124.00 23,188.00 260,936.00 8.16 %11,594.00100-121-431010 284,124.00

CITY RECRDR/HR MGR 293,480.00 25,397.00 268,083.00 8.65 %12,091.00100-121-431020 293,480.00

FINANCE DIRECTOR (.80) 202,297.00 0.00 202,297.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-431030 202,297.00

OFFICE ASSISTANT 121,764.00 9,750.00 112,014.00 8.01 %4,875.00100-121-431070 121,764.00

ACCOUNTING CLERK 204,110.00 12,958.81 191,151.19 6.35 %6,580.77100-121-431500 204,110.00

OVERTIME 2,000.00 310.10 1,689.90 15.51 %310.10100-121-450100 2,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 8,819.00 658.58 8,160.42 7.47 %331.51100-121-450500 8,819.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 583,090.00 34,699.55 548,390.45 5.95 %17,385.55100-121-470000 583,090.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 106,962.0453,167.931,699,684.00 1,699,684.00 1,592,721.96 6.29 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 134,000.00 24,492.12 109,507.88 18.28 %12,088.37100-121-500110 134,000.00

MUNICIPAL AUDIT CONTRACT 84,000.00 0.00 84,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-500120 84,000.00

LEGAL FEES 216,000.00 4,148.38 211,851.62 1.92 %4,148.38100-121-500130 216,000.00

COUNCIL ACTIVITIES 25,000.00 2,838.32 22,161.68 11.35 %743.96100-121-500490 25,000.00

OUTSIDE AGENCY REQUESTS 47,000.00 0.00 47,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-500491 47,000.00

COUNTY PLANNING SERVICES CONTR… 160,000.00 6,526.27 153,473.73 4.08 %0.00100-121-500492 160,000.00

COMM PROMOTIONS/BUSINESS DEV 384,650.00 8,300.81 376,349.19 2.16 %1,682.81100-121-510020 384,650.00

BANK CHARGES 7,500.00 594.86 6,905.14 7.93 %300.86100-121-520120 7,500.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 1,000.00 36.99 963.01 3.70 %0.00100-121-520320 1,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 38,310.00 2,497.16 35,812.84 6.52 %1,452.75100-121-520400 38,310.00

CITY NEWSLETTER 70,000.00 8,134.35 61,865.65 11.62 %5,077.68100-121-520450 70,000.00

3 - 2



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 3 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

FIRE & LIABILITY INSURANCE 200,000.00 148,427.91 51,572.09 74.21 %0.00100-121-530000 200,000.00

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 25,000.00 310.50 24,689.50 1.24 %212.75100-121-530200 25,000.00

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 5,000.00 1,052.42 3,947.58 21.05 %0.00100-121-540110 5,000.00

PERSONNEL RECRUITMENT 20,000.00 176.00 19,824.00 0.88 %6.00100-121-540120 20,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 60,000.00 11,254.74 48,745.26 18.76 %610.00100-121-540200 60,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 45,000.00 2,302.03 42,697.97 5.12 %-161.02100-121-540220 45,000.00

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-121-540230 2,000.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 20,000.00 966.00 19,034.00 4.83 %186.00100-121-542000 20,000.00

TELEPHONES 30,000.00 1,799.93 28,200.07 6.00 %922.95100-121-560120 30,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 223,858.7927,271.491,574,460.00 1,574,460.00 1,350,601.21 14.22 %

Department: 121 - ADMIN Total: 330,820.8380,439.423,274,144.00 3,274,144.00 2,943,323.17 10.10 %

Department: 122 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

IT MANAGER 198,120.00 7,932.00 190,188.00 4.00 %7,932.00100-122-432010 198,120.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 79,889.00 2,140.12 77,748.88 2.68 %2,140.12100-122-470000 79,889.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 10,072.1210,072.12278,009.00 278,009.00 267,936.88 3.62 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL 37,360.00 8,800.00 28,560.00 23.55 %0.00100-122-500110 37,360.00

COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY SERVICE 34,200.00 7,541.91 26,658.09 22.05 %5,942.99100-122-500210 34,200.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 35,112.00 1,129.28 33,982.72 3.22 %1,129.28100-122-520400 35,112.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY 540.00 314.30 225.70 58.20 %269.16100-122-540300 540.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS & RADIOS 5,292.00 476.76 4,815.24 9.01 %292.06100-122-560110 5,292.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 18,262.257,633.49112,504.00 112,504.00 94,241.75 16.23 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

COMPUTER & EQUIPMENT RESERVE 27,500.00 0.00 27,500.00 0.00 %0.00100-122-661018 27,500.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.0027,500.00 27,500.00 27,500.00 0.00 %

Department: 122 - INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY Total: 28,334.3717,705.61418,013.00 418,013.00 389,678.63 6.78 %

Department: 124 - FACILITIES

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 17,294.00 1,716.82 15,577.18 9.93 %838.98100-124-437050 17,294.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 55,223.00 4,960.16 50,262.84 8.98 %2,254.01100-124-437070 55,223.00

SEASONAL HELP 16,490.00 0.00 16,490.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-439011 16,490.00

OVERTIME 2,000.00 375.63 1,624.37 18.78 %157.18100-124-450100 2,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 510.00 49.63 460.37 9.73 %24.44100-124-450500 510.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 32,469.00 3,036.77 29,432.23 9.35 %1,426.42100-124-470000 32,469.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 10,139.014,701.03123,986.00 123,986.00 113,846.99 8.18 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 105,000.00 5,313.29 99,686.71 5.06 %2,429.19100-124-500110 105,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 105,000.00 2,477.67 102,522.33 2.36 %522.35100-124-520130 105,000.00

GENERATOR FUEL 3,200.00 0.00 3,200.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-520322 3,200.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES& TRAINING 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-540220 2,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 5,500.00 0.00 5,500.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-540300 5,500.00

UTILITIES 140,000.00 9,936.91 130,063.09 7.10 %5,194.28100-124-560100 140,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 17,727.878,145.82360,700.00 360,700.00 342,972.13 4.91 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

FACILITY IMPROVEMENTS 250,000.00 0.00 250,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-124-641000 250,000.00

BUILDING REPAIR 47,000.00 45,000.00 2,000.00 95.74 %0.00100-124-641010 47,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 45,000.000.00297,000.00 297,000.00 252,000.00 15.15 %

Department: 124 - FACILITIES  Total: 72,866.8812,846.85781,686.00 781,686.00 708,819.12 9.32 %

Department: 220 - COURT

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

MUNICIPAL COURT CLERK 128,445.00 10,545.14 117,899.86 8.21 %5,272.57100-220-432020 128,445.00

COURT ADMINISTRATOR 147,900.00 12,638.08 135,261.92 8.55 %5,921.00100-220-432035 147,900.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 1,479.00 67.17 1,411.83 4.54 %0.00100-220-450500 1,479.00

3 - 3



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 4 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 157,102.00 12,614.24 144,487.76 8.03 %6,132.87100-220-470000 157,102.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 35,864.6317,326.44434,926.00 434,926.00 399,061.37 8.25 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 1,000.00 100.00 900.00 10.00 %0.00100-220-500110 1,000.00

PROSECUTING ATTORNEY 73,800.00 3,000.00 70,800.00 4.07 %0.00100-220-500132 73,800.00

ATTORNEYS FOR INDIGENT CLIENTS 67,000.00 5,200.00 61,800.00 7.76 %3,250.00100-220-500134 67,000.00

MUNICIPAL COURT JUDGE 73,800.00 3,000.00 70,800.00 4.07 %0.00100-220-500136 73,800.00

PRO-TEM JUDGE 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-220-500137 3,000.00

JURY EXPENSES 2,000.00 0.00 2,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-220-500138 2,000.00

COURTROOM SECURITY 16,000.00 570.00 15,430.00 3.56 %570.00100-220-500282 16,000.00

BANK CHARGES 8,000.00 0.00 8,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-220-520120 8,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 27,500.00 527.25 26,972.75 1.92 %483.71100-220-520400 27,500.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAININGI… 4,000.00 140.00 3,860.00 3.50 %140.00100-220-540220 4,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 12,537.254,443.71276,100.00 276,100.00 263,562.75 4.54 %

Department: 220 - COURT Total: 48,401.8821,770.15711,026.00 711,026.00 662,624.12 6.81 %

Department: 240 - POLICE

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

POLICE CHIEF 294,520.00 20,248.00 274,272.00 6.87 %10,124.00100-240-432110 294,520.00

POLICE LIEUTENANT 220,220.00 17,490.00 202,730.00 7.94 %8,745.00100-240-432130 220,220.00

POLICE DETECTIVE 163,009.00 27,157.71 135,851.29 16.66 %13,369.60100-240-432140 163,009.00

POLICE OFFICER 1,270,810.00 101,745.22 1,169,064.78 8.01 %50,491.78100-240-432160 1,270,810.00

POLICE SERGEANT 521,961.00 27,575.94 494,385.06 5.28 %13,702.00100-240-432170 521,961.00

PROPERTY ROOM TECHNICIAN 57,912.00 4,968.22 52,943.78 8.58 %2,528.09100-240-432182 57,912.00

POLICE RECORDS CLERK 110,324.00 10,012.23 100,311.77 9.08 %4,416.00100-240-432185 110,324.00

POLICE RESERVES 0.00 175.95 -175.95 0.00 %0.00100-240-432190 0.00

OVERTIME 260,000.00 24,333.37 235,666.63 9.36 %10,849.32100-240-450100 260,000.00

HOLIDAY PAY 22,000.00 6,321.32 15,678.68 28.73 %4,097.85100-240-450200 22,000.00

PROFICIENCY PAY 77,428.00 6,524.04 70,903.96 8.43 %3,393.52100-240-450300 77,428.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 308.93 -308.93 0.00 %151.72100-240-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 1,614,224.00 112,672.02 1,501,551.98 6.98 %54,108.83100-240-470000 1,614,224.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 359,532.95175,977.714,612,408.00 4,612,408.00 4,252,875.05 7.79 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 76,440.00 35,952.07 40,487.93 47.03 %9,055.78100-240-500110 76,440.00

PARK  PATROL 13,860.00 2,492.50 11,367.50 17.98 %2,492.50100-240-500284 13,860.00

JUVENILE DIVERSION PROGRAM 9,500.00 0.00 9,500.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-510044 9,500.00

OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES AND EXPENS… 139,880.00 4,861.89 135,018.11 3.48 %1,919.56100-240-520100 0.00

FIREARMS/AMMUNITION 68,000.00 332.00 67,668.00 0.49 %332.00100-240-520112 68,000.00

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR & OPERATION 0.00 256.82 -256.82 0.00 %128.41100-240-520310 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 150,000.00 14,957.86 135,042.14 9.97 %5,100.06100-240-520320 150,000.00

RADAR MAINTENANCE REPLACEMENT 0.00 814.00 -814.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-520345 0.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 40,000.00 2,144.28 37,855.72 5.36 %930.16100-240-520400 179,880.00

EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION 12,000.00 231.80 11,768.20 1.93 %155.60100-240-540110 12,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 20,000.00 1,427.99 18,572.01 7.14 %-487.01100-240-540200 20,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 64,000.00 3,184.07 60,815.93 4.98 %1,229.03100-240-540220 64,000.00

UNIFORMS AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT 40,000.00 8,689.92 31,310.08 21.72 %2,675.33100-240-540301 40,000.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 8,200.00 0.00 8,200.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-542000 8,200.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS, RADIOS 40,868.00 3,737.41 37,130.59 9.15 %1,935.94100-240-560110 40,868.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 79,082.6125,467.36682,748.00 682,748.00 603,665.39 11.58 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT RESERVES 220,000.00 46,675.10 173,324.90 21.22 %31,006.98100-240-651000 220,000.00

RADIO & COMPUTER RESERVE 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-240-661018 5,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 46,675.1031,006.98225,000.00 225,000.00 178,324.90 20.74 %

Department: 240 - POLICE Total: 485,290.66232,452.055,520,156.00 5,520,156.00 5,034,865.34 8.79 %

Department: 250 - FIRE

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

FIRE CHIEF 231,160.00 17,490.00 213,670.00 7.57 %8,745.00100-250-432210 231,160.00

3 - 4



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 5 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

FIRE MARSHAL 205,864.00 16,014.00 189,850.00 7.78 %8,007.00100-250-432220 205,864.00

FIRE CAPTAIN 489,027.00 37,290.00 451,737.00 7.63 %18,645.00100-250-432240 489,027.00

ON-CALL FIREFIGHTERS 548,000.00 37,309.45 510,690.55 6.81 %17,158.61100-250-432290 548,000.00

OVERTIME 50,000.00 5,225.46 44,774.54 10.45 %1,955.44100-250-450100 50,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 475.92 -475.92 0.00 %237.96100-250-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 682,019.00 54,352.07 627,666.93 7.97 %26,421.88100-250-470000 682,019.00

LIFE & DISABILITY INSURANCE 8,000.00 142.56 7,857.44 1.78 %71.28100-250-470040 8,000.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 168,299.4681,242.172,214,070.00 2,214,070.00 2,045,770.54 7.60 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

MEDICAL DIRECTOR CONTRACT 29,000.00 1,980.00 27,020.00 6.83 %990.00100-250-500150 29,000.00

COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 0.00 894.00 -894.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-500210 0.00

SHARE COST CCOM DISPATCH 170,000.00 14,748.20 155,251.80 8.68 %7,374.08100-250-500498 170,000.00

FIRE GRANTS 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-510022 50,000.00

FIRE PREVENTION & INVESTIGATION 12,000.00 0.00 12,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-520122 12,000.00

FIRST RESPONDER SUPPLIES 53,000.00 2,816.26 50,183.74 5.31 %1,431.34100-250-520124 53,000.00

SCBA & TURNOUT MAINTENANCE 0.00 20.95 -20.95 0.00 %20.95100-250-520126 0.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 83,800.00 4,538.20 79,261.80 5.42 %2,392.02100-250-520200 83,800.00

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR & OPERATION 0.00 155.00 -155.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-520310 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 140,000.00 7,538.95 132,461.05 5.38 %3,766.98100-250-520320 140,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,280.00 788.02 4,491.98 14.92 %565.92100-250-520400 5,280.00

PHYSICAL EXAMINATIONS 48,000.00 0.00 48,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-540130 48,000.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 15,000.00 1,201.19 13,798.81 8.01 %97.99100-250-540200 15,000.00

TECH RESCUE TRAINING 15,250.00 0.00 15,250.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-540222 15,250.00

EMS TRAINING & RECERTIFICATION 15,000.00 1,866.40 13,133.60 12.44 %1,826.40100-250-540224 15,000.00

FIREFIGHTER TRAINING 62,000.00 6,575.91 55,424.09 10.61 %146.95100-250-540225 62,000.00

UNIFORMS AND SAFETY EQUIPMENT 30,000.00 2,912.14 27,087.86 9.71 %1,023.69100-250-540301 30,000.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS, RADIOS 64,000.00 18,506.60 45,493.40 28.92 %805.61100-250-560110 64,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 64,541.8220,441.93792,330.00 792,330.00 727,788.18 8.15 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

ROUTINE EQUIP REPLACEMENT 0.00 384.61 -384.61 0.00 %263.61100-250-661010 0.00

TURN-OUTS & SCBA RESERVE 191,620.00 156,183.16 35,436.84 81.51 %0.00100-250-661012 0.00

DIVE RESCUE EQUIPMENT 0.00 1,433.00 -1,433.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-661014 0.00

FIRE APPARATUS & EQUIPMENT RESE… 466,667.00 0.00 466,667.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-661016 466,667.00

RADIO & COMPUTER RESERVE 44,394.00 0.00 44,394.00 0.00 %0.00100-250-661018 44,394.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 158,000.77263.61511,061.00 702,681.00 544,680.23 22.49 %

Department: 250 - FIRE Total: 390,842.05101,947.713,517,461.00 3,709,081.00 3,318,238.95 10.54 %

Department: 526 - PARKS

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 4,079.20 46,850.80 8.01 %2,039.60100-526-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 77,820.00 7,725.62 70,094.38 9.93 %3,775.39100-526-437050 77,820.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 15,233.00 0.00 15,233.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-437051 15,233.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 18,009.00 1,913.34 16,095.66 10.62 %820.36100-526-437055 18,009.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 134,877.00 16,784.98 118,092.02 12.44 %8,058.84100-526-437070 134,877.00

UTILITY WORKER II 55,224.00 0.00 55,224.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-437071 55,224.00

SEASONAL HELP 65,000.00 9,981.51 55,018.49 15.36 %4,512.48100-526-439011 65,000.00

OVERTIME 7,000.00 1,085.22 5,914.78 15.50 %333.54100-526-450100 7,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 566.30 -566.30 0.00 %281.71100-526-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 232,885.00 20,018.83 212,866.17 8.60 %9,667.40100-526-470000 232,885.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 62,155.0029,489.32656,978.00 656,978.00 594,823.00 9.46 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 65,000.00 679.63 64,320.37 1.05 %397.65100-526-500110 65,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 140,000.00 7,977.48 132,022.52 5.70 %4,958.17100-526-520130 140,000.00

HAZARDOUS TREE REMOVAL 60,000.00 2,632.00 57,368.00 4.39 %1,462.00100-526-520132 60,000.00

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND SU… 0.00 19.35 -19.35 0.00 %19.35100-526-520300 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 42,000.00 2,134.02 39,865.98 5.08 %737.79100-526-520320 42,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 3,360.00 330.20 3,029.80 9.83 %280.20100-526-520400 3,360.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 3,500.00 40.40 3,459.60 1.15 %0.00100-526-540220 3,500.00

3 - 5



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 6 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 30,000.00 944.19 29,055.81 3.15 %362.81100-526-540300 30,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 3,000.00 0.00 3,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-526-540400 3,000.00

UTILITIES 60,000.00 6,350.74 53,649.26 10.58 %3,690.66100-526-560100 60,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 21,108.0111,908.63406,860.00 406,860.00 385,751.99 5.19 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 120,200.00 -2,840.25 123,040.25 -2.36 %0.00100-526-660100 120,200.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 68,411.00 3,139.20 65,271.80 4.59 %0.00100-526-676050 68,411.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 298.950.00188,611.00 188,611.00 188,312.05 0.16 %

Department: 526 - PARKS Total: 83,561.9641,397.951,252,449.00 1,252,449.00 1,168,887.04 6.67 %

Department: 527 - RECREATION

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

FIELD MAINTENANCE CREW 32,000.00 4,353.58 27,646.42 13.60 %2,035.62100-527-435110 32,000.00

PLAYGROUND AIDES 28,000.00 8,344.37 19,655.63 29.80 %4,609.00100-527-435120 28,000.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 6,000.00 2,231.14 3,768.86 37.19 %1,129.16100-527-470000 6,000.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 14,929.097,773.7866,000.00 66,000.00 51,070.91 22.62 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

SUMMER PROGRAMS 3,000.00 551.20 2,448.80 18.37 %19.65100-527-510062 3,000.00

SPECIAL EVENTS 5,000.00 463.00 4,537.00 9.26 %0.00100-527-510064 5,000.00

MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 2,200.00 65.76 2,134.24 2.99 %5.17100-527-520136 2,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 1,079.9624.8210,200.00 10,200.00 9,120.04 10.59 %

Department: 527 - RECREATION Total: 16,009.057,798.6076,200.00 76,200.00 60,190.95 21.01 %

Department: 528 - SENIOR CENTER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

SENIOR CENTER MANAGER 171,144.00 13,702.00 157,442.00 8.01 %6,851.00100-528-435210 171,144.00

TRAM DRIVER 61,914.00 5,349.46 56,564.54 8.64 %2,756.02100-528-435240 61,914.00

NUTRITION CATERER 51,595.00 6,142.22 45,452.78 11.90 %3,237.53100-528-435250 51,595.00

CENTER ASSISTANT 95,413.00 8,088.61 87,324.39 8.48 %4,044.31100-528-435280 95,413.00

BUILDING MONITOR 10,000.00 579.39 9,420.61 5.79 %268.76100-528-435295 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 3,405.00 302.07 3,102.93 8.87 %150.43100-528-450500 3,405.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 169,016.00 12,732.71 156,283.29 7.53 %6,366.68100-528-470000 169,016.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 46,896.4623,674.73562,487.00 562,487.00 515,590.54 8.34 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

NUTRITION PROGRAM SUPPLIES 36,000.00 1,813.00 34,187.00 5.04 %755.44100-528-510075 36,000.00

TRAM EXPENSES 12,500.00 749.09 11,750.91 5.99 %440.27100-528-520140 12,500.00

MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT 7,500.00 371.90 7,128.10 4.96 %371.90100-528-520190 7,500.00

BLDG MAINTENANCE & SUPPLIES 16,000.00 580.58 15,419.42 3.63 %66.77100-528-520200 16,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 2,500.00 0.00 2,500.00 0.00 %0.00100-528-520320 2,500.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 11,368.00 399.85 10,968.15 3.52 %324.88100-528-520400 11,368.00

DUES & MEMBERSHIPS 2,800.00 270.00 2,530.00 9.64 %270.00100-528-540200 2,800.00

MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT 100.00 0.00 100.00 0.00 %0.00100-528-540230 100.00

TELEPHONES 7,000.00 561.37 6,438.63 8.02 %303.13100-528-560120 7,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 4,745.792,532.3995,768.00 95,768.00 91,022.21 4.96 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

BUILDING REPAIR 13,000.00 0.00 13,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-528-641010 13,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.0013,000.00 13,000.00 13,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 528 - SENIOR CENTER Total: 51,642.2526,207.12671,255.00 671,255.00 619,612.75 7.69 %

Department: 529 - LIBRARY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

LIBRARY ASSISTANT II 360,000.00 42,626.57 317,373.43 11.84 %21,525.93100-529-435320 360,000.00

ON CALL LIB ASSISTANT 0.00 3,885.09 -3,885.09 0.00 %1,961.85100-529-435392 0.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 278.08 -278.08 0.00 %145.42100-529-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 195,000.00 24,385.23 170,614.77 12.51 %12,285.87100-529-470000 195,000.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 71,174.9735,919.07555,000.00 555,000.00 483,825.03 12.82 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 265,900.00 0.00 265,900.00 0.00 %0.00100-529-500110 265,900.00

3 - 6



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 7 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

COMPUTER/TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 %0.00100-529-500210 25,000.00

NEW BOOKS 95,000.00 5,727.98 89,272.02 6.03 %3,618.02100-529-510081 95,000.00

ADULT/CHILDREN'S PROGRAMS 7,500.00 263.86 7,236.14 3.52 %4.39100-529-510082 7,500.00

READY TO READ GRANT 2,950.00 0.00 2,950.00 0.00 %0.00100-529-510084 2,950.00

LIB FOUNDATION FUNDED PROGRAM 5,000.00 2,487.73 2,512.27 49.75 %0.00100-529-510086 5,000.00

MARKETING 700.00 0.00 700.00 0.00 %0.00100-529-510100 700.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 6,000.00 1,000.22 4,999.78 16.67 %679.42100-529-520400 6,000.00

RENTALS AND LEASES 9,000.00 1,384.13 7,615.87 15.38 %712.22100-529-530100 9,000.00

PUBLICATIONS & SUBSCRIPTIONS 4,500.00 44.00 4,456.00 0.98 %44.00100-529-542000 4,500.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 10,907.925,058.05421,550.00 421,550.00 410,642.08 2.59 %

Department: 529 - LIBRARY Total: 82,082.8940,977.12976,550.00 976,550.00 894,467.11 8.41 %

Department: 600 - DEBT SERVICE

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

DEBT PRINCIPAL 320,399.00 157,709.00 162,690.00 49.22 %0.00100-600-720040 320,399.00

DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST 170,462.00 45,000.00 125,462.00 26.40 %0.00100-600-730040 170,462.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 202,709.000.00490,861.00 490,861.00 288,152.00 41.30 %

Department: 600 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 202,709.000.00490,861.00 490,861.00 288,152.00 41.30 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 1,144,729.00 0.00 1,144,729.00 0.00 %0.00100-990-910000 1,144,729.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.001,144,729.00 1,144,729.00 1,144,729.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.001,144,729.00 1,144,729.00 1,144,729.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 1,792,561.82583,542.5818,834,530.00 19,026,150.00 17,233,588.18 9.42 %

Fund: 100 - GENERAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -1,222,043.13-269,012.130.00 0.00 -1,222,043.13 0.00 %

3 - 7



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 8 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 1,750,000.00 0.00 -1,750,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-309999 1,750,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.001,750,000.00 1,750,000.00 -1,750,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES

STATE HIGHWAY TAXES 1,837,123.00 134,175.40 -1,702,947.60 7.30 %55,044.67205-000-310140 1,837,123.00

RptType: 3110 - STATE SHARED TAXES Total: 134,175.4055,044.671,837,123.00 1,837,123.00 -1,702,947.60 7.30 %

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES

RIGHT OF WAY - TELECOM 436,000.00 26,463.06 -409,536.94 6.07 %12,936.14205-000-312050 436,000.00

RIGHT OF WAY - OTHER 450,000.00 0.00 -450,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-312055 450,000.00

ROW LICENSES & APP FEES 6,000.00 0.00 -6,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-000-312060 6,000.00

RptType: 3120 - RIGHT OF WAY FEES Total: 26,463.0612,936.14892,000.00 892,000.00 -865,536.94 2.97 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

TRANSPORTATION SDC'S 20,000.00 64,215.00 44,215.00 321.08 %64,215.00205-000-314075 20,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 2,600.00 2,600.00 0.00 %2,600.00205-000-314076 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 66,815.0066,815.0020,000.00 20,000.00 46,815.00 334.08 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER ROAD/STREET RECEIPTS 60,000.00 15,759.34 -44,240.66 26.27 %12,639.34205-000-360000 60,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 15,759.3412,639.3460,000.00 60,000.00 -44,240.66 26.27 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 243,212.80147,435.154,559,123.00 4,559,123.00 -4,315,910.20 5.33 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM SEWER FUND 241,667.00 0.00 -241,667.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399730 241,667.00

TRANSFER IN FROM WATER FUND 171,488.00 0.00 -171,488.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399740 171,488.00

TRANSFER IN FROM STORM WATER 79,676.00 0.00 -79,676.00 0.00 %0.00205-910-399750 79,676.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00492,831.00 492,831.00 -492,831.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00492,831.00 492,831.00 -492,831.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 243,212.80147,435.155,051,954.00 5,051,954.00 -4,808,741.20 4.81 %

Expense

Department: 305 - ROAD AND STREET

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 4,079.20 46,850.80 8.01 %2,039.60205-305-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 77,822.00 7,725.60 70,096.40 9.93 %3,775.39205-305-437050 77,822.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 34,173.00 0.00 34,173.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-437051 34,173.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 38,210.00 3,671.35 34,538.65 9.61 %1,845.79205-305-437055 38,210.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 242,705.00 20,790.22 221,914.78 8.57 %10,052.12205-305-437070 242,705.00

SEASONAL HELP 45,000.00 7,088.41 37,911.59 15.75 %2,398.56205-305-439011 45,000.00

OVERTIME 8,000.00 1,118.81 6,881.19 13.99 %436.36205-305-450100 8,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 2,309.00 332.90 1,976.10 14.42 %163.95205-305-450500 2,309.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 301,436.00 24,425.69 277,010.31 8.10 %11,842.70205-305-470000 301,436.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 69,232.1832,554.47800,585.00 800,585.00 731,352.82 8.65 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 109,200.00 1,688.45 107,511.55 1.55 %1,510.47205-305-500110 109,200.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 500,000.00 160,920.80 339,079.20 32.18 %30,361.37205-305-520130 500,000.00

STREET LIGHT MAINTENANCE 165,000.00 12,258.25 152,741.75 7.43 %782.01205-305-520172 165,000.00

TRAFFIC SIGNAL MAINTENANCE 45,000.00 0.00 45,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-520176 45,000.00

STREET SIGN MAINTENANCE 45,000.00 42.10 44,957.90 0.09 %-376.90205-305-520178 45,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 65,000.00 6,435.66 58,564.34 9.90 %4,956.63205-305-520320 65,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 4,160.00 330.20 3,829.80 7.94 %280.20205-305-520400 4,160.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 5,000.00 40.40 4,959.60 0.81 %0.00205-305-540220 5,000.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 45,000.00 2,703.31 42,296.69 6.01 %1,227.94205-305-540300 45,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 5,000.00 217.50 4,782.50 4.35 %121.25205-305-540400 5,000.00

3 - 8



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 9 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

UTILITIES 2,200.00 108.24 2,091.76 4.92 %54.12205-305-560100 2,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 184,744.9138,917.09990,560.00 990,560.00 805,815.09 18.65 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 575,000.00 0.00 575,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-660100 575,000.00

BIKEWAY & SIDEWALK IMPROVEMENT 72,000.00 0.00 72,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-675056 72,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 1,295,659.00 0.00 1,295,659.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-676050 1,295,659.00

RESERVE FROM  SDC'S 327,535.00 0.00 327,535.00 0.00 %0.00205-305-678090 327,535.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.002,270,194.00 2,270,194.00 2,270,194.00 0.00 %

Department: 305 - ROAD AND STREET Total: 253,977.0971,471.564,061,339.00 4,061,339.00 3,807,361.91 6.25 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 81,935.00 0.00 81,935.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899100 81,935.00

TRANSFER OUT TO SEWER FUND 169,560.00 0.00 169,560.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899730 169,560.00

TRANSFER OUT TO WATER 169,560.00 0.00 169,560.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899740 169,560.00

TRANSFER OUT TO STORM 169,560.00 0.00 169,560.00 0.00 %0.00205-920-899750 169,560.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00590,615.00 590,615.00 590,615.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00590,615.00 590,615.00 590,615.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00205-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 253,977.0971,471.565,051,954.00 5,051,954.00 4,797,976.91 5.03 %

Fund: 205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND Surplus (Deficit): -10,764.2975,963.590.00 0.00 -10,764.29 0.00 %

3 - 9



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 10 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 228 - POLICE LEVY FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 165,000.00 0.00 -165,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-309999 165,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00165,000.00 165,000.00 -165,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT LEVY TAX 1,311,323.00 0.00 -1,311,323.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-310020 1,311,323.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 48,000.00 0.00 -48,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-000-310050 48,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 0.000.001,359,323.00 1,359,323.00 -1,359,323.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 7,800.00 154.63 -7,645.37 1.98 %154.63228-000-330100 7,800.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 154.63154.637,800.00 7,800.00 -7,645.37 1.98 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 154.63154.631,532,123.00 1,532,123.00 -1,531,968.37 0.01 %

Revenue Total: 154.63154.631,532,123.00 1,532,123.00 -1,531,968.37 0.01 %

Expense

Department: 245 - POLICE LEVY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

POLICE OFFICER 155,208.00 14,547.05 140,660.95 9.37 %6,783.72228-245-432160 155,208.00

SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER 155,208.00 14,306.47 140,901.53 9.22 %6,814.37228-245-432165 155,208.00

MUNICIPAL ORDINANCE SPECIALIST 127,715.00 11,080.15 116,634.85 8.68 %5,113.00228-245-432180 127,715.00

EXECUTIVE ASSISTANT 122,467.00 10,226.00 112,241.00 8.35 %5,113.00228-245-432195 122,467.00

OVERTIME 80,000.00 12,231.31 67,768.69 15.29 %7,081.47228-245-450100 80,000.00

HOLIDAY PAY 0.00 170.74 -170.74 0.00 %0.00228-245-450200 0.00

PROFICIENCY PAY 30,385.00 2,357.57 28,027.43 7.76 %1,118.97228-245-450300 30,385.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 457.90 -457.90 0.00 %238.94228-245-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 482,308.00 39,231.13 443,076.87 8.13 %19,454.51228-245-470000 482,308.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 104,608.3251,717.981,153,291.00 1,153,291.00 1,048,682.68 9.07 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

SHARE COST CCOM DISPATCH 295,000.00 23,739.40 271,260.60 8.05 %11,869.66228-245-500498 295,000.00

SRO EXPENSES 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-510032 4,000.00

K-9 EXPENSES 14,000.00 566.91 13,433.09 4.05 %0.00228-245-510040 14,000.00

SWAT PROGRAM 8,200.00 0.00 8,200.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-510041 8,200.00

MAINTENANCE, REPAIR & OPERATION 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00228-245-520310 20,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 24,306.3111,869.66341,200.00 341,200.00 316,893.69 7.12 %

Department: 245 - POLICE LEVY Total: 128,914.6363,587.641,494,491.00 1,494,491.00 1,365,576.37 8.63 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 24,316.00 0.00 24,316.00 0.00 %0.00228-920-899100 24,316.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.0024,316.00 24,316.00 24,316.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.0024,316.00 24,316.00 24,316.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 13,316.00 0.00 13,316.00 0.00 %0.00228-990-910000 13,316.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.0013,316.00 13,316.00 13,316.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.0013,316.00 13,316.00 13,316.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 128,914.6363,587.641,532,123.00 1,532,123.00 1,403,208.37 8.41 %

Fund: 228 - POLICE LEVY FUND Surplus (Deficit): -128,760.00-63,433.010.00 0.00 -128,760.00 0.00 %

3 - 10



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 11 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 229 - FIRE LEVY FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 451,000.00 0.00 -451,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-309999 451,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00451,000.00 451,000.00 -451,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT LEVY TAX 597,722.00 0.00 -597,722.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-310020 597,722.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 18,000.00 0.00 -18,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-000-310050 18,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 0.000.00615,722.00 615,722.00 -615,722.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 12,000.00 1,076.83 -10,923.17 8.97 %1,076.83229-000-330100 12,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 1,076.831,076.8312,000.00 12,000.00 -10,923.17 8.97 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 1,076.831,076.831,078,722.00 1,078,722.00 -1,077,645.17 0.10 %

Revenue Total: 1,076.831,076.831,078,722.00 1,078,722.00 -1,077,645.17 0.10 %

Expense

Department: 255 - FIRE LEVY

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

TRAINING CAPTAIN 160,532.00 12,430.00 148,102.00 7.74 %6,215.00229-255-432230 160,532.00

PART TIME 46,000.00 3,573.60 42,426.40 7.77 %1,810.12229-255-439010 46,000.00

SEASONAL HELP 20,000.00 6,013.99 13,986.01 30.07 %3,925.30229-255-439011 20,000.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 124,471.00 12,267.54 112,203.46 9.86 %6,205.28229-255-470000 124,471.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 34,285.1318,155.70351,003.00 351,003.00 316,717.87 9.77 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 20,000.00 1,000.00 19,000.00 5.00 %1,000.00229-255-500110 20,000.00

SCBA & TURNOUT MAINTENANCE 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-520126 20,000.00

EQUIPMENT TESTING & SERVICE 20,000.00 1,095.00 18,905.00 5.48 %0.00229-255-520365 20,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 10,000.00 0.00 10,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-520400 10,000.00

CELL PHONES, PAGERS, RADIOS 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-560110 20,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 2,095.001,000.0090,000.00 90,000.00 87,905.00 2.33 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

TRAINING FACILITY 0.00 548.49 -548.49 0.00 %0.00229-255-641030 0.00

FIRE, EMS & EXTRICATION EQUIPME… 77,000.00 1,017.84 75,982.16 1.32 %0.00229-255-660120 77,000.00

ROUTINE EQUIP REPLACEMENT 50,000.00 0.00 50,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-661010 50,000.00

TURN-OUTS & SCBA RESERVE 55,000.00 0.00 55,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-661012 55,000.00

TECH RESCUE EQUIPMENT 25,000.00 0.00 25,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-661014 25,000.00

FIRE APPARATUS & EQUIPMENT RESE… 325,000.00 0.00 325,000.00 0.00 %0.00229-255-661016 325,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 1,566.330.00532,000.00 532,000.00 530,433.67 0.29 %

Department: 255 - FIRE LEVY Total: 37,946.4619,155.70973,003.00 973,003.00 935,056.54 3.90 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO  GENERAL FUND 4,863.00 0.00 4,863.00 0.00 %0.00229-920-899100 4,863.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.004,863.00 4,863.00 4,863.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.004,863.00 4,863.00 4,863.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 100,856.00 0.00 100,856.00 0.00 %0.00229-990-910000 100,856.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00100,856.00 100,856.00 100,856.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00100,856.00 100,856.00 100,856.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 37,946.4619,155.701,078,722.00 1,078,722.00 1,040,775.54 3.52 %

Fund: 229 - FIRE LEVY FUND Surplus (Deficit): -36,869.63-18,078.870.00 0.00 -36,869.63 0.00 %

3 - 11



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 12 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 307 - CIVIC BUILDINGS CAPITAL FUND (NEW)

Revenue

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM URBAN RENEWAL 12,766,000.00 0.00 -12,766,000.00 0.00 %0.00307-910-399390 12,766,000.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 -12,766,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 -12,766,000.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 0.000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 -12,766,000.00 0.00 %

Expense

Department: 307 - CIVIC CENTER PROJECT

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

PROJECT MGMT-OWNERS REP 122,677.00 10,640.50 112,036.50 8.67 %10,640.50307-307-620320 0.00

OTHER PROF. SERVICES 25.00 101.25 -76.25 405.00 %101.25307-307-620325 0.00

PROJECT LEGAL COSTS 3,828.00 258.50 3,569.50 6.75 %258.50307-307-620330 0.00

FINANCE CONSULTING 20,000.00 0.00 20,000.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620360 0.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 11,000.2511,000.250.00 146,530.00 135,529.75 7.51 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

CONSTRUCTION - PHASE 1 9,717.00 0.00 9,717.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620100 0.00

CONSTRUCTION - PHASE 2 10,011,612.00 780,588.00 9,231,024.00 7.80 %780,588.00307-307-620110 12,766,000.00

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS 12,020.00 0.00 12,020.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620323 0.00

TESTING & SPECIAL INSP. 39,904.00 6,216.21 33,687.79 15.58 %0.00307-307-620340 0.00

LAND ACQUISITION/SITE PREP 957.00 0.00 957.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620365 0.00

ADD ALTERNATES 212,162.00 0.00 212,162.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620370 0.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 786,804.21780,588.0012,766,000.00 10,286,372.00 9,499,567.79 7.65 %

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

PROJECT CONTINGENCY 149,000.00 0.00 149,000.00 0.00 %0.00307-307-620390 0.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.000.00 149,000.00 149,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 307 - CIVIC CENTER PROJECT Total: 797,804.46791,588.2512,766,000.00 10,581,902.00 9,784,097.54 7.54 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS (Rollover Bala… 2,184,098.00 0.00 2,184,098.00 0.00 %0.00307-990-910000 0.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.000.00 2,184,098.00 2,184,098.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.000.00 2,184,098.00 2,184,098.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 797,804.46791,588.2512,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 11,968,195.54 6.25 %

Fund: 307 - CIVIC BUILDINGS CAPITAL FUND (NEW) Surplus (Deficit): -797,804.46-791,588.250.00 0.00 -797,804.46 0.00 %

3 - 12



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 13 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 14,756,000.00 0.00 -14,756,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-309999 14,756,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.0014,756,000.00 14,756,000.00 -14,756,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES

CURRENT YEAR TAXES 1,870,000.00 0.00 -1,870,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-310010 1,870,000.00

PRIOR YEAR TAXES 20,000.00 0.00 -20,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-000-310050 20,000.00

RptType: 3100 - LOCAL TAXES Total: 0.000.001,890,000.00 1,890,000.00 -1,890,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST

INTEREST 20,000.00 55,901.54 35,901.54 279.51 %26,820.84390-000-330100 20,000.00

RptType: 3301 - INTEREST Total: 55,901.5426,820.8420,000.00 20,000.00 35,901.54 279.51 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 55,901.5426,820.8416,666,000.00 16,666,000.00 -16,610,098.46 0.34 %

Revenue Total: 55,901.5426,820.8416,666,000.00 16,666,000.00 -16,610,098.46 0.34 %

Expense

Department: 410 - URBAN RENEWAL

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 4,000.00 0.00 4,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-410-500110 4,000.00

MUNICIPAL AUDIT CONTRACT 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-410-500120 15,000.00

FIRE & LIABILITY INSURANCE 30,000.00 15,000.00 15,000.00 50.00 %0.00390-410-530000 30,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 15,000.000.0049,000.00 49,000.00 34,000.00 30.61 %

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

DEBT SERVICE PRINCIPAL 876,366.00 431,573.00 444,793.00 49.25 %0.00390-410-730030 876,366.00

DEBT SERVICE - INTEREST 201,234.00 56,810.00 144,424.00 28.23 %0.00390-410-730040 201,234.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 488,383.000.001,077,600.00 1,077,600.00 589,217.00 45.32 %

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 490,861.00 202,709.00 288,152.00 41.30 %0.00390-410-899100 490,861.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 202,709.000.00490,861.00 490,861.00 288,152.00 41.30 %

Department: 410 - URBAN RENEWAL Total: 706,092.000.001,617,461.00 1,617,461.00 911,369.00 43.65 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO CIVIC BUILDINGS … 12,766,000.00 0.00 12,766,000.00 0.00 %0.00390-920-899307 12,766,000.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.0012,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 12,766,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 2,282,539.00 0.00 2,282,539.00 0.00 %0.00390-990-910000 2,282,539.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.002,282,539.00 2,282,539.00 2,282,539.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.002,282,539.00 2,282,539.00 2,282,539.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 706,092.000.0016,666,000.00 16,666,000.00 15,959,908.00 4.24 %

Fund: 390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND Surplus (Deficit): -650,190.4626,820.840.00 0.00 -650,190.46 0.00 %

3 - 13



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 14 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 730 - SEWER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 936,000.00 0.00 -936,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-309999 936,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00936,000.00 936,000.00 -936,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

OAK LODGE SANITARY 1,349,749.00 106,222.97 -1,243,526.03 7.87 %53,109.43730-000-314050 1,349,749.00

TRI-CITY SERVICE DISTRICT 3,473,582.00 319,204.06 -3,154,377.94 9.19 %162,255.21730-000-314055 3,473,582.00

CONNECTION FEES 10,000.00 0.00 -10,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-000-314080 10,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 425,427.03215,364.644,833,331.00 4,833,331.00 -4,407,903.97 8.80 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

SEWER SDCS 15,000.00 49,890.00 34,890.00 332.60 %49,655.00730-000-314110 15,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 2,619.00 2,619.00 0.00 %2,619.00730-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 52,509.0052,274.0015,000.00 15,000.00 37,509.00 350.06 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER SEWER RECEIPTS 2,000.00 10,599.34 8,599.34 529.97 %10,399.34730-000-360000 2,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 10,599.3410,399.342,000.00 2,000.00 8,599.34 529.97 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 488,535.37278,037.985,786,331.00 5,786,331.00 -5,297,795.63 8.44 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET … 169,560.00 0.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %0.00730-910-399205 169,560.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 488,535.37278,037.985,955,891.00 5,955,891.00 -5,467,355.63 8.20 %

Expense

Department: 703 - SEWER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 27,611.00 2,106.00 25,505.00 7.63 %1,053.00730-703-431500 27,611.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 4,079.20 46,850.80 8.01 %2,039.60730-703-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 59,895.00 5,622.23 54,272.77 9.39 %2,545.26730-703-437050 59,895.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 34,173.00 0.00 34,173.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-437051 34,173.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 40,520.00 3,671.35 36,848.65 9.06 %1,845.79730-703-437055 40,520.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 143,225.00 15,469.63 127,755.37 10.80 %7,337.50730-703-437070 143,225.00

UTILITY WORKER II 25,272.00 0.00 25,272.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-437071 25,272.00

SEASONAL HELP 35,000.00 3,460.80 31,539.20 9.89 %795.36730-703-439011 35,000.00

OVERTIME 10,000.00 838.11 9,161.89 8.38 %317.47730-703-450100 10,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 393.36 -393.36 0.00 %193.28730-703-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 249,431.00 17,609.63 231,821.37 7.06 %8,425.35730-703-470000 249,431.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 53,250.3124,552.61676,057.00 676,057.00 622,806.69 7.88 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 110,000.00 2,645.73 107,354.27 2.41 %2,434.54730-703-500110 110,000.00

SDC PASS THROUGH TO TCSD 15,000.00 0.00 15,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-500452 15,000.00

OAK LODGE SANITARY DISTRICT 1,068,513.00 85,032.80 983,480.20 7.96 %85,032.80730-703-500456 1,068,513.00

TRI-CITY SERVICE DISTRICT 2,583,000.00 201,997.12 2,381,002.88 7.82 %101,010.92730-703-500458 2,583,000.00

BANK CHARGES 0.00 1,657.34 -1,657.34 0.00 %858.99730-703-520120 0.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 105,000.00 647.75 104,352.25 0.62 %627.26730-703-520130 105,000.00

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND SU… 0.00 19.35 -19.35 0.00 %19.35730-703-520300 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 55,000.00 1,625.78 53,374.22 2.96 %987.44730-703-520320 55,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 4,160.00 788.91 3,371.09 18.96 %505.80730-703-520400 4,160.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 16,000.00 1,385.76 14,614.24 8.66 %776.96730-703-520430 16,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 7,500.00 40.40 7,459.60 0.54 %0.00730-703-540220 7,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 21,000.00 4,251.81 16,748.19 20.25 %1,340.91730-703-540300 21,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 5,000.00 217.50 4,782.50 4.35 %121.25730-703-540400 5,000.00

3 - 14



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 15 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

UTILITIES 3,200.00 211.60 2,988.40 6.61 %105.36730-703-560100 3,200.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 300,521.85193,821.583,993,373.00 3,993,373.00 3,692,851.15 7.53 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 662,000.00 0.00 662,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-660100 662,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 38,046.00 0.00 38,046.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-676050 38,046.00

RESERVE FROM SDC'S 249,000.00 0.00 249,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-703-678090 249,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.00949,046.00 949,046.00 949,046.00 0.00 %

Department: 703 - SEWER Total: 353,772.16218,374.195,618,476.00 5,618,476.00 5,264,703.84 6.30 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 60,748.00 0.00 60,748.00 0.00 %0.00730-920-899100 60,748.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET F… 241,667.00 0.00 241,667.00 0.00 %0.00730-920-899205 241,667.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00302,415.00 302,415.00 302,415.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00302,415.00 302,415.00 302,415.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00 %0.00730-990-910000 35,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.0035,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.0035,000.00 35,000.00 35,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 353,772.16218,374.195,955,891.00 5,955,891.00 5,602,118.84 5.94 %

Fund: 730 - SEWER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 134,763.2159,663.790.00 0.00 134,763.21 0.00 %

3 - 15



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 16 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 740 - WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 2,009,000.00 0.00 -2,009,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-000-309999 2,009,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.002,009,000.00 2,009,000.00 -2,009,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

WATER SERVICE REVENUE 3,419,750.00 397,597.49 -3,022,152.51 11.63 %213,444.75740-000-314060 3,419,750.00

WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 10,000.00 3,450.00 -6,550.00 34.50 %3,450.00740-000-314080 10,000.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 401,047.49216,894.753,429,750.00 3,429,750.00 -3,028,702.51 11.69 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

WATER SDC'S 10,000.00 30,662.48 20,662.48 306.62 %29,402.36740-000-314110 10,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 2,619.64 2,619.64 0.00 %2,619.64740-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 33,282.1232,022.0010,000.00 10,000.00 23,282.12 332.82 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER WATER RECEIPTS 20,000.00 10,289.32 -9,710.68 51.45 %10,289.34740-000-360000 20,000.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 10,289.3210,289.3420,000.00 20,000.00 -9,710.68 51.45 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 444,618.93259,206.095,468,750.00 5,468,750.00 -5,024,131.07 8.13 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET … 169,560.00 0.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %0.00740-910-399205 169,560.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 444,618.93259,206.095,638,310.00 5,638,310.00 -5,193,691.07 7.89 %

Expense

Department: 704 - WATER

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 33,133.00 2,527.20 30,605.80 7.63 %1,263.60740-704-431500 33,133.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 4,079.20 46,850.80 8.01 %2,039.60740-704-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 61,712.00 5,896.89 55,815.11 9.56 %2,596.89740-704-437050 61,712.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 34,172.00 0.00 34,172.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-437051 34,172.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 40,520.00 3,671.35 36,848.65 9.06 %1,845.79740-704-437055 40,520.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 239,422.00 25,197.57 214,224.43 10.52 %12,093.60740-704-437070 239,422.00

UTILITY WORKER II 25,272.00 0.00 25,272.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-437071 25,272.00

SEASONAL HELP 35,000.00 0.00 35,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-439011 35,000.00

OVERTIME 15,000.00 1,180.97 13,819.03 7.87 %389.12740-704-450100 15,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 418.65 -418.65 0.00 %205.42740-704-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 324,712.00 23,640.23 301,071.77 7.28 %11,451.38740-704-470000 324,712.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 66,612.0631,885.40859,873.00 859,873.00 793,260.94 7.75 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 135,000.00 13,684.98 121,315.02 10.14 %2,480.30740-704-500110 135,000.00

METER READING CONTRACT 50,000.00 4,264.36 45,735.64 8.53 %2,132.18740-704-500240 50,000.00

WHOLESALE WATER 1,304,000.00 54,755.19 1,249,244.81 4.20 %53,773.35740-704-500425 1,304,000.00

BANK CHARGES 13,000.00 1,377.34 11,622.66 10.59 %684.00740-704-520120 13,000.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 310,000.00 14,554.32 295,445.68 4.69 %6,999.58740-704-520130 310,000.00

LABORATORY WATER TESTS 20,000.00 2,851.00 17,149.00 14.26 %2,671.00740-704-520162 20,000.00

FIRE HYDRANT MAINTENANCE & REP… 30,000.00 0.00 30,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-520165 30,000.00

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND SU… 0.00 15.45 -15.45 0.00 %15.45740-704-520300 0.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 45,000.00 3,033.86 41,966.14 6.74 %2,399.33740-704-520320 45,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 4,660.00 375.34 4,284.66 8.05 %325.34740-704-520400 4,660.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 12,000.00 1,365.75 10,634.25 11.38 %756.96740-704-520430 12,000.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 10,500.00 142.90 10,357.10 1.36 %102.50740-704-540220 10,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 22,000.00 3,406.96 18,593.04 15.49 %2,680.65740-704-540300 22,000.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 10,000.00 217.50 9,782.50 2.18 %121.25740-704-540400 10,000.00

3 - 16



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 17 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

UTILITIES 40,000.00 3,202.44 36,797.56 8.01 %1,637.53740-704-560100 40,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 103,247.3976,779.422,006,160.00 2,006,160.00 1,902,912.61 5.15 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 200,000.00 0.00 200,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-660100 200,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 1,103,762.00 0.00 1,103,762.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-676050 1,103,762.00

RESERVE FROM SDC'S 474,000.00 0.00 474,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-678090 474,000.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.001,777,762.00 1,777,762.00 1,777,762.00 0.00 %

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE

2005 BONDED DEBT/PRINCIPAL 317,000.00 0.00 317,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-720040 317,000.00

2005 BONDED DEBT/INTEREST 40,124.00 0.00 40,124.00 0.00 %0.00740-704-730040 40,124.00

RptCategory: 70 - DEBT SERVICE Total: 0.000.00357,124.00 357,124.00 357,124.00 0.00 %

Department: 704 - WATER Total: 169,859.45108,664.825,000,919.00 5,000,919.00 4,831,059.55 3.40 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 65,903.00 0.00 65,903.00 0.00 %0.00740-920-899100 65,903.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET F… 171,488.00 0.00 171,488.00 0.00 %0.00740-920-899205 171,488.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00237,391.00 237,391.00 237,391.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00237,391.00 237,391.00 237,391.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 400,000.00 0.00 400,000.00 0.00 %0.00740-990-910000 400,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00400,000.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 169,859.45108,664.825,638,310.00 5,638,310.00 5,468,450.55 3.01 %

Fund: 740 - WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 274,759.48150,541.270.00 0.00 274,759.48 0.00 %

3 - 17



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 18 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 750 - STORM WATER FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 265,000.00 0.00 -265,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-000-309999 265,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.00265,000.00 265,000.00 -265,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES

STORM REVENUE 1,593,530.00 115,745.04 -1,477,784.96 7.26 %57,962.77750-000-314060 1,593,530.00

RptType: 3140 - CHARGES FOR SERVICES Total: 115,745.0457,962.771,593,530.00 1,593,530.00 -1,477,784.96 7.26 %

RptType: 3141 - SDC

STORMWATER SDC'S 10,000.00 39,061.37 29,061.37 390.61 %39,061.37750-000-314110 10,000.00

SDC Reimbursement Fee 0.00 4,123.00 4,123.00 0.00 %4,123.00750-000-314111 0.00

RptType: 3141 - SDC Total: 43,184.3743,184.3710,000.00 10,000.00 33,184.37 431.84 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER STORM FUND RESOURCES 0.00 10,289.34 10,289.34 0.00 %10,289.34750-000-360000 0.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 10,289.3410,289.340.00 0.00 10,289.34 0.00 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 169,218.75111,436.481,868,530.00 1,868,530.00 -1,699,311.25 9.06 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN

TRANSFER IN FROM ROAD & STREET … 169,560.00 0.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %0.00750-910-399205 169,560.00

RptType: 3990 - TRANSFERS IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Department: 910 - TRANSFER IN Total: 0.000.00169,560.00 169,560.00 -169,560.00 0.00 %

Revenue Total: 169,218.75111,436.482,038,090.00 2,038,090.00 -1,868,871.25 8.30 %

Expense

Department: 705 - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES

ACCOUNTING CLERK 27,195.00 2,106.00 25,089.00 7.74 %1,053.00750-705-431500 27,195.00

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 50,930.00 4,079.20 46,850.80 8.01 %2,039.60750-705-437049 50,930.00

PUBLIC WORKS SUPERVISOR 59,897.00 5,466.95 54,430.05 9.13 %2,545.26750-705-437050 59,897.00

PW OPERATIONS MANAGER 34,172.00 0.00 34,172.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-437051 34,172.00

PW ADMIN ASSISTANT 40,519.00 3,671.33 36,847.67 9.06 %1,845.77750-705-437055 40,519.00

UTILITY WORKER, JOURNEY 110,447.00 4,286.34 106,160.66 3.88 %4,286.34750-705-437070 110,447.00

SEASONAL HELP 35,000.00 5,432.33 29,567.67 15.52 %2,734.05750-705-439011 35,000.00

OVERTIME 4,000.00 220.06 3,779.94 5.50 %86.50750-705-450100 4,000.00

CAREER RECOGNITION PAY 0.00 52.97 -52.97 0.00 %24.36750-705-450500 0.00

ASSOCIATED PAYROLL COSTS 200,629.00 8,556.02 192,072.98 4.26 %4,477.54750-705-470000 200,629.00

RptCategory: 40 - PERSONNEL SERVICES Total: 33,871.2019,092.42562,789.00 562,789.00 528,917.80 6.02 %

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CONTRACTUAL & PROFESSIONAL SER… 110,000.00 3,543.83 106,456.17 3.22 %3,332.70750-705-500110 110,000.00

BANK CHARGES 0.00 1,657.34 -1,657.34 0.00 %859.00750-705-520120 0.00

OPERATIONS, MAINTENANCE & REPA… 65,000.00 667.99 64,332.01 1.03 %647.49750-705-520130 65,000.00

FLEET FUEL, MAINTENANCE & REPAIR 22,000.00 829.26 21,170.74 3.77 %236.66750-705-520320 22,000.00

OFFICE SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 5,160.00 375.21 4,784.79 7.27 %325.23750-705-520400 5,160.00

UTILITY BILLS & POSTAGE 15,800.00 1,366.17 14,433.83 8.65 %757.19750-705-520430 15,800.00

TRAVEL, CONFERENCES & TRAINING 5,500.00 40.40 5,459.60 0.73 %0.00750-705-540220 5,500.00

SMALL TOOLS, EQUIPMENT & SAFETY… 11,500.00 2,652.79 8,847.21 23.07 %1,360.21750-705-540300 11,500.00

DUMPING, HAULING, GARBAGE 3,000.00 217.50 2,782.50 7.25 %121.25750-705-540400 3,000.00

UTILITIES 1,000.00 108.24 891.76 10.82 %54.12750-705-560100 1,000.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 11,458.737,693.85238,960.00 238,960.00 227,501.27 4.80 %

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT RESERVES 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-660100 100,000.00

SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS & PROJECTS 895,917.00 0.00 895,917.00 0.00 %0.00750-705-676050 895,917.00

RptCategory: 60 - CAPITAL OUTLAY Total: 0.000.00995,917.00 995,917.00 995,917.00 0.00 %

Department: 705 - PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR Total: 45,329.9326,786.271,797,666.00 1,797,666.00 1,752,336.07 2.52 %

3 - 18



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 19 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT

TRANSFER OUT TO GENERAL FUND 60,748.00 0.00 60,748.00 0.00 %0.00750-920-899100 60,748.00

TRANSFER OUT TO ROAD & STREET F… 79,676.00 0.00 79,676.00 0.00 %0.00750-920-899205 79,676.00

RptCategory: 89 - TRANSFERS OUT Total: 0.000.00140,424.00 140,424.00 140,424.00 0.00 %

Department: 920 - TRANSFER OUT Total: 0.000.00140,424.00 140,424.00 140,424.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 100,000.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 %0.00750-990-910000 100,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.00100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.00100,000.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 45,329.9326,786.272,038,090.00 2,038,090.00 1,992,760.07 2.22 %

Fund: 750 - STORM WATER FUND Surplus (Deficit): 123,888.8284,650.210.00 0.00 123,888.82 0.00 %

3 - 19



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 20 of 21

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)
Percent

Used
Current

Total Budget
Period

Activity
Original

Total Budget

Fund: 801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND

Revenue

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL.

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 40,000.00 0.00 -40,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-000-309999 40,000.00

RptType: 3000 - BEG FUND BAL. Total: 0.000.0040,000.00 40,000.00 -40,000.00 0.00 %

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES

CITY OF GLADSTONE FINES/FEES 700,000.00 39,657.29 -660,342.71 5.67 %17,307.83801-000-326020 700,000.00

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FINES/FEES 26,000.00 1,286.51 -24,713.49 4.95 %449.42801-000-326030 26,000.00

STATE OF OREGON FINES/FEES 88,000.00 5,235.17 -82,764.83 5.95 %2,334.96801-000-326040 88,000.00

RESTITUTION 6,000.00 0.00 -6,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-000-326050 6,000.00

BOND 5,000.00 1,043.43 -3,956.57 20.87 %3,306.07801-000-326060 5,000.00

RptType: 3260 - FINES AND FORFEITURES Total: 47,222.4023,398.28825,000.00 825,000.00 -777,777.60 5.72 %

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS

ALL OTHER COURT FEES 0.00 161.17 161.17 0.00 %130.19801-000-360000 0.00

RptType: 3600 - MISCELLANEOUS Total: 161.17130.190.00 0.00 161.17 0.00 %

Department: 000 - UNDESIGNATED / NON DEPARTMENTAL Total: 47,383.5723,528.47865,000.00 865,000.00 -817,616.43 5.48 %

Revenue Total: 47,383.5723,528.47865,000.00 865,000.00 -817,616.43 5.48 %

Expense

Department: 220 - COURT

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES

CITY OF GLADSTONE FINES & FEES 690,000.00 47,686.46 642,313.54 6.91 %22,349.46801-220-500500 690,000.00

CLACKAMAS COUNTY FINES & FEES 22,000.00 1,473.55 20,526.45 6.70 %837.09801-220-500510 22,000.00

STATE OF OREGON FINES & FEES 88,000.00 7,013.30 80,986.70 7.97 %2,900.21801-220-500520 88,000.00

RESTITUTION 6,000.00 0.00 6,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-220-500530 6,000.00

BOND - COURT 5,000.00 0.00 5,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-220-500540 5,000.00

ALL OTHER FEES & FINES 0.00 92.61 -92.61 0.00 %30.98801-220-500550 0.00

RptCategory: 50 - MATERIAL AND SERVICES Total: 56,265.9226,117.74811,000.00 811,000.00 754,734.08 6.94 %

Department: 220 - COURT Total: 56,265.9226,117.74811,000.00 811,000.00 754,734.08 6.94 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER

CONTINGENCY FUNDS 54,000.00 0.00 54,000.00 0.00 %0.00801-990-910000 54,000.00

RptCategory: 90 - OTHER Total: 0.000.0054,000.00 54,000.00 54,000.00 0.00 %

Department: 990 - CONTINGENCY Total: 0.000.0054,000.00 54,000.00 54,000.00 0.00 %

Expense Total: 56,265.9226,117.74865,000.00 865,000.00 808,734.08 6.50 %

Fund: 801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND Surplus (Deficit): -8,882.35-2,589.270.00 0.00 -8,882.35 0.00 %

Report Surplus (Deficit): -747,061.83 -2,321,902.810.00 0.00 -2,321,902.81 0.00 %

3 - 20



Budget Report For Fiscal: 2019-2020 Period Ending: 08/31/2019

9/25/2019 4:07:54 PM Page 21 of 21

Fund Summary

Fiscal
Activity

Variance
Favorable

(Unfavorable)Fund
Period

Activity
Current

Total Budget
Original

Total Budget

100 - GENERAL FUND -1,222,043.13-269,012.130.00 0.00 -1,222,043.13

205 - ROAD AND STREET FUND -10,764.2975,963.590.00 0.00 -10,764.29

228 - POLICE LEVY FUND -128,760.00-63,433.010.00 0.00 -128,760.00

229 - FIRE LEVY FUND -36,869.63-18,078.870.00 0.00 -36,869.63

307 - CIVIC BUILDINGS CAPITAL FUND (NEW) -797,804.46-791,588.250.00 0.00 -797,804.46

390 - URBAN RENEWAL FUND -650,190.4626,820.840.00 0.00 -650,190.46

730 - SEWER FUND 134,763.2159,663.790.00 0.00 134,763.21

740 - WATER FUND 274,759.48150,541.270.00 0.00 274,759.48

750 - STORM WATER FUND 123,888.8284,650.210.00 0.00 123,888.82

801 - MUNICIPAL COURT TRUST FUND -8,882.35-2,589.270.00 0.00 -8,882.35

Report Surplus (Deficit): -747,061.83 -2,321,902.810.00 0.00 -2,321,902.81

3 - 21



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

08/01/2019 87613 Aramark 30.28                   Mat/Coverall Rental - PW

08/01/2019 87614 Brown & Caldwell 534.50                Professional Services - PW

08/01/2019 87615 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 907.31                Copier Lease/Usage - Admin

08/01/2019 87616 Cascade Centers, Inc. 55.20                   Employee Assistance Program - FD

08/01/2019 87617 CIS Trust 187,985.56         Property/Liability Ins - Admin

08/01/2019 87618 Clackamas 800 Radio Group 34,400.00           Annual Radio System Costs - FD

08/01/2019 87619 Clackamas County Finance Department 7,949.26             Planning/Signal Maintenance - Admin/PW

08/01/2019 87620 Clackamas Fire District #1 6,138.57             Vehicle Maintenance/Uniforms - FD

08/01/2019 87621 **Void** -                       

08/01/2019 87622 Curtis, L. N. Co. 96.66                   Uniforms - PD

08/01/2019 87623 Extreme Products 13.98                   Supplies - PD

08/01/2019 87624 Foremost Promotions 2,718.32             Fire Prevention Promotional Items - FD

08/01/2019 87625 R-Supply 195.08                Paper Products - FD

08/01/2019 87626 Maxwell Rentals 1,000.00             Apartment Rental - FD

08/01/2019 87627 Mr. Belvedere's Janitorial 2,170.00             Janitorial - Admin/SC/LIB/PW

08/01/2019 87628 Municipal Emergency Svcs 156,183.16         Equipment Replacement - FD

08/01/2019 87629 Northwest Natural Gas 119.69                Natural Gas Usage - All Depts

08/01/2019 87630 Oregon, State of, Notary Division 40.00                   Notary Fee - PD

08/01/2019 87631 Pacific Mobile Structures, Inc. 466.00                Office Rental - PW

08/01/2019 87632 PBS Engineering & Environmental Inc. 2,394.49             Geotechnical Service - Civic

08/01/2019 87633 Platt Electric Supply 7.60                     Parts - FD

08/01/2019 87634 Referral Refrigeration Inc. 225.00                Refrigeration Repair - SC

08/01/2019 87635 RH Media Services LLC 8,800.00             IT Service - Admin

08/01/2019 87636 Rodda Paint 373.86                Paint - FD

08/01/2019 87637 Schumaker & Bernstein 650.00                Indigent Defense - CT

08/01/2019 87638 Sierra Springs 203.98                Drinking Water - PD/Admin

08/01/2019 87639 Sign Guy 55.00                   Banner Printing - SC

08/01/2019 87640 Sisul Engineering 1,383.75             Professional Services - PW

08/01/2019 87641 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 4,135.19             Gasoline - PD/FD/PW/SC

08/01/2019 87642 USIA Underwater Equipment Sales 1,433.00             Diver Gear - FD

08/01/2019 87643 Water Environment Services 202,431.07         Sewer Billing - PW

08/01/2019 87644 Wilsonville Lock & Security 78.00                   Key Fob Parts - FD

08/02/2019 87645 - 87646 UB Refunds 229.39                UB Refunds

08/02/2019 87647 Baker & Tayloer 7,840.80             New Books - LIB

08/02/2019 87648 Midwest Tape 1,674.60             Non-Print Items - LIB

08/02/2019 87649 Jill Tate 457.50                Transcription - Admin

08/13/2019 87650 Adventist Health Occupational Medicine 1,280.00             Physicals/Lab Tests - FD

08/13/2019 87651 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 154.89                Copier Lease/Usage - FD

08/13/2019 87652 C-More Pipe Services 4,350.00             T-Liner Repair - PW

08/13/2019 87653 Fisher Scientific 23,869.12           Handheld Narcotics Analyzer - PD

08/13/2019 87654 Life-Assist Inc 793.52                First Responder Supplies - FD

08/13/2019 87655 Lynn Peavey Company 231.20                Evidence Tape - PD

08/13/2019 87656 North American Rescue, LLC 6,667.72             First Resonder Supplies - FD

08/13/2019 87657 Oak Lodge Water Services 981.84                Water Purchases - PW

08/13/2019 87658 Pacific Mobile Structures, Inc. 1,398.00             Mobile Office Rental - PW

08/13/2019 87659 Portland General Electric 11,650.60           Electric Usage - All Depts

08/13/2019 87660 Portland Road & Driveway Co., Inc. 285.00                Dump Fees - PW

08/13/2019 87661 Solutions Yes 30.54                   Copier Usage - IT

08/13/2019 87662 Verizon Wireless 2,850.21             Cell Phone Usage - All Depts

08/14/2019 87663 Veronica Biehner 240.00                Library Program (Reprint) - LIB

08/15/2019 87664 Accurate Electric of Oregon  I 1,022.53             Lighting Repairs - LIB

08/15/2019 87665 Alexin Analytical Laboratories 180.00                Drinkin Water Tests - PW

08/15/2019 87666 Aloha Produce Inc. 27.99                   Produce - SC

08/15/2019 87667 American Medical Response 200.00                Blood Draw - PD

08/15/2019 87668 Aramark 60.56                   Mat/Coverall Rental - PW

08/15/2019 87669 Backflow Management Inc 56.00                   Letters Mailed - PW

08/15/2019 87670 Bateman Community Living 645.87                Frozen Meals/Bevs/Supplies - SC

08/15/2019 87671 BBC Steel Corp. 105.00                Cabinet Parts - FD

08/15/2019 87672 Beloof & Haines 3,000.00             Municipal Judge - CT

08/15/2019 87673 BMS Technologies 2,271.11             UB Printing/Mailing - PW

08/15/2019 87674 Blackline, Inc. 154,097.06         Slurry Seal - PW

CHECK REGISTER FOR AUGUST 2019

4 - 1



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

CHECK REGISTER FOR AUGUST 2019

08/15/2019 87675 BridgePay Network Solutions, LLC 112.90                UB Online Pmt Processing Fees - PW

08/15/2019 87676 Cintas First Aid Lockbox 421.95                First Aid Supplies - PD/LIB/SC/Admin

08/15/2019 87677 City of Portland 7,670.00             Consortium Dues - PW

08/15/2019 87678 Clackamas Auto Parts Inc 76.45                   Vehicle Maintenance - FD

08/15/2019 87679 Clackamas County Clerk 103.00                Lein Recording - Admin

08/15/2019 87680 Clackamas County Finance Department 27,393.55           Dispatch/Planning/Telecom - PD/FD/Admin

08/15/2019 87681 Clackamas ESD 1,545.68             Off-site Data Storage - Admin

08/15/2019 87682 Clackamas Fire District #1 2,542.00             Vehicle Maintenance - FD

08/15/2019 87683 Comcast Business 270.62                Business Services - PW

08/15/2019 87684 Curtis, L. N. Co. 299.44                Uniforms & Supplies - PD

08/15/2019 87685 Firecom 320.00                Wireless Headset - FD

08/15/2019 87686 FlashAlert Newswire 436.00                Annual Subscription - PD/Admin

08/15/2019 87687 General Tree Service 104.00                Pow Wow Tree Maintenance - PW

08/15/2019 87688 Gold Wrench 5,055.20             Vehicle Maintenance - PD

08/15/2019 87689 Houston, Marc R 990.00                Physican Advisor - FD

08/15/2019 87690 J. Thayer Co. 34.30                   Nameplates - Admin

08/15/2019 87691 Lithia Motors Support Services 100.00                Vehicle Maintenance - PD

08/15/2019 87692 Lucy Heil, Attorney at Law 400.00                Indigent Defense - CT

08/15/2019 87693 Lundquist Legal, LLC 3,000.00             Prosecutor Services - CT

08/15/2019 87694 Metereaders 4,264.36             Metereading - PW

08/15/2019 87695 Municipal Emergency Svcs 155.00                Compressor Maintenance - FD

08/15/2019 87696 Northwest Safety Clean 583.67                Equipment Maintenance - FD

08/15/2019 87697 Office Depot 955.22                Office Supplies - All Depts.

08/15/2019 87698 Oil Filter Service Co. 166.00                Supplies - FD

08/15/2019 87699 One Call Concepts Inc 99.60                   Utility Notifications - PW

08/15/2019 87700 Oregon Patrol Service 3,062.50             Park Patrol/Courtroom Security - PD/CT

08/15/2019 87701 Owen Equipment Company 277.84                Truck Light - PW

08/15/2019 87702 Pamplin Media Group 450.00                Community Festival Ad - Admin

08/15/2019 87703 Pioneer Animal Hospital 148.90                K9 Expense - PD

08/15/2019 87704 Platt Electric Supply 60.18                   Parts - FD

08/15/2019 87705 Ri Ky Roofing LLC 45,000.00           Sr. Center Roof - PW

08/15/2019 87706 Robert C Johnson 140.00                Landscaping - LIB

08/15/2019 87707 Ruben Medina LLC 400.00                Indigent Defense - CT

08/15/2019 87708 Satcom Global Ltd. 42.75                   Satellite Phone Svc - PD

08/15/2019 87709 Shred-it USA LLC 95.00                   Shredding Service - PD

08/15/2019 87710 Sisul Engineering 1,856.25             Professional Services - PW

08/15/2019 87711 Smart Foodservice 700.95                Picnic & Summer Program Supplies - FD/REC

08/15/2019 87712 Smith Crane 1,170.00             MB Park Tree Removal - PW

08/15/2019 87713 Smith-Wagar Brucker Consulting Inc. 12,103.75           Financial Services - Admin

08/15/2019 87714 Solutions Yes 14.22                   Copier Usage - IT

08/15/2019 87715 SS Investigations 1,988.00             Pre-Employment Background Check - PD

08/15/2019 87716 Stein Oil Co. Inc. 4,218.15             Gasoline - PD/FD/PW/SC

08/15/2019 87717 Stitch n' Embroidery Inc. 1,057.00             Patch Embroidery - PD

08/15/2019 87718 Thomas Joseph 92.00                   Alterations - Fd

08/15/2019 87719 Traffic Safety Supply Co. Inc. 294.00                Signage - PW

08/15/2019 87720 TransUnion Risk and Alternative 50.00                   Data Research - PD

08/15/2019 87721 Tyler Technologies, Inc. 2,342.81             Annual TCM Maintenance - IT

08/15/2019 87722 Val Codino Consulting 500.00                Professional Fees - FD

08/15/2019 87723 Watts Heating & Cooling 595.86                PD Electrical Repairs - PW

08/15/2019 87724 WorkSAFE Service Inc 150.00                Drug Testing - Admin

08/20/2019 87725 Clackamas County Clerk 83.00                   Lien Recording Fee - Admin

08/22/2019 87726 ACS Testing, Inc. 6,216.21             Inspections - Civic

08/22/2019 87727 Advanced Public Safety, Inc. 7,173.29             Annual Software Subscription/Maint - PD

08/22/2019 87728 Allstream 1,232.50             Land Lines - All Depts

08/22/2019 87729 Aramark 60.56                   Mat/Coverall Rental - PW

08/22/2019 87730 Baker & Taylor Inc 1,661.21             New Books - LIB

08/22/2019 87731 Barney & Worth, Inc. 17,140.89           Professional Fees - PW

08/22/2019 87732 Batteries Plus 49.68                   Batteries - FD

08/22/2019 87733 Beery Elsner & Hammond LLP 4,406.88             Legal Fees - Admin

08/22/2019 87734 Brian Lowry Trucking LLC 662.00                Materials Delivery - PS

08/22/2019 87735 Brown & Caldwell 898.50                Professional Fees - PW

4 - 2



Check Date Check No. Vendor Amount Line Item Description

CHECK REGISTER FOR AUGUST 2019

08/22/2019 87736 Buel's Impressions Printing 139.00                Printing - PD

08/22/2019 87737 Canon Financial Services, Inc. 1,041.63             Copier Lease/Usage - IT

08/22/2019 87738 Chief Supply 137.86                Uniforms - FD

08/22/2019 87739 City of Gladstone 25.00                   Alarm Permit - PW

08/22/2019 87740 City of Milwaukie 177.12                ROW Fee Review - Admin

08/22/2019 87741 City of Sherwood 120.00                Metro Law Enforcement Dinner - PD

08/22/2019 87742 Code Publishing Inc. 780.00                GMC Web Hosting - Admin

08/22/2019 87743 Comcast 61.39                   TV/Internet - IT

08/22/2019 87744 Curtis, L. N. Co. 48.00                   Uniforms - PD

08/22/2019 87745 Cycle Express 173.00                Stickers - FD

08/22/2019 87746 Home Depot 207.24                Supplies - FD

08/22/2019 87747 Home Depot Pro Institutional 12.79                   Vinyl - FD

08/22/2019 87748 IJS Law, LLC 500.00                Indigent Defense - CT

08/22/2019 87749 Integrity Traffic OR, LLC 1,248.13             Traffic Control - PW

08/22/2019 87750 Life-Assist Inc 268.84                First Responder Supplies - FD

08/22/2019 87751 Midwest Tape 3,618.02             Non-Print Items - LIB

08/22/2019 87752 Mr. Belvedere's Janitorial 2,170.00             Janitorial - Admin/SC/LIB/PW

08/22/2019 87753 Municipal Code Corporation 2,700.00             Website Maintenance - IT

08/22/2019 87754 Municipal Emergency Svcs 12,360.40           Equipment Replacement - FD

08/22/2019 87755 North Clackamas County 52,119.03           Water Usage - PW

08/22/2019 87756 Oregon DMV 7.05                     Records Inquiry - PD

08/22/2019 87757 P & C Construction 780,588.00         Construction - Civic

08/22/2019 87758 Pacific Office Automation 712.22                Copier Lease/Usage - LIB

08/22/2019 87759 Pacific Office Automation Inc 69.93                   Copier Usage - CT

08/22/2019 87760 Paramount Pest Control Inc 208.00                Pest Control - PW

08/22/2019 87761 Petty Cash for the Benefit of Sr. Ctr. 49.82                   Petty Cash Reimb. - SC

08/22/2019 87762 Pioneer Rental 331.50                Equipment Rental - PW

08/22/2019 87763 Portland Road & Driveway Co., Inc. 100.00                Dump Fees - PW

08/22/2019 87764 Ruben Medina LLC 250.00                Indigent Defense - CT

08/22/2019 87765 Shiels Obletz Johnsen 10,640.50           Project Mgmt - Civic

08/22/2019 87766 Sierra Springs 113.30                Drinking Water - PD/Admin

08/22/2019 87767 UL LLC 1,095.00             Annual Inspection - FD

08/22/2019 87768 US Bank Equipment Finance 224.46                Copier Lease - IT

08/26/2019 87769 US Postal Service 1,025.68            Newsletter Postage - Admin

08/27/2019 87770 Payroll Check 6,446.67             Payroll Check   

08/30/2019 87771 - 87774 Payroll Checks 3,900.11             Payroll Checks - All Depts

08/29/2019 87775 Axa Equi-Vest 4,595.00             Voluntary Payroll Deferred Comp

08/29/2019 87776 Axa EVLICO 106.00                Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

08/29/2019 87777 Axa RIA 1,513.18             Non-PERS Retirment Pmt

08/29/2019 87778 CIS Trust 71,304.40           Monthly Health Insurance

08/29/2019 87779 Clackamas Community Federal Credit Union 1,107.92             GPA Union Dues

08/29/2019 87780 Gladstone Fire Department 625.00                Fire Members House Dues

08/29/2019 87781 Oregon AFSCME Council #75 1,143.94             AFSCME Union Dues

Total General Fund Checks: 1,987,384.51$   

Total Urban Renewal Checks -                       

Total August 2019 Checks 1,987,384.51$   

4 - 3



Attorneys: July, 2019 Aug, 2019 Sept, 2019 Oct, 2019 Nov, 2019 Dec, 2019 Totals

City Charter -$                -$                 

Elections -                   -                   

Finance 305.50            305.50             

General 70.50              70.50               

Civic Center Project 258.50            258.50             

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                   

Governance/City Council 376.00            376.00             

          Meeting Attendance 837.92            837.92             

Intergovernmental 94.00              94.00               

          Meeting Attendance 808.51            808.51             

Land Use/ Community Development 963.50            963.50             

          Meeting Attendance -                   -                   

Parks & Recreation 23.50              23.50               

Personnel/Labor 112.50            112.50             

          AFSCME -                   -                   

         City Administration -                   -                   

Public Records & Meetings -                   -                   

Public Safety 180.00            180.00             

Public Works -                   -                   

Real Property Transactions -                   -                   

Risk Management/Litigation 376.45            376.45             

Rights of Way-Telecommunications -                   -                   

Urban Renewal -                   -                   

Total 4,406.88$      -$              -$              -$                -$            -$            4,406.88$       

Attorneys: Jan, 2020 Feb, 2020 Mar, 2020 Apr, 2020 May, 2020 June, 2020

Totals for

 Year

City Charter -$                 

Elections -                   

Finance 305.50             

General 70.50               

Civic Center Project 258.50             

          Meeting Attendance -                   

Governance/City Council 376.00             

          Meeting Attendance 837.92             

Intergovernmental 94.00               

         Meeting Attendance 808.51             

Land Use/ Community Development 963.50             

          Meeting Attendance -                   

Parks & Recreation 23.50               

Personnel/Labor 112.50             

          AFSCME -                   

         City Administration -                   

Public Records & Meetings -                   

Public Safety 180.00             

Public Works -                   

Real Property Transactions -                   

Risk Management/Litigation 376.45             

Rights of Way-Telecommunications -                   

Urban Renewal -                   

Total -$                -$              -$              -$                -$            -$            4,406.88$       

ATTORNEY CHARGES

5 - 1



1 | P a g e  
 

Gladstone Senior Center 

Monthly Report 

September 2019 

 

Report Date:  September 30, 2019 

To:  City Administrator, Jacque Betz 

From:  Senior Center Manager, Colin Black 

We had an excellent 50th Wedding Anniversary Lunch this September. This year’s celebration 
was huge success with more than 75 people in attendance. Of those 75 attendees, we were 
able to honor 18 couples that have been married for 50 years or more with our longest married 
couple celebrating an amazing 73 years together! Thank you to our Gladstone Seniors 
Foundation for sponsoring this event and to all City staff and elected officials that participated.  

It was business as usual in September. We started the Fall session of the Gladstone Community 
School adding another class to our schedule. It really is wonderful to have these classes here; it 
really livens up the place. Having the Community School classes is real benefit to the Senior 
Center. Aside from the fiscal point of view, hosting Community School classes is one more way 
for the Senior Center to remain connected with the Gladstone community as most students 
participating in the Gladstone Community School program reside in Gladstone.  

You may have noticed the landscaping of the Senior Center have improved lately. At the start of 
September, the Senior Center hired a landscaping maintenance company to maintain our 
grounds. They are doing an excellent job so far. We are appreciative of the support from the 
City Council to be able to make this happen.  

This month the staff of the Senior Center and our City Administrator participated in a Stop the 
Bleed training facilitated by our very own Fire Chief. This was an excellent training; well 
prepared and well presented. We highly encourage all to receive this training if possible. The 
staff of the Senior Center will continue to work on updating our skills for responding to 
emergencies at the Senior Center should they ever happen.  

In September, your Senior Center staff: 

 SCM Black participated in a webinar training on Emergencies and Disasters: Are You 
Financially Prepared? 

 SCM Black attended a Clackamas County Information and Referral meeting at the Red 
Soils Campus for Older Adult Suicide Prevention and Older Adult/ Disabled Emergency 
Preparedness. 

6 - 1



2 | P a g e  
 

 For National Preparedness Month, SCM Black facilitated the distribution of information 
on City social media accounts.  

 Center staff provided over 1,000 meals to home-bound and congregate participants. 
Staff also saw an increase in visitors from the prior month due to the start of the Fall 
term of the Community School program.  

 Held our bi-monthly Senior Center Advisory Board meeting. At the meeting, the 
Advisory Board continued to work on reviewing the current work plan.  

 In coordination with CA Betz, PC Schmerber, FC Huffman, and SCM Black continue to 
work on facilitating an emergency management table-top exercise.  

 Center staff participated in quarterly menu planning with Clackamas County meal 
providers.  

 Center staff continues to update and acquire new skills through webinars and 
conference calls. This includes our Programs and Services Coordinator, Transportation 
Coordinator, and our Nutritional Coordinator; all in an effort to better serve our 
community.  

One last item, a couple of months ago we reported that our Programs and Services Coordinator 
Deanna Heman was training to become a certified notary. I am please to announce that Deanna 
has completed all training, passed the tests and is now a certified notary. Once we receive the 
stamp and booklet for her to conduct business, we will advise the Council.  

As always, your Senior Center staff look forward to working with you in making Gladstone even 
better. If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to contact us at any time.  

Respectfully,  

Colin Black 

Senior Center Manager 

On September 25, 2019, former City Councilor and home-bound meal driver Pat McMahon took 
our very own Jane Eilersen on a ride around town. Now you may remember Jane from this years’ 
Community Festival. She was our Grand Marshall and at 99 still very sprite! Pat really made her 

day, she was smiling from ear to ear all day long. 

 

 

6 - 2



3 | P a g e  
 

Here are some photographs from this year’s 50th Wedding Anniversary Lunch. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

6 - 3



1 
 

     
 

 
   

Staff Report for the Month of  
 

September 2019 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Report Date : September 30, 2019 
To : Jacque M. Betz, City Administrator  
Copy : Mayor and City Council 
From : Jim Whynot, Public Works Director 
________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
   
WATER DIVISION has been busy with multiple large 
projects, including the completion of the installation of an air 
release valve on Hereford Street near Oatfield Road.  The 
purpose of this valve is to allow air to escape the line.  Excess 
air pressure in the line can cause air hammer that could 
potentially blow the line apart, and can also restrict water flow. 
This was a time consuming and labor intensive project, as 
shown by the large rocks we encountered.  This required a 
lot of rock hammering, but our stalwart crew is up to the task! 

6 - 4



2 
 

 
 
 
We discovered a non-registering water meter at 
the high school.  It had not been functioning when 
we arrived on site. We cleaned the assembly and 
did some valve tweaking to get the meter 
registering flowing water. We also did some grout 
work to seal up leaks in the vault that were 
causing standing water resulting in corrosion of 
the meter.  
 
 
 
 

 
We underwent our Oregon Health Authority Water System Survey during the month of 
September.  We have made great forward strides in rectifying some of the deficiencies since our 
last survey. While we are aware that our infrastructure is in disrepair, we have addressed some 
of the issues that were called out in our last survey in 2016, including: 

• Creating written protocol for operators 
• Creating Operation and Maintenance Manuals 
• Creating an Emergency Response Plan 
• Submitting our Water Master Plan to the State  
• The Consumer Confidence Report for 2013 and 2015 had not been submitted to the state 

as required by law.   As of 2016, with the hiring of our current Public Works Director, this 
requirement has been met each year.  

  

6 - 5



3 
 

SEWER DIVISION has been busy working along the W. Clackamas sewer line:  
These photos 
show entry into 
the W. Clackamas 
sewer so we could 
remove the flow 
meter in order to 
clean the line with 
the Vactor truck.  
Safety protocol 
requires a topside 
monitor and a 
phone call to the 
office to alert the 
office of a 
confined space 
entry. 

 
 

 
Though hard to see in the 
photo, this is grease build 
up in our W. Clackamas 
Sewer line. We are 
currently cleaning the line 
to remove grease 
blockages in order to 
improve flows for the  
rainy season.  This line 
has improper grade, 
which allows grease build 
up. We are currently 
working on a design to 
replace this section of line 
to proper grade. 
 

 

6 - 6



4 
 

STORMWATER DIVISION is preparing the system for our rainy season.  We have cleaned the 
Risley stormwater ditch.  Due to poor access, we could not bring in equipment, so all this work 
was done by hand: 
Before:                                                                        After: 

  
 
In addition to cleaning 
the Risley ditch, we are 
working in cooperation 
with Northwest Housing 
Alternatives, Clackamas 
Soil and Water 
Conservation District, 
and North Clackamas 
Watersheds Council. 
Our partners plan to 
conduct plantings this 
winter as part of a 
project to remove 
invasive species, and 
plant appropriate 
vegetation for bank 
stabilization.  Photo left 

shows just one truckload of a portion of the vegetation Public Works removed from the south bank 
of the ditch.  In time, the removal of vegetation overgrowth and the bank stabilization will help to 
make the Risley ditch less prone to stormwater back-up and potential flooding.   

6 - 7



5 
 

Unfortunately, the photo shown 
right is an example that occurs 
quite frequently within the City.  
In this case a homeowner 
unwittingly blocked a stormwater 
main outfall from the Senior 
Center by building a retaining 
wall to contain the creek and 
protect their new fence 
construction.  If left unaddressed, 
this had the potential of flooding 
the Senior Center property.  
 
 
 

 
All of our utilities have been busy 
with the Clarendon Street CDBG 
project, as well as the Civic Center 
infrastructure.   Public Works 
Administration finalized the 
dedication deed for the Watts Street 
property conveyance that will allow 
us to install the public utilities within 
the Right of Way.  The storm drain 
system is being installed on Watts 
Street, and as shown in the photo 
left, we are encountering a lot of 
challenges in putting in the 
necessary utility infrastructure for 
the Civic Center! 

 
 
 
  

6 - 8



6 
 

 
 
 
During the utility 
improvements for the 
new Civic Center site, 
this boulder shown 
right, over seven feet 
across, was 
unearthed.   It took 
some skill and finesse 
to get it out of the 
ground without 
damaging existing 
utility pipes that lie on 
each side of it.   
 
 
 
 
It should be noted that the Clarendon Street CDBG project was delayed, due to encountering so 
much rock underground, as well.   Public Works remains in active communication with the 
residents impacted by that project, both by in person visits, and regular updates by door hangers.  
We appreciate the understanding and cooperation we have been provided by those residents as 
we work to bring some major improvements to their neighborhood.    It has been a summer-long 
disruption to that section of town, but our efforts have been well received.    

6 - 9



7 
 

STREETS DIVISION is 
hustling as usual.  Our 
roads are in disrepair, but 
with the underground 
infrastructure also failing, 
it would be a fool’s errand 
to put a lot of resources 
into the roads and streets 
when we are continually 
digging them up to fix the 
pipes below.  As it is, the 
Streets Division is 
performing utility patches 
behind the water crew.  In 
many instances, the 
Streets crew is able to 
patch the utility cuts on the 
same day as the Water 
crew completes their work 
a part of our ongoing 
efforts to improve efficiency.   

 
 
Construction and Right of 
Way inspections are non-
stop.  In the example left, 
the sidewalk drop 
exceeded public safety 
standards.  The contractor 
is required to temp in with 
gravel as specified in the 
construction plans.  Public 
Works Streets Supervisor, 
Steve Graves, addressed 
this issue with the 
contractor for mitigation. 
  

6 - 10



8 
 

Without Public Works oversite, the companies that have use of our ROW would simply leave town 
and fail to repair their damage.  Several examples were provided to the Council in the August 
report.  More examples are shown in the following: 
The photo below is a poor utility patch.   Voids left under the pavement have allowed street sagging 
and cracking.  Without oversite and follow-up, this street has the potential to fail, and possibly take 
the driveway apron with it.  Public Works takes great strides to provide proper oversite to ensure 
that these jobs are performed to city standards, otherwise the cost to repair the driveway, should 
it fail, would fall to the homeowner. The undermining of the existing roadway will need to be saw 
cut out, removed and backfilled properly, adding up to 50% of the cost of the job, which is why 
contractors are tempted to cut corners.    

6 - 11



9 
 

 
 
Another example of utility cut exceeding the 
limits of the intended disruption of the 
roadway.  These ROW  issues require 
regular, constant oversite to ensure that 
contractors don’t ignore these problems that 
would later fall to the taxpayers to repair.  
 
 
 

Right of Way complaints require inspection by Public Works, followed by collaboration with Code 
Enforcement to abate problems.  In the photo below, noxious growth has overtaken the public 
ROW on railroad property along 82nd Avenue.    Dealing with the railroad can be extremely time 
consuming and labor intensive for both Public Works and the Police Department.  

  

6 - 12



10 
 

 
 
Contractors left uncapped 
rebar stakes at a construction 
site near Stocker Park.  
Safety rules require 
contractors to cap off the 
ends, but this was not done, 
as shown left.   Public Works 
capped the stakes for public 
safety, but again, this is an 
example of the necessity for 
oversite. 
 
 

 
We are aware that decades of deferred maintenance has left our roads and streets in disrepair.  
While complete road replacement is not feasible until the City can address the underlying 
infrastructure problems below the streets, Public Works makes every effort to maintain our roads 
in the most cost effective manner as possible.  Photo above left shows voids left underneath the 
roadway during construction that led to street failure.  Photo above right is during repair.  
 
 

6 - 13



11 
 

PARKS DIVISION built a water runoff canal at 
Meldrum Bar boat launch to allow for a diversion 
channel.    

 
 
 
Parks is also addressing the pathway challenges 
within our parks and greenspaces.   
 
 
 

 
Rex McIntire, of our Parks Division, has 
surveyed the pathways and compiled an 
inventory of repair needs to address as the 
Parks budget allows.   Examples of 
pathway repair and maintenance needs are 
shown above and right:  
 
 
 

6 - 14



12 
 

 
 
 
The memorial donations for the 
parks require multiple meetings, 
planning, and staff organizational 
time.    Photo right is the site of a 
future memorial bench.  
 
 
 
 
Facilities and Fleet Division have been working on assessing the needs for the Senior Center 
painting scope of work.  We have identified several areas of exterior repair that must be dealt with 
prior to painting the building.   
As winter is drawing near, we are preparing our equipment for the season.  Leaf Pickup will soon 
be in full swing, which requires much logistics and planning for the crew and equipment.  While 

we have attempted to educate 
the public on this service, we 
still encounter leaf piles 
dumped in the streets well 
before leaf pickup.  
Unfortunately, the rains simply 
wash these leaf piles into the 
storm system, which then 
requires staff time to clear the 
basins, which takes away from 
our scheduled responsibilities.   

6 - 15



13 
 

 
 
 
City debris brought into the 
Public Works yard requires 
sorting and loading every 
week.   We have gotten 
caught up on that in 
preparation to receive leaves 
during leaf pickup time.  
 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION continues to juggle multiple projects including: 

• Compiling facts and data for the Utility Rates Open House, and attendance at the event.   
• Administering multiple contracts. 
• Updating the City’s Dun and Bradstreet data as part of our ODFW dredging grant. 
• Registering the City in the federal System for Awards Management in preparation to 

receive federal funding for the ODFW grant, as well as to position us for any other 
potential federal funding opportunities that may arise.  

• Ongoing discourse with OSMB on the Meldrum Bar dredging grant.  
• Administering the ODFW  portion of the Meldrum Bar dredging grant  
• Monitoring Portland Avenue holiday lights electrical wiring project. We anticipate having 

the new lights up by December 1st .  
• Ongoing Civic Center progress.  This includes daily onsite problem solving, inspections 

and unforeseen issues with the plans, and finalizing private property boundaries with 
Watts Street right of way, and issues associated with the overburden from the 
construction site.   

• Finalizing Engineer of Record contract 
• Oak Lodge Water Services IGA 
• Monitor progress on DEQ MAO requirements 
• Monitoring the warranty on the slurry seal contract.  
• Trolley Trail Feasibility Study 
• Evaluating details of pay station at Meldrum Bar Park.   
• Working with Clackamas County Planning and Development to clarify and create process 

for private development projects.  
• Calculating SDCs for private development, which requires plan reviews.  

6 - 16



14 
 

• Working with Clackamas County on private development. 
• Assisting Utility Billing in updating records. 
• Compiling the NPDES Annual Report for the last water year for DEQ requirements.  
• Beginning phase to collect information on our water loss report, as require by the State.  

 

Public Works Quote of the Month 
        

           
                          We forget that the water cycle and the life cycle are one. 
 
                                                                                       … Jacques Yves Cousteau 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     

6 - 17



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

General Court Information for September 2019 

 69 violation filed 
 28 violations closed 
 11 misdemeanors filed 
 5 misdemeanors closed 
 36 violations were dismissed through the fixit program 
 91 cases were placed on a payment plan 
 29 warrants were issued 
 13 overdue payment letters were mailed 
 4 driver’s licenses were requested suspended  
 54 cases were sent to collections 
 1 cases sent to Department of Revenue 
 0 Jury trial was held  
 $14,670.00in violation fees assessed 
 $14,280.38 in violation fees paid 
 $11,491.97 in misdemeanor fees assessed 
 $10,621.29 in misdemeanor fees paid 
 174 charges were administratively written off as they are over 20 years old.  

 Viol. Filed Viol. Disposed Misd. Filed Misd. Disposed Parking filed 
Jan. 2018 116 187 31 34 10 
Jan. 2019 122 174 19 17 4 
Feb. 2018 255 206 19 14 5 
Feb. 2019 151 133 17 9 2 
Mar. 2018 218 178 8 14 11 
Mar. 2019 78 95 17 17 5 
Apr. 2018 227 113 14 3 3 
Apr. 2019 66 71 20 6 6 
May. 2018 174 30 8 11 6 
May. 2019 58 37 19 13 2 
Jun. 2018 133 184 23 14 2 
Jun. 2019 64 35 18 2 1 
Jul. 2018 168 93 17 6 14 
Jul. 2019 103 76 16 10 7 

Aug. 2018 88 156 15 5 6 
Aug. 2019 63 52 19 13 8 
Sept. 2018 170 44 17 8 4 
Sept. 2019 69 60 11 16 3 
Oct. 2018 109 57 11 3 4 
Nov. 2018 55 90 14 8 4 
Dec. 2018 176 57 32 2 2 

 

 

6 - 18



 

 GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL COURT SEPTEMBER 2019 
 

 Viol. Fee assessed Viol. Fees Paid Misd. Fine Assessed Misd. Fees Paid 
Jan. 2018 $  82,695.26 $    31,475.75 $  41,340.50 $          11,583.12 
Jan. 2019 $  62,173.00 $    28,973.67 $  16,748.50 $          10,315.17 

     

Feb. 2018 $  84,425.75 $    28,879.41 $  20,820.00 $          10,649.57 
Feb. 2019 $  33,666.05 $    24,608.32 $  10,875.25 $            9,955.57 

     

Mar. 2018 $  36,815.08 $    42,146.18 $  14,588.00 $            9,977.53 
Mar. 2019 $  22,064.00 $    20,162.83 $  28,158.17 $            9,856.19 

     

Apr. 2018 $  44,254.00 $    39,299.22 $  10,547.00 $            8,528.31 
Apr. 2019 $  16,306.00 $    30,546.05 $    7,019.95 $            8,667.79 

     

May. 2018 $  38,926.00 $    34,218.09 $  11,427.50 $          13,873.70 
May. 2019 $  32,791.91 $    19,997.76 $    6,620.32 $            7,002.92 

     

Jun. 2018 $  50,968.00 $    38,467.85 $  13,796.00 $          12,249.84 
Jun. 2019 $  18,497.75 $    18,540.84 $    5,178.05 $          12,325.76 

     

Jul. 2018 $  33,509.79 $    27,625.22 $    3,172.00 $          12,793.70 
Jul. 2019 $  18,739.12 $    19,663.75 $  11,949.16 $            6,553.99 

     

Aug. 2018 $  45,548.00 $    33,676.39 $  11,334.67 $          14,979.08 
Aug. 2019 $  10,945.79 $    14,700.39 $    8,637.73 $            5,527.01 

     

Sept. 2018 $  20,374.00 $    26,286.79 $    4,206.75 $          10,884.78 
Sept. 2019 $  14,670.00 $    14,280.38 $  11,491.97 $          10,621.29 

     

Oct. 2018 $  31,177.00 $    26,884.79 $    3,424.00 $          13,550.47 
Nov. 2018 $  36,566.53 $    24,234.34 $    4,728.25 $          14,619.54 
Dec. 2018 $  21,961.50 $    20,534.13 $        446.00 $            4,765.81 

  
 

6 - 19



Gladstone Fire Department 
Monthly Report: September 2019 

 
 

 

Report Date:  October 1st, 2019 
To: City Administrator Jacque Betz  
Cc: City Council 
From: Fire Chief Rick Huffman 
 
September was milder than usual and as summer ends, we saw a minimal wildfire season for 
Oregon this year. The wildfire season impacts the community of Gladstone by giving us an indicator 
of how fast fires ignite and spread through vegetation. This is important when fires occur in and 
around homes. Fire can spread across dry plants and up tree limbs directly into a house and spread 
to adjacent homes very fast. Many cut back vegetation and trim trees in the fall and residents 
should consider making homes and neighborhoods fire safe for 2020 by following the guidelines 
and intent of the Firewise landscaping guide:  
https://www.nfpa.org//-/media/Files/Firewise/Fact-sheets/FirewiseHowToPrepareYourHomeForWildfires.pdf 

 
Speaking of fire prevention and education, Gladstone 
Firefighters visited Summerset lodge in September to 
promote fire and personal safety with the residents. The 
visit was very interactive and included demonstrations of 
some of the equipment used by firefighters. 
 
Another milestone this September was the beginning of 
the hands-on training academy for the new Part-Time 
Firefighter’s we brought on in August. This training will be 
ongoing throughout the winter and conclude in the 
Spring. Our training academy sessions will be held locally 
and at other training locations (including the State Fire 
Academy in Salem) to provide the best training opportunities to meet local, State and National 
training standards. 
  
Your fire department responded to 127 calls for service in September 2019. As a reminder to the 
citizens of Gladstone, when you see the Fire Engine or other emergency apparatus responding or 
backing into the Fire Station, you must yield or follow the direction of Police Officers or Firefighters. 
 
As fall settles in, be fire safe with fireplaces and other heating appliances in your homes and 
workplace. Also be ready for slick roads as temperatures fall to the freezing point.  
 
Be safe and I hope to see you on Halloween night! 
 
Rick Huffman, Fire Chief 
City of Gladstone 

6 - 20



GLADSTONE PUBLIC LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT   
September 2019 

 

People Counter: 4079 
 
Social Media: 

 Facebook followers: 674 
 Twitter followers: 204 
 Instagram followers: 944 

 
Volunteer hours: 133.25 
 

Library Statistics: September 1 - 30, 2019 
 

 

New Library 
Cards 

Registered 
Borrowers 

Items 
Owned 

Total 
Circulations 

Self-check 
outs 

Holds 
Placed 

Internet 
Sessions 

32 5689 46,018 15,308 5,866 3,977 804 
 

 
 

 

16
,3

24

16
,4

74

16
,3

79

17
,4

26

15
,9

43

15
,3

08

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

April May June July August September

Circulations

Series1 Series2

5109 4861 4950 4875 4933

4079

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

April May June July August September

People Counter*

 

Reference 
Questions:  

 
237 

 
Technology 
Questions:  

 
167 

 
 

188
257 244

289
246 237

154 158 137 154 163 167

0

100

200

300

400

1 2 3 4 5 6

Reference Questions

Series1 Series2

*It should be noted that the 
people counter does not 
currently capture attendees to 
storytimes, since they occur 
before the Library is open, and 
enter through the staff door 

6 - 21



GLADSTONE PUBLIC LIBRARY DIRECTOR’S REPORT   
September 2019 

 
Updates: 

 We are looking forward to October’s craft project! Artist Kim Leahy is coming up from Bend to 
teach our patrons how to make a pair of beaded earrings.  A specific kit pattern will be used, so 
everyone is guaranteed to finish and bring home!  The event is taking place on Friday, October 11th 
from 2:00-5:00 pm at the senior center.  Sign up is required and we’re expecting the class to fill! 

 We will be holding a Creepy Movie Night for the teens on Friday, October 25th from 4:00-6:00.  It 
will be a terrifyingly good time! 

 Our annual Harvest Festival will be taking place on Monday, October 28th from 3:30-5:00 pm at the 
Library.  There will be face painting, crafts, treats, and a costume contest! This has always been a 
popular and fun event. 

 Something bookish this way comes! On October 31st, starting at 5pm, the Gladstone Library 
Foundation will be handing out books and candy for the trick –or—treaters!  

 For banned books week we held a first line contest.  Patrons had to guess the banned or challenged 
book by its first line.  Three winners were chosen for prizes! 

 Our signs were looking shabby, so we’ve updated our library bulletin boards and materials’ returns 
signs.  Our entrance looks bright and cheerful! 

 We are starting to increase our social media presence.  For National Hispanic Heritage Month, we 
are highlighting an influential Hispanic author every Tuesday on our Facebook page.  For twitter and 
Instagram, we are participating in #WhoKnewWednesday and #Friday Reads.  Goal for this month: 
create an Instagram story on an event happening at the library.  We hope to reach more community 
members via an increase in creative and re-occurring posts! 

 

 

 

6 - 22



 

City of Gladstone Monthly Report|September 2019 

PUBLIC CONTACTS/PLANNING ACTIONS 

CUSTOMER CONTACT/ 
January February March April May June July August September 

YEAR 
TOTALS Planning Actions 

Customer Service 
Counter Contacts 

8 4 5 10 6 17 15 7 4 76 

Customer phone/email 
48 42 35 45 52 73 68 56 62 481 

contacts 

Building Permits Issued 
with Land Use Review 

0 1 1 1 0 4 3 3 1 13 

Pre-application 
conferences 

3 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 5 

Administrative Decisions 0 0 1 3 4 2 0 1 1 12 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

 NO ACTION TAKEN DUE TO A LACK OF A QUORUM. 

CITY COUNCIL LAND USE ACTIONS/DECISIONS 

 NONE 

PRE-APPLICATION CONFERENCES 

 NONE 

ADMINISTRATIVE PERMITS 

 Approval of sign permit associated with Z0354-19; Gladstone Mercantile. 

BUILDING PERMITS WITH LAND USE REVIEW 

September 
Date Address Building Permit # Description   

9/16/19 8376 Cason Rd B0408719 Sign Permit  

6 - 23



Page 2 

FUTURE ITEMS/PROPERTY UPDATES 

Location Topic Contact 

420 West Arlington. Proposed new commercial building on current 

vacant lot. Project will require parking agreement 

with adjoining residential lot, under the same 

ownership, to meet requirements. 

Richard Barbis Architect 

 

6 - 24



6 - 25



6 - 26



6 - 27



6 - 28

bannick
Typewritten Text
Update on 290 Nelson Lane: Followed up on the building code violation at 290 Nelson Lane with Clackamas County Code Enforcement. They advised that the property owner had not obtained any permits for the work that was being done on the premise. Code Enforcement had given the property owner until October 9th to apply for necessary permits. The property owner applied for permits on September 24th, two weeks before the required deadline. It appears the electrical permit has been issued and the remodel building permit is in process. They will continue to monitor the property for compliance as they work the details out with the property owner. Attempting to contact the property owner to ascertain his timeline for the project and explain to him what the City of Gladstone expectations are regarding code violations and site safety.

bannick
Typewritten Text
______________________________________________________________

bannick
Typewritten Text

bannick
Typewritten Text

bannick
Typewritten Text



6 - 29



6 - 30



6 - 31



6 - 32



6 - 33



6 - 34



7 - 1



AMENDMENT #3 TO INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN CLACKAMAS COUNTY 
AND THE CITY OF GLADSTONE 

 
THIS AMENDMENT (“Amendment”) is entered into by and between Clackamas County 

(“County”), a political subdivision of the State of Oregon, and the City of Gladstone (“City”) and 
shall become a part of that Intergovernmental Agreement entered between the parties on July 17, 
2018 (the “Agreement”), as amended. 

RECITALS 
WHEREAS, authority is conferred upon local governments under ORS 190.010 to enter into 

agreements for the performance of any and all functions and activities that a party to the agreement, 
its officers or agencies have authority to perform; 

WHEREAS, the parties desire to extend the effective date of the Agreement and to provide 
additional compensation for the County to provide temporary library director services on behalf of 
the City during the extended term of the Agreement; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises set forth below and other 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the 
parties hereby agree to amend the Agreement as follows: 

1. Effective Date. Section 1, Effective Date, of the Agreement is hereby amended to 
extend the termination date of the Agreement from October 31, 2019 to November 30, 
2019. 

2. Consideration. Section 2, Consideration, of the Agreement is hereby amended to 
provide additional compensation for the extended term of the Agreement. For the period 
of November 1, 2019 through November 30, 2019, the City will pay the County the 
sum of $6,041.08, which sum represents half of salary and benefits of the current Oak Lodge 
Library Director, Mitzi Olson, during the extended term of the Agreement. The City shall make 
payment to the County within thirty (30) days of execution of this Amendment. 

Except as expressly amended above, all other terms and conditions of the Agreement shall 
remain in full force and effect. By signature below, the parties agree to this Amendment, effective 
upon the date of the last signature below. 

IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Parties have executed this Amendment by the date set forth 
opposite their names below. 

 
 

Clackamas County City of Gladstone 
 
 
 

Chair, Board of County Commissioners By: _   
Its:    

 
 
Date Date 

 
 
 

Page 1 of 1 

7 - 2









City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
Report Date:  October 2, 2019   
Meeting Date:  October 8, 2019 
To:   Gladstone City Council 
From:   Jacque Betz, City Administrator 

 

AGENDA ITEM 
 
Approve a resolution in support of a co-sponsored application with Clackamas County re-
designating the North Urban Clackamas County Enterprise Zone.  
 
PROPOSAL 
Clackamas County is sponsoring the re-designation of the North Urban Clackamas County 
Enterprise Zone (NUCCEZ). The County invited the City to include eligible commercial and 
industrial zoned tax lots in Gladstone, within the Census Block Groups that meets demographic 
census below the 80% income level.   Properties to be included are attached as Exhibit A. 
 
The NUCCEZ was originally established in 1997 as the Milwaukie/North Clackamas Enterprise 
Zone. It was later re-designated and expanded in 2008. In 2011, the Zone was expanded to 
include the City of Happy Valley and was renamed the NUCCEZ.  
 
The NUCCEZ expired June 30, 2019, and due to demographic changes in the community of 
Happy Valley, it was removed from consideration in the proposed re-designation of the NUCCEZ. 
The non-residential Gladstone properties meet the demographic criteria and would benefit from 
this development tool. Eligible businesses include manufacturers, processors, shippers, call 
centers and other traded sector businesses. Hotels will also be eligible. Ineligible businesses 
include retail, construction and financial institutions.  

 
History/Background 

 
Enterprise zones are part of a state-initiated tax-abatement program available to businesses 
looking to locate or expand in a designated area. Qualified businesses may be eligible to receive 
exemption from local property taxes on new investments, including building construction and 
improvements, machinery, and equipment for a period of three to five years.  
 
Standard incentives available to eligible businesses: 

 Construction-in-process Enterprise Zone exemption- for up to two years before a qualified 
property is placed in service, it can be exempt from local taxes. 

 Three to five consecutive years of full relief from property taxes on qualified property after 
it is in service.  Note that land and existing taxable improvements are not eligible for relief. 

 Additional local incentives may be available. 
 
Three-year exemption: 

 Increase full-time permanent employment by 10% and pay employees at least 150% of 
the state minimum wage (benefits may be used to reach pay level). 

 Maintain minimum employment level during exemption period. 

 Enter into a first-source agreement with local job training providers 

 Pay an application fee of .1% of the proposed total investment. 
 

8 - 1



8 - 2



8 - 3



 

 

This Resolution adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 8th day 

of October, 2019 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

_________________________________       ________________________________________ 

Tamara Stempel, Mayor               Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

8 - 4



Map Tax Lot # Parcel # Acres Assessed Value
22E16C 01700 489929 1.17 $1,284,109
22E16C 01800 489938 0.61 $696,697
22E16C 02000 489947 0.32 $298,080
22E16C 02100 489956 0.14 $13,380
22E16C 02200 489965 0.49 $94,251
22E16C 02300 489974 0.09 $60,110
22E16C 02400 489983 0.48 $99,633
22E16C 02500 489992 0.41 $126,515
22E16C 02600 490007 0.87 $279,142
22E16C 02700 490016 0.28 $86,206
22E16C 02701 490025 0.27 $50,046
22E16C 02702 490034 0.71 $184,822
22E16C 02705 490043 0.45 $106,787
22E16C 03200 490098 0.89 $889,819
22E16C 03400 529743 70.96 $1,459,703
22E16C 03500 507561 6.11 $13,408,352
22E16C 03600 490089 4.39 $9,296,909
22E16CA01100 490212 1.41 $296,500
22E16CA01200 490221 0.29 $530,298
22E16CA01400 490249 1.41 $1,519,376
22E16CA01401 490258 2.15 $2,164,950
22E16CA01500 490267 2.23 $278,405
22E19AA00300 519914 0.50 $345,285
22E19AA00400 519923 0.35 $913,652
22E19AA00401 519932 0.51 $89,669
22E19AA00402 519941 0.64 $57,144
22E19AA01900 520109 0.42 $29,144
22E19AA02000 520118 1.93 $425,216
22E19AA02100 520127 1.95 $619,856
22E19AB00600 520859 1.49 $1,311,323
22E19AC05700 522526 2.12 $2,621,085
22E19AC06500 522615 0.76 $343,593
22E19AC06600 522624 0.59 $740,144
22E19AC06700 522633 0.42 $457,967
22E19AC06800 522642 0.36 $563,068
22E19AC06900 522651 0.68 $878,927
22E19AD09400 523605 3.18 $1,931,892
22E19D 01000 527406 0.56 $242,051
22E19D 01100 527433 0.34 $300,360
22E19DA00200 527451 2.50 $1,573,949
22E19DA00300 527460 1.04 $659,002
22E19DA00400 527479 0.76 $169,965
22E19DA00500 527497 3.18 $14,159,967
22E19DA03600 527861 0.50 $573,522
22E19DA03700 527870 1.99 $1,284,024

8 - 5



22E19DA03900 527889 2.33 $3,275,086
22E19DA04000 527898 0.64 $326,377
22E19DA04100 527905 0.59 $352,647
22E19DA04200 527914 1.34 $1,730,646
22E19DA04400 527923 0.21 $425,069
22E19DA04401 527932 0.21 $245,916
22E19DA04600 527941 0.29 $132,741
22E19DA04700 527950 0.34 $316,391
22E19DA04800 527969 0.34 $395,756
22E19DA07400 528236 0.03 $12,745
22E19DA07500 528245 0.01 $2,639
22E19DB01700 528520 4.59 $8,868,087
22E19DB01800 528548 0.36 $357,499
22E19DB01900 528557 0.28 $193,351
22E19DD00300 528824 0.21 $254,136
22E19DD00301 528833 0.25 $153,083
22E19DD00303 528842 0.25 $254,136
22E19DD02300 529066 0.55 $718,208
22E19DD02400 529075 0.57 $675,242
22E19DD02500 529084 0.22 $240,599
22E19DD02501 529093 0.30 $372,814
22E19DD02600 529100 0.93 $3,317,553
22E19DD02700 529119 1.08 $528,227
22E19DD02800 529128 0.11 $221,255
22E19DD03000 529137 0.05 $27,408
22E19DD03000 529137 0.02 $27,408
22E19DD03001 529146 0.37 $169,850
22E19DD03100 529155 0.45 $529,311
22E19DD03200 529164 0.47 $1,200,498
22E19DD03300 529173 0.79 $2,049,394
22E19DD03500 529191 0.34 $436,624
22E19DD04900 529333 0.34 $422,560
22E19DD05000 529342 0.31 $414,825
22E19DD05100 529351 0.48 $483,740
22E19DD05200 529360 0.40 $751,712
22E19DD05300 529379 0.46 $802,455
22E19DD05400 529388 0.35 $69,926
22E19DD05501 529397 0.26 $275,584
22E19DD05600 529404 0.52 $298,833
22E19DD05700 529413 0.19 $233,759
22E19DD05800 529422 1.31 $3,321,595
22E19DD05900 529431 0.19 $105,633
22E19DD06000 529440 0.38 $174,524
22E19DD06100 529459 0.52 $873,821
22E19DD06300 529468 0.77 $1,192,018
22E19DD07900 529627 0.12 $177,893
22E19DD08000 529636 0.12 $148,962

8 - 6



22E19DD08100 529645 0.23 $214,530
22E19DD08200 529654 0.12 $40,734
22E19DD08300 529663 0.12 $182,487
22E19DD08400 529672 0.12 $222,072
22E19DD08401 529681 0.12 $132,126
22E19DD09000 529734 0.10 $51,309
22E20  00200 529761 1.55 $246,790
22E20  00201 1447107 0.36 $542,323
22E20  00300 529770 2.91 $3,214,315
22E20  00400 529789 0.98 $1,153,981
22E20  00401 529798 0.66 $742,768
22E20  00402 1488063 2.32 $5,830,759
22E20  00800 529887 1.09 $842,192
22E20  01200 5022819 1.39 $4,706,129
22E20  01300 5022820 0.68 $538,968
22E20  01400 5022821 0.34 $793,605
22E20  01500 5022822 0.60 $40,059
22E20  01700 529690 0.18 $200,905
22E20  01800 5031000 0.47 $648,789
22E20  01801 5031001 3.16 $9,251,698
22E20  01802 5031002 0.38 $906,612
22E20  01803 5031003 1.03 $34,837
22E20AD03400 532828 0.11 $52,727
22E20AD03500 532837 0.11 $52,727
22E20AD03600 532846 0.21 $63,288
22E20AD03700 532855 0.39 $505,151
22E20AD05000 532971 0.72 $657,905
22E20AD05100 532980 0.51 $452,064
22E20AD05101 532999 0.27 $327,879
22E20AD05300 533006 0.56 $1,551,827
22E20AD05400 533015 0.79 $2,571,595
22E20AD05401 5000876 2.73 $6,997,969
22E20AD05403 5003256 0.51 $941,371
22E20AD05600 533033 0.15 $173,294
22E20AD05700 533042 0.17 $186,673
22E20AD05800 533051 0.14 $177,415
22E20AD05900 533060 0.10 $133,532
22E20AD06000 533079 0.19 $181,195
22E20AD06200 533097 0.69 $382,968
22E20AD06300 533104 0.43 $84,921
22E20BC03600 535790 0.34 $617,935
22E20BC03700 535807 0.23 $275,691
22E20BC03800 535816 0.11 $140,965
22E20BC03900 535825 0.11 $149,750
22E20BC04200 535861 0.23 $271,142
22E20BC04800 535923 0.17 $295,778
22E20BC04900 535932 0.16 $192,554

8 - 7



22E20BC05000 535941 0.18 $203,914
22E20BC05100 535950 0.23 $190,622
22E20BC05200 535969 0.11 $139,190
22E20BC05300 535978 0.11 $139,003
22E20BC08900 536352 0.44 $348,102
22E20BC08901 536361 0.38 $552,766
22E20BC10501 536520 0.34 $244,456
22E20BC10502 536539 0.23 $244,456
22E20BC10600 536593 2.83 $6,572,144
22E20BD06900 537468 0.52 $573,812
22E20BD07100 537486 0.28 $277,816
22E20BD07200 537495 0.11 $109,908
22E20BD08100 537583 0.11 $157,800
22E20BD08200 537592 0.11 $143,176
22E20BD08300 537609 0.11 $154,416
22E20BD08400 537618 0.11 $205,759
22E20BD08500 537627 0.23 $264,724
22E20BD08600 537636 0.14 $147,471
22E20BD08700 537645 0.09 $153,928
22E20CA00100 537672 0.11 $254,636
22E20CA00101 1681834 0.11 $127,515
22E20CA00200 537681 0.11 $163,201
22E20CA00201 1510092 0.11 $205,372
22E20CA00900 537752 0.11 $155,756
22E20CA01000 537761 0.11 $188,499
22E20CA01100 537770 0.23 $215,662
22E20CA01200 537789 0.14 $204,354
22E20CA01300 537798 0.09 $77,944
22E20CA01400 537805 0.23 $223,429
22E20CA01500 537814 0.11 $139,423
22E20CA01600 537823 0.17 $304,916
22E20CA01700 537832 0.17 $205,960
22E20CA01800 537841 0.11 $161,549
22E20CA01900 537850 0.11 $97,264
22E20CA01901 1324454 0.11 $192,516
22E20CA02000 537869 0.11 $305,496
22E20CA02100 537878 0.11 $73,421
22E20CA02200 537887 0.11 $125,184
22E20CA02300 537896 0.23 $107,193
22E20CA02600 537921 0.19 $337,908
22E20CA02700 537930 0.08 $73,838
22E20CA03100 537976 0.11 $187,941
22E20CA03200 537985 0.11 $47,537
22E20CA03300 537994 0.11 $101,194
22E20CA03400 538010 0.18 $249,135
22E20CA03500 538029 0.11 $178,418
22E20CA03600 538038 0.14 $165,879

8 - 8



22E20CA04500 538127 0.11 $134,687
22E20CA04600 538136 0.11 $143,400
22E20CA04700 538145 0.20 $275,776
22E20CA04800 538154 0.03 $20,481
22E20CA04900 538163 0.23 $380,372
22E20CA05000 538172 0.11 $103,494
22E20CA05100 538181 0.17 $201,793
22E20CA05900 538270 0.23 $266,785
22E20CA06000 538289 0.15 $213,124
22E20CA06100 538298 0.08 $118,554
22E20CA06200 538305 0.05 $92,021
22E20CA06300 538314 0.05 $77,855
22E20CA06400 538323 0.10 $152,393
22E20CA06500 538332 0.21 $384,761
22E20CA07300 538403 0.21 $588,685
22E20CA07390 5021087 0.23 $417,061
22E20CA07400 538412 0.65 $748,327
22E20CA08000 538476 0.11 $170,647
22E20CA08100 538485 0.11 $157,307
22E20CA08200 538494 0.23 $254,575
22E20CA08300 538500 0.11 $237,090
22E20CA08400 538519 0.11 $152,192
22E20CA08500 538528 0.13 $150,194
22E20CB03300 539527 0.11 $178,442
22E20CB03400 539536 0.11 $151,975
22E20CB03500 539545 0.09 $135,058
22E20CB03600 539554 0.09 $84,501
22E20CB03700 539563 0.11 $121,395
22E20CB03800 539572 0.17 $203,144
22E20CB03900 539581 0.11 $151,426
22E20CB04000 539590 0.11 $107,016
22E20CB04600 539652 0.11 $227,992
22E20CB04601 5003099 0.11 $233,117
22E20CB04700 539661 0.11 $187,961
22E20CB04800 539670 0.11 $202,425
22E20CB04900 539689 0.11 $173,483
22E20CB05000 539698 0.11 $205,802
22E20CB05100 539705 0.11 $189,727
22E20CB05200 539714 0.11 $168,394
22E20CB05900 539787 0.11 $179,916
22E20CB06000 539796 0.11 $207,634
22E20CB06100 539803 0.23 $332,677
22E20CB06300 539812 0.11 $75,539
22E20CB06400 539821 0.11 $96,162
22E20CB06500 539830 0.23 $223,783
22E20CB07200 539910 0.11 $299,990
22E20CB07300 539929 0.11 $59,250

8 - 9



22E20CB07400 539938 0.11 $64,616
22E20CB07500 539947 0.11 $141,142
22E20CB07600 539956 0.06 $64,899
22E20CB07700 539965 0.06 $38,384
22E20CB07800 539974 0.11 $157,167
22E20CB07900 539983 0.11 $180,366
22E20CB08000 539992 0.11 $196,786
22E20CC03900 541667 0.19 $404,013
22E20CC03901 1565791 0.28 $298,239
22E20CC04000 541676 0.12 $139,423
22E20CC04100 541685 0.14 $138,739
22E20CC04200 541694 0.15 $211,351
22E20CC04300 541701 0.16 $148,186
22E20CC04401 5015579 0.17 $185,848
22E20CC07303 5010571 0.75 $830,767
22E20DA00100 542176 0.73 $414,605
22E20DA00200 542194 0.11 $37,709
22E20DA00201 5021076 0.23 $374,222
22E20DA00300 542201 0.11 $44,015
22E20DA00400 542210 0.22 $176,299
22E20DA00500 542229 0.24 $179,735
22E20DA00600 542238 0.76 $447,321
22E20DA00700 542247 1.50 $3,632,404
22E20DA00800 542265 0.22 $473,628
22E20DA00900 542274 0.12 $45,194
22E20DB11300 543718 0.23 $168,636
22E20DB11400 543727 0.14 $150,150
22E20DB11500 543736 0.14 $159,394
22E20DB11600 543745 0.14 $155,128
22E20DB11700 543754 0.14 $173,517
22E20DB12900 543870 0.22 $76,896
22E20DB13000 543889 0.14 $112,430
22E20DB13100 543898 0.15 $58,043
22E20DB13200 543905 1.23 $1,059,819
22E20DB13201 1441327 0.81 $1,371,647
22E21B 01900 545226 0.11 $250,121
22E21B 01900 545226 0.65 $250,121
22E21B 01901 545235 1.85 $1,216,789
22E21B 02200 545244 2.06 $2,070,890
22E21B 02300 545253 0.16 $138,850
22E21B 02400 545262 0.70 $329,458
22E21B 02500 545271 1.11 $566,803
22E21B 02600 545280 0.94 $130,976
22E21B 03200 545299 0.70 $333,990
22E21B 03300 545306 0.57 $45,816
22E21B 03400 545315 0.20 $9,138
22E21B 03500 545324 0.77 $48,160

8 - 10



22E21C 01000 545486 0.54 $10,154
22E21C 01400 545495 0.72 $26,353

8 - 11



Situs Address Zoning Regional (Generalized) Zoning Jurisdiction
870 82ND DR                             C3 COM Gladstone

880 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
960 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone

NO SITUS LI IND Gladstone
970 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
980 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone

1180 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
1020 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
1180 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
1190 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
1200 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
1250 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
1200 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone

890 82ND DR                             C3 COM Gladstone
19800 OATFIELD RD OP IND Gladstone

8330 CASON RD OP IND Gladstone
8360 CASON RD OP IND Gladstone
17726 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
17763 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
17885 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
17765 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone
17790 82ND DR LI IND Gladstone

18315 PORTLAND AVE LI IND Gladstone
6005 DUNIWAY AVE LI IND Gladstone
6075 DUNIWAY AVE LI IND Gladstone

NO SITUS LI IND Gladstone
NO SITUS LI IND Gladstone

18505 PORTLAND AVE LI IND Gladstone
18595 PORTLAND AVE LI IND Gladstone

19120 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19335 SE MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

19200 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19210 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19220 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19230 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19240 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19300 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
20115 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19360 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19380 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
19400 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

500 W GLOUCESTER ST C3 COM Gladstone
19490 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

8 - 12



19405 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19560 RIVER RD C3 COM Gladstone

19465 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19495 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19510 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19500 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

585 W GLOUCESTER ST C3 COM Gladstone
565 W GLOUCESTER ST C3 COM Gladstone
525 W GLOUCESTER ST C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone

19375 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD LI IND Gladstone
19395 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD LI IND Gladstone
19375 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD LI IND Gladstone

461 W GLOUCESTER ST C3 COM Gladstone
675 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
481 W GLOUCESTER ST C3 COM Gladstone

19770 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19660 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19630 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19640 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19505 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19665 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

19700 RIVER RD C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone

19720 RIVER RD C3 COM Gladstone
19775 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19795 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

19800 RIVER RD C3 COM Gladstone
19800 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

500 W CLARENDON ST C3 COM Gladstone
19895 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19905 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

380 RIVER RD C3 COM Gladstone
19855 RIVER RD C3 COM Gladstone
19905 RIVER RD C3 COM Gladstone

20005 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
20105 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

480 W ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
20000 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone
19940 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

22E19DD06000 C3 COM Gladstone
19900 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

495 W CLARENDON ST C3 COM Gladstone
470 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
468 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone

8 - 13



450 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C2 COM Gladstone

420 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
414 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
410 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS OS POS Gladstone

25 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
95 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
45 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
35 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
75 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone

915 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
20100 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
20180 MCLOUGHLIN BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
405 W ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone

705 E CLARENDON ST C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone

735 E CLARENDON ST C3 COM Gladstone
710 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone

260 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
810 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
880 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
250 PRINCETON AVE C3 COM Gladstone

820 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone
870 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone
830 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone
805 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone
825 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone
845 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone
855 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone
865 E BERKELEY ST C3 COM Gladstone

910 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone

105 W HEREFORD ST C2 COM Gladstone
120 W GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone
130 W GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone
140 W GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone

135 W HEREFORD ST C2 COM Gladstone
140 W HEREFORD ST C2 COM Gladstone
120 W HEREFORD ST C2 COM Gladstone

8 - 14



920 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
980 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

125 W IPSWICH ST C2 COM Gladstone
127 W IPSWICH ST C2 COM Gladstone

1020 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
1050 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

19366 ABERNETHY LN C2 COM Gladstone
19376 ABERNETHY LN C2 COM Gladstone
18905 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

135 E HEREFORD ST C2 COM Gladstone
825 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

130 E GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone
135 E GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone
125 E GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone
115 E GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone

785 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
725 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
130 E FAIRFIELD ST C2 COM Gladstone
140 E FAIRFIELD ST C2 COM Gladstone

111 W CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone
105 W CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone
115 W CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone
125 W CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone

140 W BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone
120 W BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone
340 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
270 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
115 W BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone
125 W BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone
145 W BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone
155 W BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone
175 W BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone

180 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
170 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
164 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
150 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
140 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
130 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone

220 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
140 E CLACKAMAS BLVD C2 COM Gladstone
150 E CLACKAMAS BLVD C2 COM Gladstone

140 E ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C2 COM Gladstone

120 E ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone
291 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

115 E BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone
125 E BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone

8 - 15



140 E BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone
130 E BERKELEY ST C2 COM Gladstone

325 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C2 COM Gladstone

365 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
125 E CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone
135 E CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone
140 E CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone

415 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
445 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
455 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
465 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

485 PORTLAND AVE                        C2 COM Gladstone
125 E DARTMOUTH ST C2 COM Gladstone

525 PORTLAND AVE                        C2 COM Gladstone
5256 PORTLAND AVE                       C2 COM Gladstone

128 E DARTMOUTH ST C2 COM Gladstone
150 E EXETER ST C2 COM Gladstone
130 E EXETER ST C2 COM Gladstone

605 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
685 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
125 E FAIRFIELD ST C2 COM Gladstone
129 E FAIRFIELD ST C2 COM Gladstone

135 W GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone
125 W GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone
115 W GLOUCESTER ST C2 COM Gladstone

780 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
730 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
720 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
130 W FAIRFIELD ST C2 COM Gladstone
140 W FAIRFIELD ST C2 COM Gladstone
135 W FAIRFIELD ST C2 COM Gladstone
125 W FAIRFIELD ST C2 COM Gladstone
680 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
660 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
640 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
620 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

130 W EXETER ST C2 COM Gladstone
140 W EXETER ST C2 COM Gladstone
135 W EXETER ST C2 COM Gladstone
125 W EXETER ST C2 COM Gladstone

580 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
540 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

110 W DARTMOUTH ST C2 COM Gladstone
130 W DARTMOUTH ST C2 COM Gladstone

480 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C2 COM Gladstone

8 - 16



480 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
464 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
440 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
430 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
420 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone

130 W CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone
140 W CLARENDON ST C2 COM Gladstone
125 W ARLINGTON ST C2 COM Gladstone

160 PORTLAND AVE C2 COM Gladstone
130 W CLACKAMAS BLVD C2 COM Gladstone
150 W CLACKAMAS BLVD C2 COM Gladstone
160 W CLACKAMAS BLVD C2 COM Gladstone
170 W CLACKAMAS BLVD C2 COM Gladstone
180 W CLACKAMAS BLVD C2 COM Gladstone
385 W CLACKAMAS BLVD C3 COM Gladstone

655 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
645 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
645 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
610 FIRST ST C3 COM Gladstone
630 FIRST ST C3 COM Gladstone
90 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
15 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
10 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
670 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
660 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
650 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
620 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone
610 E ARLINGTON ST C3 COM Gladstone

595 FIRST ST C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone

25 CORNELL AVE C3 COM Gladstone
555 FIRST ST C3 COM Gladstone

780 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
780 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
790 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
660 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
750 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
740 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone
680 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
640 82ND DR C3 COM Gladstone

NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS OP IND Gladstone
NO SITUS OP IND Gladstone

8 - 17



NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone
NO SITUS C3 COM Gladstone

8 - 18



STE99

ST213

ST43

EVELYN ST

OATFIELD RD

JENNIF
ER

ST

82
ND

 D
R

WEB
ST

ER
RD

JENNINGS AVE

RIVER RD

RIVER RD

HOLCOMB BLVD

PORTLAND AVE

CL
AC

KA
MA

SR
IVE

R DR

CL
AC

KA
MA

S R
IV E

R
DR

ARLINGTON ST

FORSYTHE RD

Johnson
City

Gladstone

Oregon City

West Linn

§̈¦205

Current Enterprise Zone Boundary
Proposed North Urban Clackamas County Enterprise Zone

DRAFT
 GLADSTONE

September 2019

North Urban Clackamas County Enterprise Zone

´

0 0.25 0.50.125
Miles

8 - 19



STE99

STE99

ST224

ST213

ST212 ST212

ST213

ST4 3

ST4 3

17
2N

D A
VE

MCVEY AVE

COUNTRY CLUB RD

A AVE

CLACKAMAS RIVER DR

JOHNSON CREEK BLVD

SUNNYSIDE RD

HARMONY RD

82
ND

 AV
E

LAKE RD

SPRINGWATER RD

WASHINGTON ST

ST
AF

FO
RD

RD

SUNNYSIDE RD

SUNNYBROOK BLVD

ROCK CREEK BLVD

§̈¦205

§̈¦205

Gladstone

Milwaukie

Oregon City

Portland

West Linn

Lake Oswego

Happy
Valley

Data Resource Center\Metro

Proposed North Urban Clackamas County 
Enterprise Zone

County Boundary
City Boundaries
Proposed North Urban Clackamas County Enterprise Zone

Total Area of Proposed Zone: 5 square miles
3.5 square miles are unincorporated Clackamas County
1.2 square miles are in the City of Milwaukie
0.3 square miles are in the City of Gladstone
*2018 Imagery

0 0.6 1.20.3 Miles ´
CLACKAMAS COUNTY GIS | NClackamasEZone_2019_BCC.MXD SEPT 13 2019

8 - 20



8 - 21



8 - 22



 
City of Gladstone 

Staff Report  
              
 
Report Date: October 2, 2019  
Meeting Date: October 8, 2019  
To:  Gladstone City Council 
From: Jacque Betz, City Administrator,     
 
AGENDA ITEM 
Adoption of Ordinance 1497 creating Gladstone Municipal Code chapter 5.55, Business Food 
Waste Requirements.  
 
History/Background 
 
Food is the largest component of our waste stream.  Food is currently being sent to landfills where 
it decays and creates methane, a greenhouse gas more than 25 times more impactful than carbon 
dioxide. Landfilling food waste also forsakes opportunities to process food waste into valuable 
products and clean energy.  For over 10 years Metro and local governments have been working 
towards an alternative disposal option.  In July of 2018, the Metro Council adopted a business 
food waste requirement policy.  Under the policy and its administrative rules, local governments 
within Metro’s boundaries are required to adopt an ordinance by July 31, 2019.  
 
Metro has broad solid waste authority over solid waste planning in the region granted by the Metro 
Charter, the Oregon Constitution and Oregon Statutes (ORS 268 section 317; ORS 459.055 & 
ORS 459.095). In turn DEQ approves Metro’s waste plan for the region. 
 
Metro has proposed to mitigate the cost of more widespread food waste collection in a few ways. 
Temporary Access to Transfer Service payments will be paid by Metro to haulers, to mitigate the 
costs of taking food scraps greater distances to transfer stations compared to its current transfer 
destination. Metro will cover half the cost of in-house collection containers. Metro also maintains 
a lower fee for commercial food waste than for municipal solid waste. 
 
Metro’s Administrative Rule 5.10-4000 has consequences for those local governments that do 
not comply with the directive.  If Gladstone does not comply with the administrative rule, the result 
could be a loss of funding for other programs and services [5.10-4085(4) & 5.10-4085(5)].  Most 
of these services such as technical assistance for businesses, are an important part of 
implementing conditions of state recycling laws and our regional plan. Clackamas County 
provides many of these services on the city’s behalf, using regional funds, or supports the city in 
doing so.   
 
Public Outreach/Involvement 
Since 2016, Metro staff at the direction of Metro Council, has been working on policies and 
performing outreach within the business community around the region.  Metro’s outreach included 
approximately 2,000 business in the region, a broad swath of businesses intended to offer 
opportunity for a representative reaction and input. This covered most food related businesses 
that may generate enough food waste to be covered by the requirement. Some small food related 
businesses that are not in state databases and may not generate sufficient food waste, were not 
notified. Most of the responses received by Metro were supportive of this new policy.  Additionally, 
Metro worked with Oregon Restaurant & Lodging Association, local Chambers of Commerce (8), 
12 food rescue agencies and presented at many City Council meetings.  
 
 
 

9 - 1



9 - 2



9 - 3



 

ORDINANCE NO. _1497_ 

AN ORDINANCE ADDING CHAPTER 5.55 TO GLADSTONE MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLED 
BUSINESS FOOD WASTE REQUIRMENTS 

WHEREAS, the City of Gladstone is within Metro’s jurisdiction for Solid Waste Management; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, Metro has mandated the City adopt Business Food Waste Requirements effective 

July 31, 2019; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City finds it is in the public interest to adopt these requirements. 
 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City of Gladstone ordains as follows: 

Section 1. The Gladstone City Council adds chapter 5.55, of the Gladstone Municipal Code 
as described in Exhibit A to this ordinance, which is attached and incorporated by 
reference.   

Section 2. This ordinance takes effect on November 8, 2019. 

 

Adopted by the Gladstone City Council this _    _ day of ___          _, 2019. 

 

      ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ ____________________________________  
Tammy Stempel, Mayor    Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

9 - 4



ORIDNANCE 1497 

Exhibit A 

 

5.55 BUSINESS FOOD WASTE REQUIRMENTS 

All covered businesses in the City that fall within the Metro District boundary and Clackamas County 
shall comply as set forth in this Chapter and regulations promulgated hereunder. A business, for the 
purposes of this Chapter, is a business that cooks, assembles, processes, serves, or sells food or does so 
as service providers for other enterprises and generates more than 250 pounds per week of food waste. 

5.55.010 PURPOSE AND INTENT 

1. The purpose and intent of this Chapter is to: 
a. Source separate food waste and prevent that waste from entering the solid waste 
system; and 
b. Comply with applicable provisions of Metro’s Solid Waste Administrative Rules 
and Clackamas County’s Solid Waste Management Ordinances. 

5.55.020 DEFINITIONS 

“Business” means organizations that cook, assemble, process, serve or sell food or do so as 
service providers for other enterprises. 
 
“City staff, or Designee” means duly appointed representative of the City of Gladstone. 
“Food waste” means waste generated from the distribution, storage, preparation, cooking, 
handling, selling or serving of food for human consumption. Food waste includes but is not 
limited to excess, spoiled or unusable food and includes inedible parts commonly associated with 
food preparation such as pits, shells, bones, rinds, and peels. Food waste does not include liquids 
or large amounts of oils and meats which are collected for rendering, fuel production or other 
non-disposal applications, or any food fit for human consumption that has been set aside, stored 
properly and is accepted for donation by a charitable organization or any food collected to feed 
animals in compliance with applicable regulations.  

“Exempt” means liquids or large amounts of oils and meats which are collected for rendering, 
fuel production or other non-disposal applications, or any food fit for human consumption that 
has been set aside, stored properly and is accepted for donation by a charitable organization and 
any food collected to feed animals in compliance with applicable regulations. 
 

5.55.030  APPLICABILITY 
 1. This ordinance applies to all businesses.   
 2. Businesses subject to the business food waste requirement include without limitation: 

Cafeterias & buffets, Caterers, Correctional facilities, Food product manufacturing, Food 
service contractors, Full service restaurants, Grocery retail, Grocery wholesale, Limited service 

9 - 5



restaurants, Specialty food markets, Warehouse clubs: and those businesses with full-service 
restaurants or on-site food preparation or service, Colleges & universities, Drinking places, 
Bars, Taverns, Elementary and secondary schools, Hospitals, Hotels, Nursing & residential 
care, Retirement & assisted living. 

a. Only those with full-service restaurant or on-site food preparation or services are 
subject to this requirement.  

 
5.55.040 BUSINESS FOOD WASTE REQUIRMENTS 

1.  Businesses must collect food waste that is controlled by the business, agents, and employees. 
This requirement does not apply to food wastes controlled by customers or the public. At its 
discretion, a business may also collect food waste from customers or the public but must ensure 
that food wastes are free of non-food waste items. K-12 schools may also include student-
generated food waste from school cafeteria meals but must ensure that food wastes are free of 
non-food items. 

2.  Businesses must have correctly-labeled and easily-identifiable receptacles for internal 
maintenance or work areas where food waste may be collected, stored, or both. 

3.  Businesses must post accurate signs where food waste is collected and stored that identify the 
materials that the covered business must source separate. 

4.  All Businesses must comply with this section by September 30, 2023; 

a. Businesses, that are not schools, generating greater than 1,000 pounds/week must 
comply with this section by March 31, 2021; 
b. Businesses, that are not schools, generating greater than 500 pounds of food waste 
per week must comply with this section by September 30, 2022; 

5.  Persons and entities that own, manage or operate premises with business tenants, that are 
Businesses, and that provide garbage collection service to those business tenants, shall provide 
food waste collection systems adequate to enable those business tenants to comply with the 
requirements of subsections 1, 2, 3 and 4 of this sub-section. 

 
6.  A Business may seek a temporary compliance waiver issued by Clackamas County, subject to 
the following conditions: 

a. The temporary compliance waiver will not exceed twelve (12) months, and; 
b. The business provides access to City staff, or designee for a site visit to 
demonstrate that the covered business cannot comply with this section, and,  
c. City staff, or designee approves a temporary compliance waiver under this 
section, and; 
d. City staff, or designee performs periodic site visits to ensure the conditions 
allowing a temporary compliance waiver under this section are still in place and 
cannot be remedied, and;  

9 - 6



e City staff, or designee may determine a renewal of the temporary compliance 
waiver is warranted. 

7.  A business that does not comply with subsections 1-6 of the business food waste requirement: 

a. May receive a written notice of noncompliance from the City, or designee. The 
notice of noncompliance will: 

1. Describe the violation, and; 
2. Provide the business an opportunity, with a deadline, to cure the violation, 
and; 
3. Offer assistance with compliance. 

b. A business failing to cure a violation within the time specified in the notice of 
noncompliance, may receive a written citation that will: 

1. Provide an additional opportunity, with a deadline, to cure the violation; 
2. Notify the business that it may be subject to a fine. 

c. A business that does not cure a violation within the time specified in the citation 
may be subject to a fine. 

 

 

9 - 7



9 - 8

bannick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "B"



9 - 9

bannick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "C"



9 - 10

bannick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "D"



9 - 11



9 - 12

bannick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "D"



9 - 13

bannick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "E"



9 - 14



9 - 15



9 - 16



9 - 17

bannick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "F"



9 - 18



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
 
Report Date:  October 2, 2019  
Meeting Date:  October 8, 2019  
To:     Gladstone City Council 
From:    Cathy Brucker, Interim Finance Director    
 
AGENDA ITEM 
Resolution No. 1166 declaring funds received as Assigned Fund Balance – Gladstone 
Public Library within the General Fund of the city. 
 
History/Background 
The Gladstone Library Advisory Board, as allowed by Resolution 346, accumulated 
miscellaneous funds and donations over a period of more than forty years, for the specific 
use at the Gladstone Public Library.  With the impending transfer of the library services 
to Clackamas County (and dissolution of the current Library Board), the remaining funds 
were deposited at OnPoint Credit Union, as a certificate of deposit in the amount of 
$16,679.10 under the ownership of the Gladstone Library Foundation (Exhibit A- 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).  The intent was for the Foundation to maintain 
these funds, in a custodial capacity, for future use at the new Gladstone Public Library.  
Their intentions were pure, however, the Gladstone Library Board does not have the legal 
authority to transfer the funds. The MOU will need to be annulled. 
 
Proposal 
Because these funds were collected by a city advisory board, they are technically funds 
of the city.  Therefore, staff has arranged for the ownership of the certificate of deposit to 
be transferred into the name of the City of Gladstone, with no penalties incurred.  The 
Gladstone Library Foundation Board is in agreement of this transfer. 
 
Finally, in order to ensure these funds are used for the originally intended purpose of 
improvements to the Gladstone Public Library, the Library Advisory Board has requested 
these funds be restricted by the City Council with adoption of Resolution 1166.  The funds 
would be classified as Assigned Fund Balance – Gladstone Public Library, meaning they 
can only be appropriated and expended on the Library, with the advice of the Gladstone 
Library Foundation Board and the Gladstone Library Planning Task Force.  Management 
of funds would be under the guidance of the City Administrator, and could only be 
redirected by the City Council, again through the resolution process. 
 
Options 

 Do not approve Resolution 1166.  – Legally (ORS 294.361(2)), the funds will still 
need to be transferred to the city, but the restrictions for expenditure as requested 
by the Gladstone Library Board would not be placed. 

 
 

10 - 1



10 - 2



P:\New Files\RESOLUTIONS\RES.1166.Library Board Funds Transfer.docx 
 

 

RESOLUTION   1166   

CITY OF GLADSTONE, OREGON 

A Resolution of the City Council of the City of Gladstone, Oregon, declaring funds received as 
 Assigned Fund Balance – Gladstone Public Library within the General Fund of the City. 

 

WHEREAS, The Gladstone Library Foundation holds as custodian for the Gladstone Library 
Advisory Board, a certificate of deposit for $16,679.10; and 

WHEREAS, the Gladstone Library Advisory Board had accumulated those funds from 
miscellaneous sources for the express purpose of improvements or purchases for 
the Gladstone Public Library; and 

WHEREAS, the funds will be transferred to the City of Gladstone as the legal custodian, then 
appropriated and expended in the future, based on advice of the Gladstone Library 
Foundation Board and the Gladstone Library Planning Task Force, for the new 
Gladstone Public Library to be constructed; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Gladstone, that 
the City Council hereby designates those funds as Assigned Fund Balance – Gladstone Public 
Library within the General Fund of the City, and may only be expended on said purpose, as 
assigned by the City Administrator. 

This Resolution is adopted by the Gladstone City Council and approved by the Mayor this 8th day 
of October, 2019. 

       ATTEST: 

 

 
___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Tamara Stempel, Mayor    Tami Bannick, City Recorder 

10 - 3



10 - 4

bannick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"



11 - 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

TO: Mayor Stempel 

 Gladstone City Councilors 

 

FROM: David Doughman, City Attorney’s Office 

 

SUBJECT: Amendments to Time Limits on Land Use Approvals 

 

DATE: October 2, 2019 

 

 

The Gladstone City Council will hold a public hearing at its October 8, 2019 meeting to consider 

recommended changes to Title 17 of the Gladstone Municipal Code.  The Gladstone Planning 

Commission’s recommended changes are included as an exhibit to Ordinance No. 1498.  

  

The changes are intended to clarify when and how the city may extend certain land use 

approvals.   The planning commission focused on the extension process for four types of 

approvals: conditional uses (Chapter 17.70); variances (Chapter 17.72); adjustments (Chapter 

17.73) and design review (Chapter 17.80). 

 

One of the recommended changes, addressed in GMC 17.66.015, is to require an applicant to 

receive an extension prior to the expiration date of the approval.  Previously, the code required 

an applicant to only make a request for an extension prior to the expiration date.  This is a policy 

choice for the council to make.  In my experience, cities more commonly require an applicant to 

apply for an extension before the decision expires, rather than actually receive the extension 

itself. 

 

Recognizing this requirement effectively places a burden on the city to make a decision prior to 

expiration of the approval, the planning commission recommends that in all instances, the city 

administrator or designee be authorized to approve the extension.  In addition, the recommended 

changes make it clear that an applicant must submit the request far enough in advance to allow 

the city to have enough time to make a decision.  With respect to design review approvals 

specifically, the recommendation is to require an applicant to submit a request at least 90 days 

prior to the date the approval expires. 

 

If the council agrees with the recommended changes, after holding a hearing, it may adopt the 

ordinance and amend Title 17 accordingly.  The council may also consider additional changes 

and direct staff to return with a revised ordinance at a future council meeting. 

 

 

 

11 - 2



11 - 3



P:\New Files\ORDINANCES\Ord.1498.ExhibitA.TimeLimitExtensions.docx 
 

ORDINANCE   1498   
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Proposed amendments to Gladstone Municipal Code Title 17 – Zoning and Development 
 
New language is underlined.  Language to be removed is struck through. 
 
 
17.66.015 Coordination of applications and procedures. 
 
(4) Time Limit Extensions. If the code allows an applicant to request a renewal or an extension of the 
expiration date of a land use approval, the applicant must make the request in writing. a request for an 
extension to the original land use permit of the approval must be requested A decision to approve the 
request must occur, if at all, prior to the associated expiration date pursuant to Division V.  Retroactive 
renewals or extensions will not be granted.  It is an applicant’s responsibility to timely submit a 
renewal or extension request in order to permit the city sufficient time to approve or deny the request 
prior to the expiration date.  In accordance with GMC Chapter 17.82, the city may impose a fee on a 
request for a renewal or an extension.   
 

(a) A request to renew or extend a design review approval must be submitted at 
least ninety (90) days prior to the expiration date of the approval. 

 
17.70.040 Time limit on permit. 
 
(2) Upon request and in accordance with GMC 17.66.015(4), the one (1) year period may be renewed 
once by the Planning Commission City Administrator or designee for not more than one (1) year. 
 
17.72.040 Time limit. 
 
(2) Upon request and in accordance with GMC 17.66.015(4), the one (1) year period may be renewed 
once by the Planning Commission City Administrator or designee for not more than one (1) year. 
 
17.73.040 Time limit. 
 
(2) Upon request and in accordance with GMC 17.66.015(4), prior to its expiration, the one (1) year 
period may be renewed once by the City Administrator or his designee for not more than (1) year. 
 
17.80.100 Compliance. 
 
(1) Approval of design review shall expire if construction has not begun within one (1) two (2) years of 
the date of the final decision. Upon request and in accordance with GMC 17.66.015(4)(a), the one (1) 
two (2) year period may be renewed once by the Planning Commission City Administrator or designee 
for not more than one (1) year. 
 
 

11 - 4



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
 
Report Date : October 2, 2019   
Meeting Date:  October 8, 2019 
To :    City Council   
From : Jim Whynot, Public Works Director     
         
AGENDA ITEM 
 
Consider Utility Rate Options for January 2020 and January 2021 Implementation 
 
 
History/Background 
 
For many years Gladstone invested little or nothing in maintaining, updating, or 
replacing its infrastructure. Small or no increases in those years meant Gladstone’s 
rates did not keep up with inflation.  
 
Examples of infrastructure failures can be seen in the Public Works Monthly Reports 
which include chronic permit violations (overflowing raw sewage into the Clackamas 
River), pipe failures leaving customers without water (in the most recent case the city 
had to issue a precautionary boil water notice), and flooding of city streets. 
 
In an effort to start investing in the city’s infrastructure the City Council first started by 
updating the city’s utility master plans in 2014 followed by rate studies completed in 
2018. The rates studies show the need for significant rate increases in order to repair, 
maintain, and replace its infrastructure, see attached Option C. 
 
In 2016 elected officials conducted public outreach (open houses, work sessions, City 
Council Meetings, and mailed inserts and fact sheets) to educate the community about 
their infrastructure. The overwhelming response from the community was that we need 
to invest in our aging infrastructure. Elected officials approved a staff’s phased-in 
approach to raising revenue enough to maintain existing infrastructure. Below is a 
chronological order of updates that occurred: 
 

 July 2017  Implemented a Stormwater Utility of $5.00 per month 
 January 2018 Updates to water by $1.58 and sewer by $0.50 per month 
 July 2018  Update Stormwater by $5.00 per month 
 January 2019 Update water by $1.99 and sewer by $0.48 per month 

 
These increases has put the city in a position to now maintain the city’s infrastructure 
but does not allow for replacement of it or address the mandated Mutual Agreement and 
Order with DEQ. 
 
Most recently the City Council has involved citizens in the decisions on future rates 
increases. A public open house was held on September 24, 2019 and also asked the 
community to participate in Customer Survey on utility rates. As of the writing of this 
report the city has received 111 responses to the survey. See attached results. In 

12 - 1



12 - 2



What’s the problem with Gladstone’s 
stormwater system? 

During storms, the rainwater enters sewer pipes and mixes with untreated 
sewage. The combined sewage/stormwater then overflows onto local streets 
and into the Clackamas River and other local streams leading to unsanitary 
conditions, regulatory violations and stiff fines.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gladstone’s 
Stormwater Program 

 12 - 3



How is the stormwater problem being solved?  
A stormwater utility was established in June 2017 to proactively manage the 
quality and quantity of stormwater in our city. 
 

How is the stormwater fee calculated? 
An average single-family residence has about 3,000 square feet of impervious surface 
area, the hard area on a property that prevents water from going into the ground and 
therefore increases stormwater runoff. 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

How does the City 
use the money? 
The stormwater fees enable the 
Public Works Department to 
proactively maintain, repair, and 
replace failing infrastructure.  
The first step is to ensure 
stormwater is separated from the sewer system 
to prevent sewer overflows.  
 
 
 

Gladstone’s 
Stormwater Program 

 

= $10 per month* 
Residential 

= $10 per month* per 3,000 square feet 
of impervious surface area 

Commercial/other  

*Through December 2019 
 

12 - 4



Comparing Gladstone’s Utility Rates 
Combined Monthly Rates – Water, Wastewater, Stormwater,  

Streets, Parks/Other 
 

 

 

 

  

 

  

Typical Single Family Residence – 6 CCF Per Month 

$68.05 
$75.73 

$85.67 

$101.44 $102.78 

$118.93 
$129.21 $133.16 

 $-

 $20.00

 $40.00

 $60.00

 $80.00

 $100.00

 $120.00

 $140.00

Gladstone Gladstone Gladstone Oak Lodge West Linn Oregon City Milwaukie Gladstone

Current Option A Option B Option C 

$0 

12 - 5



The comparison shows a typical utility customer's total monthly bill effective July 1, 2019. 

The average Gladstone customer uses 6 ccf (1 ccf=748 gallons) of water per month with a 3/4" meter, which was used for the comparisons.

Gladstone Oak Lodge Water Services West Linn Oregon City Milwaukie

Total $68.05 $101.44 $102.78 $118.93 $129.21

Water $22.61 $33.67 $23.67 $33.27 $32.72

Wastewater $35.44 $53.51 $43.76 $55.53 $57.41

Stormwater $10.00 $14.26 $7.12 $10.24 $28.75

Street $0.00 $0.00 $13.17 $13.39 $10.33

Parks/other $0.00 $0.00 $15.06 $6.50 $0.00

$68.05

$101.44 $102.78

$118.93
$129.21

$0.00

$25.00

$50.00

$75.00

$100.00

$125.00

$150.00

M
o

n
th

ly
  C

h
ar

ge
s

Typical Single Family Home Monthly Utility Bill Comparison 
effective July 1, 2019

12 - 6



Where your property tax dollar goes*

**Other=Metro, Port of Portland

K-12 Schools 
47¢

Clackamas 
County 

15¢

Community 
College

3¢

Urban Renewal 
5¢

**Other 
2¢

Gladstone 
(General Fund)

27¢

*No property tax dollars are spent on water-wastewater-stormwater utilities

12 - 7



Gladstone 
General Fund* 
(2019-21 Biennium)

Police / Court
37%

Fire
21%

Facilities / 
Administration

24%

Library
6%

Parks & 
Recreation

8%

Senior 
Center

4%

Service Budget
(Millions)

Staff 
(FTE)

Police / Court $6.2 18.5

Fire 3.5 5.0

Facilities / Administration 4.1 7.4

Library 1.0 5.5

Parks & Recreation 1.3 2

Senior Center 0.7 3.5

Total $16.5 43.0

*No General Fund dollars are spent on 
water-wastewater-stormwater utilities

12 - 8



City of Gladstone 

CUSTOMER SURVEY 
 
How much will Gladstone utility customers pay next year? The answer is more. It’s not just the water-or sewer-
or stormwater rates – all three utility rates are expected to rise.  

Here’s why rates are expected to increase. For many years Gladstone invested little or nothing in maintaining, 
updating or replacing infrastructure. Small rate increases or no increases in those years meant Gladstone’s 
rates didn’t even keep up with inflation. That led to serious deficiencies.   

The City Council is asking customers for advice to help shape the City’s future rate increases. Please take a 
moment to complete and return this survey. Which option do you prefer?  

 
Option A – Mandated Minimum 
Gladstone is operating under a compliance agreement with federal/state regulators after repeat violations for 
unpermitted discharges to streams (sewage overflows into the Clackamas River) due to our aging 
infrastructure. This option increases rates just enough to provide the minimum amount needed to stay in 
compliance. It produces the smallest annual increases in the early years – but does not support infrastructure 
replacement, the long-term solution for fixing Gladstone’s problems.   

Current Monthly Rates Year One Year Two   Year Three 
Water $22.61 +11.3% +11.7%  *All utilities: inflationary increases 

only (2% to 5% per year) Sewer $35.44 +11.3% +11.7%  
Stormwater $10.00  +11.3%  +11.7%  
Total $68.05 $75.73 $84.60  

 Assures regulatory compliance 
 Failing systems not replaced 
 Lowest rates in early years 

 
Option B – In-the-Middle 
In the second option, the first-year and second-year rate increases would be more than the minimum option – 
25.9% vs. 11.3%. This approach would start us down the path of slowly fixing our failing systems over several 
generations, allowing the City to gradually replace infrastructure over the next 100 years.   

                Current Rates Year One Year Two  Year Three 
 –  +25.9%  +26.0%  Inflationary increases only (2% to 

5% per year)  $68.05 $85.67 $107.95 

Assures regulatory compliance 
Begins long-term replacement of failing systems (takes 100 years to catch up) 
Higher rates in early years 

– OVER – 

12 - 9



Act now! Let the City Council know your preference! 
Go to www.surveymonkey.com/r/gladstonerates 

 
Option C – Immediate Reinvestment 
This option would allow Gladstone to make immediate investments to fix our failing infrastructure. It requires 
a steeper increase in the first year (95.7%) vs. an 11.3% increase for Option A or 25.9% increase for Option B. 
This option would raise enough revenue to support infrastructure replacement over the next 20 to 30 years – 
a long-term solution for fixing our problems.  

                  Current Rates Year One Year Two  Year Three 
 –  +95.7%  +18.2%  Inflationary increases only (2% to 

5% per year)  $68.05 $133.16 $157.43 

Assures regulatory compliance 
Immediate steps to replace failing systems (20-30 years to catch up) 
Highest rates in early years 

 
 
Which option do you prefer?  

� Option A – Mandated Minimum 

� Option B – In-the-Middle 

� Option C – Immediate Reinvestment 

 

Reasons for your preference: ________________________________________________________________  

 

 

Comments or questions?: ___________________________________________________________________  

 

 
 
 
 
*Note: the monthly rates are for a typical household. Rates shown for future years are estimates. The City of Gladstone 
receives services from other agencies for water supply and wastewater treatment. Those costs – unknown at this time – 
must be passed through to customers. 

12 - 10



Comparing Gladstone’s Utility Rates 
Combined Monthly Rates – Water, Wastewater, Stormwater,  

Streets, Parks/Other 
 

 

 

 

  

 

  

Typical Single Family Residence – 6 CCF Per Month 

$68.05 
$75.73 

$85.67 

$101.44 $102.78 

$118.93 
$129.21 $133.16 

 $-

 $20.00

 $40.00

 $60.00

 $80.00

 $100.00

 $120.00

 $140.00

Gladstone Gladstone Gladstone Oak Lodge West Linn Oregon City Milwaukie Gladstone

Current Option A Option B Option C 

$0 

12 - 11



Gladstone Utility Rates 
Customer Survey – September/October 2019 

 

Highlights 10/1/19 

 

Summary  

There has been a strong response to the Customer Survey, with 111 responses to date. More than 60% 
of respondents favor adopting more than the mandated minimum increase. The survey is still online 
and final results will be presented at the October 8 City Council meeting.  

Results 

• 111 responses 
• 61% prefer adopting more than the minimum increase: 

38% Option B – In-the-Middle 
23% Option C – Immediate Reinvestment 

• 39% prefer Option A – Mandated Minimum  

 

Comments/Themes 

Taxes and monthly rates are already too high.  
“What about you take some of my exceedingly HIGH taxes and use that money?” 

“I am a senior living on Social Security only and cannot afford any increase at all.” 

The City of Gladstone is responsible for this problem. 
“Fiscal and foresight issues are your responsibility to manage properly. Not ours.” 

“This has happened because of years of mismanagement and people not caring – which is still 
happening today.” 

The City needs to take action to improve/replace failing infrastructure. 
“We need to step up since those before us have not. It’s a hard bite, but why not us? Why not 
now? 

“Well, I don’t like any of them. However, if my kids are like me, they’ll live here, too. Somebody 
will, anyway. I feel that I’m better off in the mid to long run if I pay now because I want things 
fixed and I don’t want to pass that responsibility on for 100 years. Even with the 20-30 years on 
the immediate reinvestment option I may not live long enough to see all of the work done, but 
at least I know I’m leaving Gladstone a little better than I found it.” 

12 - 12



Option A – Mandated Minimum  
“Any of the other options can be taxing on people’s income which some already have a hard 
time.” 

“People can afford this and does not put people in a position to either pay bills or buy food.” 

Option B – In-the-Middle 
“It would be better to go to Option B at this time – due to publicity, business projections I have 
seen we are near a recession.” 

“Appears to be a good, balanced approach.” 

“This is not a surprise to many Gladstone residents. I support Option B because we need to do 
more than just the minimum.” 

Option C – Immediate Reinvestment  
“I just moved to Gladstone and would not be financially burdened by this rate, which would 
ensure a quick fix to failing infrastructure.” 

“I want to see real, noticeable change to our infrastructure.”  

Other Funding Options 
“There is a big monthly difference between Option B and C. Couldn’t there be something in 
between these? Something that puts us in the middle of our peers and replaces our 
infrastructure between 30-100 years?” 

“Some sort of sliding scale tax based on years of residence in Gladstone: 20+ years – 95% rate 
increase; 10-20 years – 50%; 0-10 years – 20%. By your own admission, many years have gone 
by without investing in infrastructure.” 

“Possible to propose a bond?” 

“I think that the bigger issue is that many people use more water than they would otherwise 
because of the 6 ccf minimum.” 

“There needs to be a better way to go about this. We need less churches and schools. Churches 
need to pay taxes.” 

Advice 
“If Gladstone’s Option C included a plan for replacing laterals (or something else tied directly to 
the property owner), I would be more supportive.” 

“Please fix things. You will never make everyone happy with a rate increase, and people vote 
against their own interests all the time.” 

“It is in the best interest of all of Gladstone to fix infrastructure sooner than later, and as 
residents we should be happy to invest in our future and the future of our families.” 

“Please continue proactive communication and engagement efforts!” 

12 - 13



38.83% 40

37.86% 39

23.30% 24

Q1 Which option do you prefer?
Answered: 103 Skipped: 8

TOTAL 103

Option A -
Mandated...

Option B -
In-the-Middle

Option C -
Immediate...

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

ANSWER CHOICES RESPONSES

Option A - Mandated Minimum

Option B - In-the-Middle

Option C - Immediate Reinvestment

1 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 14



Q2 Reasons for your preference:
Answered: 82 Skipped: 29

# RESPONSES DATE

1 Can't afford bills as it is. 9/30/2019 3:41 PM

2 Immediate was too high but still want to invest more in the infrastructure for repairs. 9/30/2019 1:49 PM

3 Let’s get this done before the costs go up even more. 9/30/2019 1:35 PM

4 Let’s get this done before the costs go up even more. 9/30/2019 1:29 PM

5 Reasonable acceleration of costs. 9/30/2019 1:25 PM

6 Don't plan on living in Gladstone for the longterm 9/30/2019 9:41 AM

7 No one has the money for Option C in this area. We are already strapped paying high property
tax, even higher than many areas around us. The other thing, is that my family does not even use
the 6 units most months. You are asking us to pay even more for water that we are not even
using, with NO incentive or bonus for not using all of what we are allotted. You cannot increase
these rates without at least something to help us try to keep our rates down. For example, like with
electricity...you pay for what you use. And if you want to save money you just turn lights off and do
not run as many appliances etc. Some of us live paycheck to paycheck, and we do what we can to
limit expenses. I do not even have cable. So there is nothing for me to cut in order to help me with
this increase.I am not alone in this, there are many people that live here that are on a fixed
income.

9/30/2019 2:18 AM

8 Option A seems irresponsible. Option B is better, but within 100 years I would anticipate more
things to break, that option B wouldn't account for. We should have done option B years ago, we
didn't, and now it's time to pay for that mistake. After 20 years we should re-evaluate and see if we
can reduce rates.

9/29/2019 5:19 PM

9 Rates are the lowest. 9/29/2019 12:14 PM

10 Cost to residents that may price residents out of homes. 9/29/2019 10:02 AM

11 I think it is important to start upgrading our infrastructure for the future. And although, compared to
the rest of the area Gladstone has very low rates, I believe option B is the best option to avoid
placing an extreme financial burden on our community.

9/29/2019 9:56 AM

12 Should have been doing this already. POOR management by not putting together a plan for
replacement.

9/29/2019 3:50 AM

13 With the Right of Way taxes/fees bleeding me and the rest of the Gladstone citizens to death, I do
not support any increase but that was not an option so I went with Option A.

9/28/2019 2:08 PM

14 We’d prefer to be up to date & have appropriately working utilities. As much as I’d like to pick
option A. It just doesn’t solve the problem. Option C is too much!! That will double our utility bill. So
the middle works, although not soon enough & hurts my monthly output more than I’d like.

9/28/2019 8:10 AM

15 cant afford any more. 9/28/2019 7:32 AM

16 Fixed income citizens can’t afford the largest increase option. 9/28/2019 3:57 AM

17 I feel we need to take an aggressive approach because we have allowed it to so run down. A 100
year plan to fix the problem feels more like a perpetual bandaid.

9/28/2019 2:35 AM

18 We can not risk water and sewer services. Let's get it done. 9/28/2019 2:11 AM

19 We're on a limited budget. 9/28/2019 1:11 AM

20 I think we need to invest in infrastructure, but option c is way too steep a cost increase and would
make our rates way higher than our neighbors. Hopefully we can leverage state or federal
infrastructure investment funds to do replacement more quickly than 100 years, and option b at
least gives us some seed money for matching funds.

9/28/2019 1:00 AM

21 We need to get it done 9/28/2019 12:59 AM

2 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 15



22 Utilities have increased so much over the years it is driving long time retired residence out. Wages
are not increasing nearly as fast as the cost of living.

9/27/2019 11:52 PM

23 If a new city hall and police station weren't being built, I would say option c. We can't make pretty
buildings and fix infrastructure at the same time.

9/27/2019 4:56 PM

24 Slow but steady reinvestment. 9/27/2019 4:05 PM

25 As they say, “Needs must.” 9/27/2019 2:51 PM

26 We need to begin not only staying within compliance but fixing failing systems. At the same time,
we shouldn't double the rates to fix everything at once. Wages won't double just because rates do
and that's a huge jump for the third option.

9/27/2019 2:39 PM

27 Closes the gap but without a 95% increase in year one. 9/27/2019 1:04 PM

28 Senior citizen on a fixed income. 9/27/2019 12:45 PM

29 I dont want to give anymore of my money to government 9/27/2019 12:11 PM

30 We obviously need to improve our infrastructure. Unfortunately, many households already
struggle.

9/27/2019 10:56 AM

31 Im a Gladstone Resident who has to pay the Oak Lodge rates... why don't you raise just the folks
rates who pay the sweet Gladstone much lower rate to what we are paying...

9/27/2019 9:15 AM

32 I don't want higher rates anymore then the next person, but we have wasted the last 40 yrs doing
nothing, why just keep status quo for the next 100yrs (plan B), things need to be fixed for our
residents, its only a matter of time the old pipes collapse.

9/27/2019 6:48 AM

33 Best for residence. 9/27/2019 6:31 AM

34 It's not residents' fault the city has failed to invest in infrastructure for years. A huge jump all of a
sudden is not fair to anyone, especially low-income households and households living on a fixed
income.

9/27/2019 5:58 AM

35 It's not residents' fault the city has failed to invest in infrastructure for years. A huge jump all of a
sudden is not fair to anyone, especially low-income households and households living on a fixed
income.

9/27/2019 5:58 AM

36 Increasing so much will be financial difficult for a lot of people 9/27/2019 5:42 AM

37 None we shouldn’t have to pay again for the mistakes you have made. You take our taxes and
utility money and have wasted it. Now you want the people to clean up what should have been
taken care of all along. I pay way more a month then you state. It is already hard with our
economy for a single mom to raise kids.

9/27/2019 4:35 AM

38 You were so negligent and incompetent when informing residents about the boil order that you
can't be trusted with more than the minimum. I will personally vote against any measure
requesting more than the minimum and go door to door to oppose you.

9/27/2019 2:52 AM

39 Even option B is ridiculous increase but doing nothing as option A isn’t a good plan either. The
retired community that lives in Gladstone is going to struggle with any increase but it has to be
done at some point just not in a 20 to 30 year plan since the city has ignored the need for so long
those that live here now shouldn’t have to foot the entire bill all at once.

9/27/2019 2:50 AM

40 I don't understand how anyone on a fixed income would ever be able to meet option C, keeping in
mind the 3% property tax increase year after year . My income doesn't go up 3% per year, let
alone 5%. It's also an extremely hard pill to swallow considering just a couple years ago, we were
paying $90.90. As for Option A, this will never really make up for the years of neglect. At least not
in any timeframe that would be useful. I am sure most folks will close Option A, though.

9/26/2019 12:55 PM

41 How about you take some of my exceedingly HIGH taxes and use that money? 9/26/2019 9:30 AM

42 Can’t afford the rates we have now so I prefer the cheapest option 9/26/2019 8:47 AM

43 My water and sewer bill is already pretty high and I can't afford that big of a jump in price. 9/26/2019 6:13 AM

44 I'm poor, its already difficult keeping up with all the increases. 9/26/2019 5:56 AM

45 Current rate payers should not be asked to make up for years of neglect by almost doubling their
rates when there should have been gradual rate increases over the last 20-30 years.

9/26/2019 3:41 AM

3 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 16



46 This is the polations fault not the residences I see the city spend tons of money on things they
should cut back on they need to figure out how to live with in there budget.

9/26/2019 3:09 AM

47 I'm not interested in paying more just to have that price stick for the rest of our lives. If we pay the
highest amount immediately, what says that price isn't going to come down once the work is done.
I don't believe that we should have to pay for this at all. There is more than enough money already
to pay for this. Municipalities make a ton of profit off of us. They can use their profits to fix the
problem.

9/26/2019 2:46 AM

48 Would like to understand if there are other options for raising the money rather than a rate
increase that option c drives.

9/26/2019 2:25 AM

49 We have to play catch up, and to correct past failures to reinvest in our infrastructure.If we do not,
in the future it will cost even more.

9/26/2019 2:14 AM

50 We need to fix things so we stop wasting funds on repairs. 9/26/2019 1:53 AM

51 Don’t trust Gladstone to do the right thing. Not sure they will spend the money on what they say. 9/26/2019 1:43 AM

52 Compromise option 25% for 3 years that's a 75% increase - Sara to Chapin - Oak Lodge Board
meetings open

9/25/2019 4:41 AM

53 I'm paying way more than you advertised here! At Oak Lodge we pay $98.00 not $68.00 9/25/2019 4:38 AM

54 at least start improvements, want to protect the river. Don't want a bond. 9/25/2019 4:36 AM

55 I am a senior living on Social Security only and can not afford any increase at all. 9/25/2019 2:46 AM

56 None this is insane we pay enough 9/24/2019 10:35 AM

57 The frank admission that Gladstone's city council has done next to nothing up until this point
doesn't foster in me great confidence that my money invested in renewing Gladstone's
infrastructure would be allocated efficiently and appropriately. The city of Gladstone has gotten
themselves into a mess and now they want to pass the buck onto its citizens. No, I will not
endorse an option that will throw good money after bad. Figure it out Gladstone.

9/24/2019 9:15 AM

58 It seems extremely unfair to raise these rates so high that you are actually pricing retirees out of
their homes, due to the city making errors in billing practices. Perhaps when the the additional
money we pay on our property taxes for the school levy is paid off would be a more appropriate
time

9/24/2019 8:46 AM

59 People can afford this and does not put people in a position to either pay bills or buy food. 9/24/2019 6:16 AM

60 $17/month increase is a modest amount overall. Doubling the amount is a big increase. 9/24/2019 6:12 AM

61 We have failed to do minimal maintenance and developments in the system for far to long, we
need to start rebuilding our infrastructure now before we can not afford to do so. Yes will will be
over surrounding cities, but those surrounding cities didn't fail to do what needed to be done for
30+ years.

9/24/2019 6:12 AM

62 We already pay a base amount and never come close to the usage we pay for. Any of the other
options can be taxing on people’s income which some already have a hard time. Paying Fixing a
failing infrastructure over the next 20-30 years to catch up yet that probably won’t ever happen.
Option C rates are ridiculous!

9/23/2019 8:37 AM

63 Appears to be a good balanced approach. 9/23/2019 2:30 AM

64 Option C is a huge cost differential that would impact/alter personal finances. Could maybe support
something more similar to Oak Lodge or West Linn, but I would want to stay below Oregon City.
Generally I use Oregon City as a good barameter- they seem to have appropriate development; it
would be great if bled over into Gladstone.

9/23/2019 1:00 AM

65 This is no surprise to many Gladstone residents. I support Option B because we need to do more
than just the minimum and think Option C would be to much for citizens to absorb all at once.

9/22/2019 11:29 PM

66 As a widow on a fixed income, I understand the need....but I have needs, too, and my COLA is
only increasing by 2 percent. It’s been frozen or less than 2 percent for the last ten years.

9/22/2019 2:09 PM

67 I have the ability to do this where others in the community cannot. 9/21/2019 6:18 AM

68 Cash grabs usually fail, this one is too. These rates are ridiculously high, when we moved here 7
years ago it was $87 every other month.

9/21/2019 2:34 AM

4 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 17



69 B would start the increased improvement, but not be as tough on lower and fixed income
residents. C would probably cause significant increase in hiring/equipment in the Public Works
Dept. and maybe other departments so there would be increased costs more than the figures
given here.

9/20/2019 4:23 PM

70 I don’t mind paying more for my utilities if it means better infrastructure in the long-run. 9/20/2019 3:37 PM

71 Kicking the can down the road is not good for anyone, but Option C was way to much money! 9/20/2019 2:31 PM

72 We have been paying so little for a long time. Our water system is in a huge need of repair. 9/20/2019 9:55 AM

73 More than the bare minimum, begin the process of long term updates without doubling cost. My
family can't easily deal with doubled utility costs.

9/20/2019 8:47 AM

74 Because rent is already too expensive. 9/20/2019 8:27 AM

75 I'd rather be able to help replace what's needed right away, but I'm honestly not sure if we can
afford a huge jump in rates. So that's why I picked the middle one.

9/20/2019 8:20 AM

76 Well, I don't like any of them :) However, if my kids are like me they're live here, too. Somebody
will, anyway. I feel that I'm better off in the mid to long run if I pay now because I want things fixed
and I don't want to pass that responsibility on for 100 years. Even with 20-30 years on the
immediate reinvestment option I may not live long enough to see all of the work done, but at least I
know I'm leaving Gladstone a little better than I found it.

9/20/2019 8:03 AM

77 We need to step up since those before us have not. It’s a hard hit, but why not us? Why not now? 9/20/2019 7:37 AM

78 I just moved to Gladstone and I would not be financially burdened by this rate, which would ensure
a quick fix to failing infrastructure.

9/20/2019 7:27 AM

79 Because people in Gladstone are poor lots of unemployment. 9/20/2019 7:20 AM

80 You people are insane. You already increase our rates by adding the right of way fees to every
single utility bill( including water and sewer and storm).

9/20/2019 7:12 AM

81 I worry that Option C would place a hardship on homeowners who are just above the poverty line
and not eligible for any assistance.

9/20/2019 6:45 AM

82 I want to see real, noticeable changes to our infrastructure. 9/20/2019 6:22 AM

5 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 18



Q3 Comments or questions?
Answered: 55 Skipped: 56

# RESPONSES DATE

1 I've lived in Gladstone for 12yrs. Our property taxes have gone up significantly over this time which
has increased my mortgage payment. We are a large family in a single income and struggle to
make ends meet. We have never qualified for the low income rates this entire time, despite
qualifying for food stamps. Oregon is becoming so expensive that we are seriously taking about
leaving the state in the next couple of years

9/30/2019 3:41 PM

2 Could have considered up to 50% increase. Doubling is just too much to take on that quickly. 9/30/2019 1:49 PM

3 Shame on the citizens of Gladstone who voted in the past city leaders and allowed them to run the
city into the ground. Now the next generation has to pay for their misdeeds and years of artificially
low utility rates. You get what you pay for and now we’re seeing the results. You paid for nothing
for years, now your children have to fix it.

9/30/2019 1:35 PM

4 Shame on the citizens of Gladstone who allowed years of bad fiscal practices to run the city into
the ground. Now the next generation has to fix this mess.

9/30/2019 1:29 PM

5 Why did the voters who have lived in Gladstone for decades allow the continuation of past
mismanagement practices that has put the city in this predicament?

9/30/2019 1:25 PM

6 AOC says we'll all be dead in 12 years anyway 9/30/2019 9:41 AM

7 I sure hope that you allow us to vote on this and not put something absurd into place. 9/30/2019 2:18 AM

8 Do what is best for those on a budget and grant,writing to covers remaining costs. 9/29/2019 10:02 AM

9 I believe that the entire utility board should be replaced because there was no contingency plan for
replacement.

9/29/2019 3:50 AM

10 Has someone with financial experience looked at the TOTAL city buget to see where expenses
can be cut? That should be the first step.

9/29/2019 3:13 AM

11 If the city council were to repeal the whole Right of Way taxes/fees and the Gladstone School
District not go for an addition levy, I could support Option B. When is the council going to repeal
the Right of Way taxes?

9/28/2019 2:08 PM

12 How has this been going on so long.... gradual increases starting years ago would have been
better!!

9/28/2019 8:10 AM

13 Jennings Lodge is in Unincorporated Clackamas County but since I'm getting this email I assume
this applies to me as well. I see the new water treatment plants on the Clackamas River and the
one in downtown Milwaukie. I voted to merge the water bureaus to keep costs down. Wow! well
that didn't work, did it. I voted to support the school bond because I wanted our schools to attract
stable families creating stable neighborhoods, but will our property taxes really decrease when the
bond is paid off? These prices are outrageous and since I'm retiring this year I'm in shock.

9/28/2019 7:32 AM

14 Shame on the city management / government for putting us in this situation. If improvements have
not been made over the years, where has the money gone? Not one cent of our current bills has
went to improvements and upgrades? That’s not a sustainable budget plan and who ok’d operating
this way all those years? The city of portland started on this over 25years ago. Try to find money
and assistance from county, state and federal agencies. This is embarrassing and terrible fo put
our citizens in this situation.

9/28/2019 3:57 AM

15 It angers me that we are in this position? What happened? Why no increases over the decades?
Now I believe we really have no choice but option C. I am also aware that most people in our town
cannot afford it. Out of principle, most will vote A or MAYBE B even if they could afford it. For the
record, option C will be a big financial stretch for my family too! But it's called "responsibilty" It's the
right thing to do!

9/28/2019 2:35 AM

16 All proposed plans point to mismanagement of city's resources or a fail to plan. 9/28/2019 1:11 AM

17 Have we done everything we can to ensure the systems are being run and administered the most
efficiently? What kind of oversight does he council provide over the water bureau?

9/28/2019 1:00 AM

6 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 19



18 With so many increases & taxes, we never own our homes. 9/27/2019 11:52 PM

19 I can't help but wonder why that huge pump station that is draining the Clackamas and diverting to
cities with higher water rates isn't paying the City of Gladstone toward infrastructure.

9/27/2019 4:56 PM

20 Gladstone has a very high property tax compared to some of the other cities nearby. Where is all
of that money going? Maybe some of that money should be redistributed towards this project.

9/27/2019 12:45 PM

21 Replacing our infrastructure using the numbers in the plan are also not realistic. For example,
increasing the pipe size to be temporarily enough just ends up requiring us to replace it again. We
would be better served by doing a more long term replacement, which costs more - but costs
much less than replacing the infrastructure twice. See pipe diameter notes in the plan regarding
replacing asbestos pipes for reference.

9/27/2019 10:56 AM

22 I'm a Gladstone resident I don't get to pay the Gladstone Rates, not to sure where you are getting
your information from I know folks who live in OC that do not pay what you are telling the people.
Heck I know people who live in Southern California who do not pay what we pay.

9/27/2019 9:15 AM

23 City officials need to take a decrease in pay to cover the rest. 9/27/2019 6:31 AM

24 You were incapable of properly informing residents of the water main break. You literally have
phone numbers. You relied on the news and Facebook? Do you realize Facebook algorithms give
zero fucks and don't show up unless you pay? And. And you refuse to answer any messages via
Facebook? What century are you in? Deep incompetence and gross negligence. It will take a lot of
work for me to trust my tax dollars aren't being wasted. Make do with the minimum until you can
prove you deserve a red cent more.

9/27/2019 2:52 AM

25 There is no option for none or the above. Have you looked at a bond measure. At least our
infrastructure investment would be tax deductible

9/27/2019 2:48 AM

26 And if this is to catch up for foregone repairs, once the repairs are made, do the rates drop to a
reasonable maintenance level? Presumably we wouldn't need to continually increase by 5% once
the brand new infrastructure is in. What's the plan for that? Also, is there any discussion of making
it a pay as you use? To incentivize conservation! Nine months out of the year, my household
doesn't come close to the six units. Why not make it a flat $x plus usage at an increasing rate per
unit used? And what are the overall numbers? How much does our system cost to replace? Is
there somewhere online where I can see the calculations behind these numbers?

9/26/2019 12:55 PM

27 Fiscal and foresight issues are your responsibility to manage properly. Not ours. We pay you to do
things in a responsible manner. Why isn’t that happening??

9/26/2019 9:30 AM

28 Too much money 9/26/2019 8:47 AM

29 This doesn't even pertain to me as I already pay $97.88 a month, not $68.05. Our water and sewer
bill keeps going up every few months, and it is ridiculous. Because we are on the side by
Gladstone High School we get charged more and we don't even use all of the water that we are
charged for.

9/26/2019 6:13 AM

30 Why do you ask the public if ultimately our opinions do not matter? 9/26/2019 5:56 AM

31 There is never going to be a "good" time for this, but it must be done - maintaining infrastructure,
which no one can see, is not sexy but absolutely necessary.

9/26/2019 3:41 AM

32 If this goes throw during the time this is in place there should be no bonuses or pay raises for city
employees.

9/26/2019 3:09 AM

33 I want to know if we can expect our cost to go down after the work is done and if not, why not?! 9/26/2019 2:46 AM

34 This should be part of an overall Master Plan and not just a fix to one part of the infrastructure. 9/26/2019 1:53 AM

35 Please include info for Oak Lodge for the 1/3 of us that pay that rate. Possible to propose a bond?
Have someone from Oak Lodge utility present management not a billing clerk.

9/25/2019 4:41 AM

36 I feel like you did not include us because Option 3 would be $173.00 a month!! Way too much. 9/25/2019 4:38 AM

37 Can the "bumps" be spread out over a few years (5-7) 9/25/2019 4:35 AM

38 Where is the rate for,Oak Lodge people? 9/24/2019 6:55 PM

39 No rate increase we pay more than enough 9/24/2019 10:35 AM

7 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 20



40 There needs to be a better way to go about this i am worried about how much it now cost to live in
the city of Gladstone. We need more business's and less churches and schools.. i trumy feel
churches need to pay taxessince there is not truly a seperation of church and state to begin with...
here is my point, "God bless america" and printed right on Our currency "In God we trust" just a
thought.

9/24/2019 8:46 AM

41 There is a big monthly difference between Option B and C. Couldn't there be something in
between these? Something that puts us in the middle of our peers listed and replaces our
infrastructure between 30-100 years?

9/24/2019 6:12 AM

42 I truly hope the City Council considers what is at stake, they have the opportunity to turn the ship
around and start to secure the city infrastructure. Continuing to be only able to maintain will get us
no where other than throwing good money after bad. Our roads are falling apart, and we can't do
anything with our roads until we fix what is under them, do it now so in 10 years we are not just
getting started with what should already be well underway. Time to right the wrong.

9/24/2019 6:12 AM

43 I think to get support for any sort of rates approaching Option C, I would want more specifics of
how that benefits me, including discussion of sewer lateral responsibilities. For example, I had to
replace my lateral out to the street, so I have less of a reason to spend more. If this hadn't been
the case, and Gladstone's Option C included a plan for replacing laterals (or something else tied
directly to the property owner), I would be more supportive of Option C.

9/23/2019 1:00 AM

44 It would be better to go to Portion B at this time--due to publicity, business projections I have seen
we are near a recession due govt decisions not under our control. There needs to be more $$
charged for new construction and right of ways. This also needs added as Urban renewal options
occur and draw added addtions to the community.

9/21/2019 6:18 AM

45 Hate to see the citizens abused like this! 9/21/2019 2:34 AM

46 Thanks for the info here and meeting opportunity. Leave the "Parks/Other" out of the comparison
figures.

9/20/2019 4:23 PM

47 I think the bigger issue is that many people use more water than they would otherwise because of
the 6ccf min. This likely makes the federal violations more likely, correct. Encourage people to use
less and divert stormwater maybe the overflow situation could be minimized. That is what Portland
did with their stormwater management (including the big pipe) and the water cost is a lot less there
for those that use less.

9/20/2019 2:31 PM

48 Please continue proactive communication and engagement efforts! 9/20/2019 8:47 AM

49 Not really, just wish wages rose with stuff like this. Not your fault though. 9/20/2019 8:20 AM

50 God, people are going to freak the $#!7 out! Good luck, and I really mean that. No sarcasm. It's
tough work that you need to do and I'm grateful that you're doing it.

9/20/2019 8:03 AM

51 I’m not a home owner, but I’d love for even some of this astronomical rent increase lately to go
towards reinvestment in my city!

9/20/2019 7:37 AM

52 Please fix things. You will never make everyone happy with a rate increase, and people vote
against their own interests all the time. It is in the best interest of all of Gladstone to fix
infrastructure sooner than later, and as residents we should be happy to invest in our future and
the future of our families.

9/20/2019 7:27 AM

53 This has happened because of years of mismanagement and people just not caring which is still
happening today! The people (in charge do not care about what’s happening they just care about
lining their own pockets and most don’t even live here) all these new police cars and new police
buildings are costing a fortune it’s been a wasted money management for Gladstone your going to
end up getting the good people moving away because it’s become ridiculously frustrating and just
have renters. Good luck with this, these people in charge need to pay more attention to the
growing drug houses in the community and do something about that. Maybe arresting the people
operating these drug houses would generate funds for Gladstone.

9/20/2019 7:20 AM

54 The sewer rate listed in Option A is not the rate all residents currently pay. 9/20/2019 6:45 AM

8 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 21



55 Some sort of sliding scale tax based on years of residence in Gladstone. 20+ years= 95.7% rate
10-20 years= 50% 0-10 years= 20% By your own admission, many years have gone by without
investing in the infrastructure. That means that residents of the city during those years have gotten
a free ride, and passed the bills down to the next generation of residents and business. It is not too
late for them to (back) pay their fair share. I’m happy to pay my part in repairing and maintaining
the city’s infrastructure, as it’s my duty as a human. But being asked to pay extra, due to the
negligence of the past? While they got to invest and spend money that should’ve been used to
maintain THEIR OWN CITY? That hurts beyond just my pocketbook.

9/20/2019 6:44 AM

9 / 9

Customer Survey

12 - 22



City of Gladstone 
Staff Report  

              
 
Report Date: October 2, 2019  
Meeting Date: October 8, 2019  
To:    Gladstone City Council 
From:  Jacque Betz, City Administrator, Interim Finance Director Cathy Brucker, and 

Public Works Director Jim Whynot    
 
AGENDA ITEM 
 
Information on City of Gladstone Rights of Way Ordinance. 
 
History/Background 
At the August 13, 2019 City Council meeting, the City Council asked for staff to information 
regarding the City of Gladstone Rights of Way Ordinance to the October 8, 2019 agenda. On 
September 16, 2019, staff provided the following information to the City Council: 
 

 Exhibit 1- League of Oregon Cities Local Focus publication, Managing the Public 
Right of Way. 

 
 Exhibit 2 – May 24, 2016 Staff Report- Consider adopting a utility right of way 

ordinance to improve management of the City’s rights of way. 
 

 Exhibit 3-  May 31, 2016 Staff Report- Consider adopting ordinance 1465 to 
improve management of the city’s right of way. 

 
 Exhibit 4- Management of Gladstone’s Most Valuable Asset Frequently Asked 

Questions (2016) 
 

 Exhibit 5- December 11, 2018- Approval of an ordinance amended GMC Utility 
Services, to update regulations. 

 
Franchise Fees: 
 
Previous to the adoption of the utility right of way ordinance, the city negotiated, and still 
currently maintains, franchise agreements with three utility companies and the city’s 
refuse service provider.  These are all collected at a rate of 5.0% of revenues: 
 
Provider      Contract Date           Term                          Budget 2019-2021      
NW Natural Gas 11/10/09 20 years $340,000 
PGE 05/14/13 10 years $800,000 
Comcast Cable 05/09/17 10 years $360,000 
B&B Leasing 09/27/16 10 years $250,000 

 
These franchise fees are utilized by the General Fund for support of parks, public safety, 
fire and administrative services.  Once expired, the city will have the option of 
renegotiating these agreements separately, or administering them within the Right of Way 
(ROW) code.  If moved to the ROW Code, language will need to be adopted through 
resolution to allow general fund use.  

13 - 1



13 - 2



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
MONTHLY 
ACTIVITY 
REPORTS 





 MAYOR TAMMY STEMPEL 

SEPTEMBER 2019 – CIVIC ACTIVITY DETAIL 

MEETINGS  ‐ ACTIVITIES  

9/3/2019  ‐      Agenda review with Jacque 
‐ Citizen Meeting | Holiday Discussion 

 
9/4/2019  ‐       Food Pantry Prep 
 
9/5/2019  ‐       WES Governance Meeting 

‐ Clackamas County Coordinating Committee Meeting 
 
9/6/2019  ‐      SHOC Foundation Golf Tournament 
 
9/9/2019  ‐       North Clackamas Watersheds Council Meeting with Neil Schulman 

‐ Gladstone Utility Rate Meeting 
‐ Clackamas County Coordinating Committee – Executive Meeting 
‐ Gladstone Parks and Recreation Meeting 

 
9/10/2019  ‐      Gladstone City Council Meeting 

 
9/11/2019  ‐       Metro Mayors Consortium Meeting 

‐ Food Pantry Prep 
‐ County Patriot Ceremony 

 
9/12/2019  ‐       Civic Center Wall Tilt‐Up Ceremony/Walk Through 

‐ Citizen Meeting | Misc. 
 
9/13/2019  ‐      Citizen Meeting | Budget 
 
9/24/2019  ‐      LPSCC Meeting 

‐ Utility Rate Open House 
‐ Citizen Meeting | Library Status 

 
9/25/2019  ‐     Food Pantry – Prep 

‐ League of Oregon Cities Conference 
‐ Nextdoor Gladstone Review 

 
9/26/2019  ‐     League of Oregon Cities Conference 

‐ Nextdoor Gladstone Review 
 
9/27/2019  ‐     League of Oregon Cities Conference 

‐ Nextdoor Gladstone Review 
 
9/28/2019  ‐     League of Oregon Cities Conference 

‐ Nextdoor Gladstone Review 

Council Monthly Activity Reports - 1



2 

 
9/30/2019  ‐      Agenda Review with Jacque and Agenda for School Board 
                                         Joint Meeting Review with Bob Stewart 

‐ Nextdoor Gladstone Review and Response 
 
**Throughout the month review of social media, responses to email, Nextdoor Gladstone and direct 
phone calls. 
 
 
 

NOTES  

 
 

Council Monthly Activity Reports - 2



COUNCILOR TOM MERSEREAU
SEPTEMBER 2019

START DATE -

DATE and/or 
TIME  MEETINGS - ACTIVITIES

08.29.2019  Monthy - Councilor Activity Report Completed and Turned In.

09.04.2019  Monthly - Gladstone Fire Department Meeting as Liaison

09.09.2019  Monthly Meeting with Jacque Betz

09.10.2019  Gladstone Council Session

09.11.2019 Rescheduled GPD - Command Meeting as Liaison

09.12.2019  Civic Center Site Review of Tilt Up Walls & Progress

09.17.2019

Canceled 
No 

Quorum Planning Commission Meeting as Liaison

09.24.2019 GPD - Command Meeting as Liaison

09.24.2019 Utility Rate Open House at High School Cafeteria

09.01.2019  09.31.2019 42

Received Messages, Read Memos & Attachments and Made Response 
to Jacque Betz, Tami Bannick, Chief John Schmerber, Haley Kratz, 
Nancy McDonald and Other Staff as Appropriate.

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

trm/TRM 1 

Council Monthly Activity Reports - 3



COUNCILOR MATT TRACY 
SEPTEMBER 2019 – CIVIC ACTIVITY DETAIL 
MEETINGS - ACTIVITIES 

9/2/2019  Elected Officials Gathering-Labor Day Picnic 
 
9/10/2019  City Council Meeting 
 
9/11/2019  Patriot Day Remembrance Ceremony-Red Soils 
 
9/24/2019  Gladstone Utility Rates Open House 
 
9/26-9/28/2019  League of Oregon Cities Annual Conference 
 
 

NOTES 

 

Council Monthly Activity Reports - 4



 
 

PRELIMINARY 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
PLANNING 
DOCUMENT 





Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 October 16, 2019 

Gladstone Senior Center 

5:30 PM 

  

  School District- City Council Joint Meeting 

 

  

 October 30, 2019 

Special Meeting 6:00 pm 

City Council Chambers 

  

 Trolley Trail Bridge Concepts Presentation 

 

  

 November 12, 2019 

Regular City Council Meeting 

6:30 PM 

  

Consent  Financials 

 Legal costs on projects 

 Minutes from previous Council meetings 

 Department Head Monthly Reports (October) 

 Policy on News Media Attendance at Executive 

Sessions 

 Extend the sewer system IGA between the City 

of Gladstone and Oak Lodge Services 

 Resolution to Department of Land Conservation 

and Development for affordable housing 

technical assistance grant funds. 

 

  

Presentation WES Annual Report 

 

Greg Geist  

 Clackamas County and City of Gladstone IGA to 

transfer employees and operations of the library 

CA Betz   

 Update the Master Fee Schedule 

 

CR Bannick  

 November 26, 2019 

Work Session 

  

 No Meeting- Holiday week   

    

 December 10, 2019 

Regular City Council Meeting 

6:30 PM 

  

Consent  Financials 

 Legal costs on projects 

 Minutes from previous Council meetings 

 Department Head Monthly Reports (November) 

 

  

 Dissolve the Gladstone Library Board 

 

CA Betz Ordinance 

 Appointments to Boards, Commissions, and Committees 

 

CR Bannick  



Gladstone City Council Preliminary Agendas 
 
 

 

 Award contract for Development of Gladstone Tourism 

Brand and Strategy 

 

CA Betz  

 January 7, 2020 

5:30 pm 

  

 City Volunteer Orientation and Ethics Training 

 

  

 January 14, 2020 

Regular City Council Meeting 

6:30 pm 

  

Consent  Financials 

 Legal costs on projects 

 Minutes from previous Council meetings 

 Department Head Monthly Reports (December) 

 

 

  

 Accept the 2018-19 Fiscal year audit 

 

IFD Brucker  

 January 25, 2020 

All Day Saturday 

 

  

 City Council/Department Head Annual Retreat 

Time and Place to Be Determined 

  

  

 

  

  

 

  

 February 11, 2019 

Regular City Council Meeting  

6:30 pm 

  

Consent  Financials 

 Legal costs on projects 

 Minutes from previous Council meetings 

 Department Head Monthly Reports (January) 

 

  

  

 

  

 To Be Set 

 

  

 Adopt the Gladstone Natural Hazard Mitigation Plan 

Update 

 

CA Betz Resolution 

 Replacement of Fire apparatus 

 

FC Huffman  




